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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 001-34720

TELENAV, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 77-0521800

(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

950 De Guigne Drive
Sunnyvale, California 94085

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(408) 245-3800
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $.001 Par Value per Share The NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢fie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edBéturities Act of 1933, as
amended. YesO No [

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. Yé€sl No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been



subject to such filing requirements for the pastl@gs. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lhsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥alb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsio Rule 405 of RegulationSduring the preceding 12 months (or for such shrquerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and poch files). YeskX No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowéedig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part lll of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company O
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsiell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of voting and non-vatmgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the regiat as of December 31, 2013, the
last business day of the registrant’s most recarttiyipleted second fiscal quarter, was approxim&®66 million (basedn a closing sale prit
of $6.59 per share as reported for the NASDAQ Gldksrket on December 31, 2013). For purposes afdhiculation, shares of common
stock held by officers and directors and sharesofmon stock held by persons who hold more than aD#te outstanding common stock of
the registrant have been excluded from this calicuidecause such persons may be deemed to batefilThis determination of executive
officer or affiliate status is not necessarily acloisive determination for other purposes.

The number of shares of the registrant's Commonoks®.001 par value per share, outstanding asraf 30, 2014 was 39,462,130.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Statnt relating to its 2014 Annual Meeting of Stodkleos are incorporated by reference
into Part Ill of this Form 10-K where indicated.
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Special Note Regarding Forward-looking Statementsral Industry Data

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemehtst are based on our management's beliefs anthpens and on information currently available to
our management. The forward-looking statementgaméained principally in the sections entitled “Rfactors,” “Management's discussion and analysis o
financial condition and results of operations,” dBdsiness.” Forward-looking statements includeiniation concerning our possible or assumed future
results of operations, business strategies, fimgngians, competitive position, industry environm@otential growth opportunities and the effedts o
competition. Forward-looking statements includéesteents that are not historical facts and can éetifled by terms such as “anticipates,” “belieVésould,”
“seeks,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “mayplans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “shdd,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions and the negat
of those terms.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknaisks, uncertainties and other factors that neayse our actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from anyfa results, performance or achievements exprassiatplied by the forward-looking statements. We
discuss these risks in greater detail in “Riskdegitand elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Given theseeutainties, you should not place undue reliamcthese
forward-looking statements. Also, forward-lookirtgtements represent our management's beliefs anthptions only as of the date of this Form 10-K.

Except as required by law, we assume no obligatarpdate these forward-looking statements, optiate the reasons actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forwboking statements, even if new information becomegslable in the future. You should read this FAGAK
completely and with the understanding that ouradtuture results may be materially different frarhat we expect.

Corporate information

Our predecessor company, TeleNav, Inc., incorpdriat¢he State of Delaware in 1999 and we incorgaréan the State of Delaware in 2009 as TNAV
Holdings, Inc. Pursuant to stockholder approvateineed in December 2009, our predecessor companyetigvith and into us on April 15, 2010. As theitgr
surviving the merger, upon completion of the merger changed our name to TeleNav, Inc. In Nover@bé®, we changed our name to Telenav, Inc. Our
executive offices are located at 950 De Guigne &r8unnyvale, California 94085, and our telephamalver is (408) 245-3800. Our website address is
www.telenav.com. The information on, or that carabeessed through, our website is not part offtbrsn 10-K.

We file or furnish periodic reports, including aamnual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly report$-orm 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K,
our proxy statements and other information with$leeurities and Exchange Commission, or the SE€h 8ports, proxy statements and other information
may be obtained by visiting the Public ReferencerRaf the SEC at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, RG549, by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 or by
sending an electronic message to the SEC at pofai@sec.gov. In addition, the SEC maintains a vtelfgiww.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information remaydssuers that file electronically. Our repofsyxy statements and other information are alsoemad
available, free of charge, on our investor relaiarbsite at http://investor.telenav.com/financidile as soon as reasonably practicable after vetrefgcally
file such information with the SEC. The informatipasted on our website is not incorporated ints Barm 10-K.

In this Form 10-K, “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Tenav, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The names “Always There Navigation™,” “Drive withiénds™,” “Evie™,” “Geobehavioral™,” “Geocookie™ .. gets you and gets you there™,”
“Goby ®,” “Location Index ™", “Location Score ™,” “MyTies™ “MyMileage™,” “ONMYWAY ©,” “RoadAssist™,” “Scout®,” “Sipity®,” “Situational
Targeting™,” “skobbler®,” “Smart Planner™,” “Telend,” “Telenav Connected Service™,” “Telenav GPS Natg™,” “Telenav Navigator™,” “Telenav
Scout™,” "Telenav Shotgun™," “Thinknear®” and “Wkeoutz®” as well as the Telenav, Scout, skobbler and Ttk logos are our trademarks. All other
trademarks and trade names appearing in this FOr dre the property of their respective owners.
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PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Telenav is a leading provider of location-basedfpten services. These services consist of our nmapravigation platform and our
advertising delivery platform. Our map and navigatplatform allows Telenav to deliver enhanced tiotabased services to developers, auto
manufacturers and end users through various digimito channels, including wireless carriers. We aisemap and navigation platform as the
basis for delivering enhanced mobile applicatiarshsas our industry leading mobile navigation. @dwvertising delivery platform delivers
highly targeted advertising services leveraginglooation expertise. Recently, we have focusedrivaecing our map and navigation platform
by closely aligning our technology to the OpenSivism, or OSM, an open-sourced mapping databasewibhimaintained by a community of
volunteer contributors. In January 2014, we congaletur acquisition of all of the shares of privatetld skobbler GmbH, or skobbler, a
location-based services company based in GermapybéNeve the acquisition of skobbler will enabgeto combine its OSM-based GPS
navigation technology with our existing mobile rgation solutions.

We offer our map and navigation platform to endrsig® a number of ways. We distribute our servibesugh our wireless carrier
partners, including AT&T Mobility LLC, or AT&T, andlirectly to consumers through mobile applicatitoress and marketplaces. Generally,
we provide our basic services to consumers fordrekprovide consumers the opportunity to purcipasmium versions of the product. We
refer to the free to premium distribution as the&mium” model of distribution. Our free products designed to be monetized through
delivery of advertising to consumers. Our succedis tiie freemium model depends upon our abilityéoerate a substantial active user ba:
well as the ability to generate revenue from adsieig and conversion of users from free to premaamvices.

We offer our map and navigation platform servi@eauto manufacturers and original equipment manufecs, or OEMs, for distribution
with their vehicles. Our primary automotive custentedate, Ford Motor Company, or Ford, currenibtributes our product as an optional
feature with the majority of its models in the UCRir automotive products are now included on modelaufactured in the U.S., Canada,
Mexico, South America, Europe and China. We alselwrelationship with another automotive OEM tdiatributes our products with anotl
major auto manufacturer and in January 2014 we @moexl an agreement with a top five global auto rfsturer for integration of our
connected navigation solutions and cloud basedcgsrin its vehicles, which we expect to commemnceodel year 2017. Our automotive
solutions are typically a self-contained solutinoliiding software and related services and comtéhtn the car, or on-board, and are often
enhanced through connection to data services fiitiadal real time capabilities such as traffic.r@istory as a cloud based supplier of
navigation services provides a unique advantagieeimarketplace over our competitors.

Our advertising delivery platform offers advertssignificant audience reach, sophisticated targetapabilities and the ability to deliver
interactive and engaging ad experiences to consuaretheir mobile devices. We are experts in locabiased advertising and offer unique
value to brick-and-mortar and brand advertisersubh our location targeting capabilities. Our teabgy focuses on managing the complexity
and scale associated with mobile location dataetwer better mobile campaigns for our advertigiagtners. We deliver mobile advertiseme
by leveraging our proprietary in-house ad servaahhology. Our inventory, or accessible marketpimiprised of thousands of mobile
applications and mobile websites that are accetbsedgh programmatic real-time bidding, or RTB,I$odn June 2014, our platform had
access to over 100 billion potential ad impressions

We derive revenue primarily from wireless carrienstomobile manufacturers and OEMs, and advertessisadvertising agencies. We
primarily derive our revenue from automobile marmtifiaers whose vehicles contain our proprietaryweafé and are able to access our
personalized navigation services. We also derivermee from our partnerships with wireless carrven® sell our mobile navigation services to
their subscribers. In addition, we have a growiangibess in mobile advertising where our customexpamarily advertising agencies that
represent national and regional brands and charamglers that work closely with local and smallibass advertisers.

We generate revenue from the delivery of customsadtivare and royalties from the distribution asthustomized software in
automotive navigation applications. For exampledRdilizes our on-board automotive navigation prctdn its Ford SYNC platform, which
includes MyFord Touch and MyLincoln Touch. Ford Beghipping this product in certain North Amerisaticles with the 2011 model year,
and our navigation solution is currently deployed.¥ different Ford and Lincoln models in North Arica. Ford and Lincoln models with our
on-board automotive navigation product began shippd South
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America with the 2012 model year, China with th&2@nodel year and Australia and New Zealand wigh2®14 model year. We have begun
shipments to Ford for the expected launch of olutem in Europe in the September 2014 quarter. &utomobile manufacturer and OEM
customers pay us a royalty fee as the softwarepioduced for installation in vehicles with our@ubtive navigation solutions.

We generate revenue from mobile navigation serylz@sed upon our map and navigation platform, tjinaervice subscriptions. End
users with subscriptions for our services are galyebilled for our services through their wirelesarier or through mobile application stores
and marketplaces. Our wireless carrier customegraipdased on several different revenue modellsjdimg (1) a revenue sharing arrangemen
that may include a minimum fee per end user, @pathly or annual subscription fee per end use¢3pbased on usage.

We generate revenue from advertising network sesvibrough the delivery of search and display atbieg impressions based on the
specific terms of the advertising contract.

Ouir fiscal year ends June 30. In this Form 10-Kye&fer to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, 2084 and 2015 as fiscal 2012, fiscal
2013, fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2015, respectivelyr ©tal revenue was $205.5 million in fiscal 20$291.8 million in fiscal 2013 and $150.3
million in fiscal 2014. Our net income decreasemfr$32.4 million in fiscal 2012 to $13.1 million fiscal 2013 and to a net loss of $(29.5)
million in fiscal 2014. On April 16, 2013, we coneptd the sale of our enterprise business to aplairy. The results of operations of our
enterprise business have been classified as disgedtoperations in our statement of operationgligreriods presented. All information
herein includes only results from continuing opers, unless otherwise noted.

Telenav's Maps and Navigation Services Platform

We have developed proprietary technologies thablenss to provide location-based mapping and naeigaervices to millions of end
users, across all major mobile phone operatingrystwireless networks and in cars. These techisdagclude both client based and server
based services. Our client technologies includavégation and guidance engine and tools allowingpiefficiently develop and deploy new
applications to mobile phones and in cars. Our fmukcloud services technologies allow us to deligal-time locatiorbased data for users
our customers as well as to third party softwaneetigpers that adopt our software development ki§BK, and application protocol interfaces,
or APIs. We have developed a flexible platform thédws us to use multiple data providers for natign, maps, points of interest (POIs),
traffic and other location-based content servitdare recently, we have developed a range of cafiabibround the OSM data allowing us to
use this crowd sourced map of the world for moneaaded services such as navigation. Our OSM catebitxpanded with more global
presence from our January 2014 acquisition of slasbi/e believe that focusing our efforts on OSM Wétter position us against our
competition and expand the nature and extent opmduct offerings.

Our client application development processes, whrichude design, porting and publication procesallsy us to extend our services
effectively and efficiently to different mobile phes across multiple mobile phone operating systennsless network protocols, languages
countries. In addition, these flexible developmamicesses allow us to effectively customize ounietogy for various automotive platforms
and in-car electronic systems to meet the requingsn&f automobile manufacturers and OEMs for ouboard automotive products.

Our back-end cloud technologies include our Gedgralmformation System, or GIS, engines for locdigh, mobile voice recognition,
geo alert and advanced geo data aggregationcteafi a local advertising platform. We have devetbpustomized voice recognition
technology built upon a third party voice recogmitiengine to serve the specific needs of navigatmices customers. We are continuing to
leverage our existing back-end cloud technologiesiéployment to the automobile manufacturer and1GBlution opportunities. We are also
adapting existing technology in new ways to expdwedconnectivity and service offerings for in-caperiences, including seamless interactior
between end users' mobile devices and automohitkvaae such as displays, sensors and audio systems.

We have developed a mobile search technology titatsEs on information with localized relevance aocuracy to address the needs of
mobile phone users and the relatively small screénsobile phones. We have developed a proprigg8/which provides fast route and map
generation while optimizing the route based onenirtraffic conditions. Because our proprietary @&fficiently uses computing resources,
these efficiencies enable us to scale our servers Bconomically.

We have developed an application hosting and pianiisg system that we integrate with the billing®ms of our wireless carrier
customers. Our application hosting and provisiorsypstem provides a range of billing options desigttemaximize the attractiveness of our
services to end users with different payment pesfees. We believe that this system allows us tpefeeur relationships with our wireless
carrier customers. This system is also integrati#iul third party verification services to allow ushill our end users' credit cards if a wireless
carrier customer is not involved.
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Telenav's Advertising Delivery Platform

We have developed proprietary technologies thablenss to deliver location-based advertising acedistypes of mobile devices on a
tremendous scale. Our advertising platform allowsoudeliver mobile advertisements on behalf ofadhrertising clients to consumers based
specifically on the location of the user. In partér, we have developed a platform that integrkteation-enabled mobile advertising inventory
with a number of contextual and location-basedyerg that allow us to target mobile users basetcbriocation data. We have demonstrated
that targeting based on location data is moreylikelengage consumers, which is our advertiseisigny objective. Our platform permits us to
bid and deliver ad impressions through advertiginghanges in less than 30 milliseconds and to dmdullions of potential impressions eve
day. In addition, we have the ability to target mwobile campaigns based on a variety of criteriohd location. Our platform was built to
provide scalability through the use of machb@sed decision processes, which allows us to ex¢lcatisands of campaigns, each with com
targeting criteria across multiple inventory sostce

Services and Product
Automotive Navigation Services and Produ
Industry background

Automobile manufacturers have distributed GPS glitgvigation in vehicles since the early 1990s. ifilt@l systems were only
available in high end vehicles and included evégynent required to provide turn by turn voice-guid®vigation: video display, on-board
content and software. Since that time the pricatfor these services has declined and the usariexge has been significantly enhanced, bu
the primary mode of distribution as a separateiyggr option in most automobiles for consumers basained constant. More recently, many
auto manufacturers are making navigation a defaature in various trim packages in most high-emdi mid-end models. More recently in
response to consumer demand, automobile manufagtuaee begun introducing lower priced navigatioitsuas a central component of on-
board entertainment and information systems ratigr as standalone units and are making navigatéordard on more vehicles. These
integrated units extend beyond traditional navagatinits by combining audio and voice capabilitiéth wireless network connectivity to
deliver real time location services, such as tcaffieather information and other connected data.

Automotive navigation systems are typically of tdifferent types, on-board or off-board. On-board/mes are the traditional service
type with all key navigation elements of the systesiding in the car as a self-contained servioaglvith the related software and content,
and the system does not require access to thenéter function. Off-board systems are deliverecklgissly through a mobile phone or other
device, such as a wireless modem, but use theicg'aal electronic systems such as the videcescaad audio capabilities. In some cases
on-board service is enhanced by the delivery dhaeflive” data, such as current traffic conditsodelivered wirelessly to the on-board systen
for display, which results in a type of hybrid seevcapability.

Industry challenges

The automobile industry is experiencing significaabhsumer demand for in-car connected servicestiregfrom the availability of
mobile Internet services on smartphones which heset consumer expectations. For example, currebbard navigation systems, or
navigation systems that do not communicate witHibernet, are limited to the vehicle in which the installed. The mapping and POI da
static, requiring time, cost and effort to upddteditionally such systems have typically been ssldn optional feature for a one-time charge
and as a result suffer from relatively low ratesadbption by consumers. Automobile manufactureas ¢hn enhance the in-car experience witl
mobile connectivity and improved infotainment capties are finding greater acceptance from conswimnaut the delivery of these capabilities
is technically challenging and not a traditionattpd the automobile manufacturer's capabilitidsisichallenge is driving automobile
manufacturers to seek new partners to create diffiated in-car experiences. Automobile manufacsurad OEMs want to provide connected
navigation services in a way that they can be gséely by the driver “keeping hands on the wheel @yes on the road.” This cannot be done
by a mobile navigation application unless it iegrated with a large in-vehicle display and intégpglawith vehicle speakers, voice recognition
and location sensors. In addition, the automobiiistry has seen the recent introduction of cortipetin-car platforms and products such as
Apple's CarPlay and Google's auto initiatives,tidahg Open Automotive Alliance.
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Our competitive strengths

Automobile manufacturers procure the various elémeheach car that they manufacture from a nurabsuppliers directly and through
OEMs. We work directly with automobile manufacterseuch as Ford, as well as through OEMs, such gshD&utomotive Systems LLC, or
Delphi. Our strong track record as a connectedp@nsionalized navigation services provider to wggleandsets and our history of working
with large wireless customers have provided us skilis and technology that are well suited to nthetdemands faced by today's automobile
manufacturers. The sales cycle related to automabénufacturers is long and consultative and requdirect and continuous management of
the customer and OEM providers to succeed in segimisiness. Often the automobile manufacturer theesales process to help them to
define the ultimate product that they choose tovdeto their end users in a way that not only eries customer experience but also allows th
automotive manufacturer to differentiate from tloenpetition. Our success with off and on-board natitgn at Ford and the continuing shift in
emphasis to connected services has demonstratstréingth of our offerings to other automobile nfanturers and OEMs. As automobile
manufacturers look to more innovative offeringstdiiical navigation suppliers have less relevantkadge having been providers of
standalone solutions rather than integrated cordeafferings. Some competition for these more imtioe offerings is in the form of Apple's
CarPlay and Google's auto initiatives, includinge®pg\utomotive Alliance.

Our automotive services and products

We entered the automotive navigation services legsiim fiscal 2008, initially with Ford, and oursti off-board navigation product was
launched in Ford's 2010 model year vehicles. Sinaetime we have been working with automobile nfaawrers and OEM customers to
provide our mobile navigation services and produciddwide through on-board or off-board systemsr @chnology powers automotive
navigation services and products that provide ateyueasy to use and connected navigation setaals/ers at a low cost. We currently
provide our on-board GPS navigation software fadRosecond-generation SYNC™ system in vehiclegpegd with MyFord Touch and
MyLincoln Touch. This product is enhanced by Foithvthe delivery of real-time traffic and histori¢gaformation to help drivers search, find
and drive to places more reliably and efficienttyaddition, we are working with Delphi to integeathite label versions of our on-board
automotive platform into Delphi's new, connectefdiainment system, which was introduced in modelr#013 vehicles for North America
General Motors. General Motors has introduceditticdainment system into certain geographic markatsnodel year 2014 vehicles. Delphi
also plans to distribute our product in China vettmajor Chinese auto manufacturer in the comirggfigear. In January 2014, we announced
that we entered into a contract with one of the fargest global auto manufacturers to provide gwade embedded and connected navigation
services beginning with select model year 2017 ateki The agreement covers an initial three-yeadymstion cycle, which we expect to
commence with select model year 2017 vehicles. Utiaeterms of the agreement, we expect our cordesgrvices to support navigation in
more than 100 countries. There are no volume @me® guarantees provided by this auto manufacturer.

Our services and products allow our auto custotierélexibility to use the full range of technolegito deliver on-board or off-board
services as well as to enhance our on-board ssrwiith live data such as traffic, fuel prices, fresaps and POls for enhanced user
experiences by drivers. In addition, as the mareisitions such that cars are “always connected’service offerings can become more
personalized.

Platform and architecture

Our clients for on-board or offeard automotive navigation services are tailooethéet the requirements of the automobile manuferct
and OEMs while leveraging our expertise with respeclient design and functionality, as well agedhg the capability to connect to our m
and navigation platform for updated data and sesvigVe have created an automotive reference progiuBRP, which allows us to show
manufacturers and OEMs our entire product portfdliee ARP incorporates our maps and navigatiorigulatcapabilities as well as connectec
services. Auto manufacturers or OEMs may then éteconfigure the ARP to meet their needs as ahaard system or an on-board system
with connectivity to live data services. In additjave have versions of our navigation products Wehave designed to be exclusively cloud-
based solutions for those manufacturers or OEMiirsgeonnected solution only services.

Our history as a mobile navigation service provigembined with our experiences to date in theraotile market, have resulted in
unique capabilities to serve the wide variety aeptial product demands of manufacturers and OEMs.
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Advertising Network Service
Industry background

The convergence of several factors is fundamenthiynging the way mobile users consume conterti@inmobile devices and has
created a significant opportunity for mobile adigéng. It has become possible to deliver innovatineractive and engaging consumer media
experiences on a wide variety of mobile devicesishimers are increasingly using their mobile devicstead of their personal computers and
other traditional media to access content, padityiwhile they are on the go. The convergenceettelb mobile devices and faster connectivity
has enabled developers to create, and consumietettact with, content that is instantly delivetednobile devices.

Mobile advertising provides advertisers with a nemaf benefits over traditional advertising media #Chbased online advertising, su
as anytime, anywhere access, personalization,docttrgeting and relevance. The development ofitbbile advertising ecosystem has
mirrored the development for online PC-based adiegt. However, a key differentiator of mobile adising is the ability to identify the
location of the user. Location is a powerful indareof an individual's interests and likely actiofberefore, advertising delivered to mobile
devices has the potential to increase the impatteevance of an ad to the user. With mobile athirg, an ad can be targeted to a consume
who is in close proximity to a specific locationich as a retail store, or to a consumer who receitited that store. The ad also has the
potential to influence the user to walk into a hgastore. Given the benefits of mobile advertisisgcompared to traditional offline advertising
and PC-based online advertising, we expect thaketens will continue to shift their advertising lyeds to mobile.

Industry challenges

The mobile advertising marketplace is a dynamist, §ggowing industry with many new participants. &disers are transitioning
significant portions of their marketing budgetshe mobile marketplace. These advertisers need able to conduct ad campaigns that
achieve favorable return on investment, or ROL.HSROI requires scale, reach, audience targetinghibifies and campaign effectiveness
measurements. The mobile advertising marketplacerigprised of application developers, advertisiagvorks, mobile agencies, advertising
exchanges and demand-side platforms, among offesrent market participants have focused on défg potential means to increase the
effectiveness of mobile advertising solutions. Giarparticipants focus on specific application gsethers focus on location components, and
still others focus on scale and effectiveness b¥elgy. Tracking the performance of ads in applimas and user interactions with those ads is
difficult and requires significant technologicabedilities and know-how.

Our competitive strengths

Our mobile advertising solution combines the laaigd growing pool of mobile impressions marked wattation information, a unique
ability to focus on particular audiences, and dyicamser content customizable based on location.

Our nearly 15 years of experience in the arenaRB-@owered mobile technology has allowed us toldpwe number of techniques that
allow us to differentiate between impressions thelude highly-accurate location data and thoseitidude false location data generated by
application publishers. Among other techniquesapgly proprietary location scoring, app scoringhlher audits, and test placements to
achieve this result.

Because of our ability to identify real-time andtbrical location data, as well as our abilityrigést contextual targeting data, we can
focus our ads on specified demographics and adeediefined customer segments. For example, arlagickd in a geographic area where it
happens to be raining can have a rain-related mgeséa ad for sunblock can be limited to areas waittigh level of sunlight and ultraviolet
radiation.

Our services and products

Our services are built around the ability to prevabphisticated location-based advertising in amaathat allows advertisers to connect
with consumers on mobile devices. For example:

Creatives- We run a wide range of creatives, including statiynamic and rich media content. Our creativeved| national advertisers to
easily “localize” their content without having toeate thousands of individual campaigns. Our oredticuses on leveraging location data to
incorporate local context such as distance to r@ $t@ation, information on where to purchase alpob or nearby events that could impact the
potential consumer.

Targeting -We offer a variety of targeting tools to our adigng clients to improve the performance of the paigns. Our targeting
includes both audience-focused tools centered achieg specific customer segments and proximitgdasols focused on driving foot traffic
to retail locations and other direct-response eelametrics.
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Reports & Metrics We offer clients a broad range of reportings #imws them to monitor all their advertising cangpe and explains
clearly what is happening at any particular paintime with respect to any of the campaigns beimg Our platform provides advertisers wit
rich set of analytics and insights.

Platform and architecture

Our mobile advertising platform is hosted in theud, primarily by Amazon Web Services, or AWS. \Wedrage the flexibility and
scalability of these cloud service providers to hwag scale requirements.

Mobile Navigation Service
Industry background

The location services market consists of advancehilminternet and data applications that leveitagation information to provide
mobile phone users with location specific and peatimed features and functions. Mobile locatiornviess that incorporate location informat
include voice-guided turn by turn navigation, resae traffic status and local search yielding P@tad Beyond these navigation-specific
services, new mobile location services, such astime-based advertising, and social networking ehaacome nearly ubiquitous.

In response to consumer demand for affordable asg-H®-use mobile location services, mobile logatervice providers are developing
and introducing new applications that integratatmn information in innovative ways. For examgayone can use a mobile phone almost
anytime and anywhere to help them quickly decidenato go, how to get there and even suggest negstto do.

Industry challenges

Technological advancements have led consumergeceknmmediate access to the latest, most accunfarenation, real-time responses
and greater convenience at lower cost in both feisonal and professional lives. The market fobileservices has undergone a dramatic
shift in response to these consumer demands. Titwglirction and rapid adoption of the Apple iPhond #s application marketplace, the App
Store, followed by Google introducing Android ahé tGoogle Play marketplace has given consumersmpékets within which to shop in
order to meet their individual personal needs. NMoapplication developers have responded to thggertunities with large numbers of
applications but continue to face the challengeasisumers discovering their products. This new etadignamic requires fresh consumer
acquisition strategies, many of which rely uporaMinarketing opportunities or unique, on phoneritistion opportunities with mobile phone
manufacturers and wireless carriers.

Our competitive strengths

Generally, we provide our basic services to conssrfwe free and provide consumers the opportuwityurchase premium versions of
product. We refer to the free to premium distribatas the “freemium” model of distribution. Ourdrproducts are designed to be monetized
through delivery of advertising to consumers. O@ngium versions are designed to provide uniquaifeatthat some portion of our free user
base will choose to pay to use. Our success witlirdemium model depends upon our ability to gdreaasubstantial active user base and to
generate revenues from advertising and convergiosars from free to premium services. As mobilmat@mn service applications have
increasingly incorporated consumers' locationspeéerences, targeted mobile advertising has beenare compelling and valuable to
advertisers and marketers.

We also have developed a suite of services thatrexdde to other mobile, automotive and web apfilicaproviders via our Scout Maps
and Navigation SDK and API. This is an OS¥sed maps and navigation services offering. Weateb these application providers the ab
to offer more customized and unique services to theers through both online and offline map sersias well as highly customized location
experiences. Our history as a pioneer in the lonaervices application gives us insight into #sguirements of these other developers and
results in more customized offerings than thoseusfcompetitors.

Our services and products: mobile applications degeloper tools

We provide a range of personalized navigation ses/for people on the go. Our core navigation serig personalized mobile navigat
for consumers. We deliver our solutions throughlooation-based technology, applications and sergtaivery platform, or SDP, which are
tightly integrated with a broad range of mobile pas, mobile phone operating systems, in-car systées&top websites, and wireless network
protocols. Scout is our flagship voice-guided, #t@ak, turn by turn, personalized navigation sesvisccessed primarily through mobile
phones, but also through cars and websites, oviceatelivers personalized features and functigmkis available to end users both on a white
label basis, such as AT&T Navigator,
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and under the Telenav, Scout and skobbler branaiss@utions use accurate, updated informatiorréeige end users with a personalized
navigation experience. Our Scout turn by turn natigmn mobile applications benefit from Telenav-emtexd OSM-based services. We apply
proprietary algorithms and GPS probe based coorgtio significantly improve the routing performaraf OSM. Our expertise in this area
affords us the opportunity to cost-effectively catein the mobile navigation application marketplaad in related tools for third-party
developers with our mapping and navigation SDK ARdl

End user billing and support

End users are generally billed for our servicesugh their wireless carrier, which may offer ourvéges on a standalone basis or bundle
with other voice and data services. The wirelessara bill subscribers monthly. We and our wirelearrier customers may offer subscribers :
free trial for our service. We believe that theedasss carrier billing makes our services more appeto consumers as they are not required tc
pay a separate monthly charge to a different verfetmrend users who purchase our navigation sexwizeugh application stores we utilize
application store billing process. Our wirelesgiesrcustomers generally provide first level sugortheir subscribers if the wireless carrier
provides our services on a white label basis. Veige secondary support for issues that cannot¢favred by our wireless carrier customers.

Client software

Our mobile navigation services provide an intuitisser interface and consistent features and fumetiegardless of the mobile phone,
mobile phone operating system or wireless netwookogol the end user is utilizing. The mobile apation market continues to be a market in
which the key differentiation for services is ttese of use of an application and the quality ofcthretent or data that are relied upon by the
application provider. We believe that over time fagus on product design and user interaction, ¢oetbwith high quality content, will
deliver significant value to users.

Infrastructure and operations
Navigation Services

Our end users rely on our services primarily whitethe road. As a result, we strive to ensure titicuous availability of our services
through our high quality hosting platform and opiersal excellence.

Data center facilities We have developed our infrastructure with the gbanaximizing the availability of our applicatisnwhich are
hosted on a highly scalable and available netwachtied in two secure third party facilities in $a6iara and Sunnyvale, California.

We have entered into service agreements with lapeNetwork Services Corporation, CenturyLink, fortpé&nown as Qwest
Communication Corporation, and Equinix, Inc., imaection with our data center facilities in Santar& and Sunnyvale, California, as well as
at AWS where we also have disaster recovery capaitrsuant to the service agreements, we haveddasility space, power, cooling and
Internet connectivity for a term of one or two y&and such agreements are subject to automatieedn

Advertising network services

We have developed our advertising network seniitfeastructure with the goal of maximizing the perhance of our platform. Our
platform is hosted on a highly scalable and avéglaletwork provided by AWS. Our advertising platfohas been designed to place significan
focus on the location of any particular unit ofgdésy advertising made available for purchase ohtie& bidding ad exchanges. This focus on
location provides our product with the speed anmhbdity to more rapidly bid on the inventory thve¢ believe is best suited for our customers
advertising inventory. Our use of AWS provides figant flexibility with respect to service capabjlto meet any peaks in demand from our
advertisers.

Research and developme

Our research and development organization is ressiplerfor the design, development and testing ofseuvices and products. Our
engineering team has deep expertise and experiei@®eS and wireless and connected services ancavednumber of personnel with
longstanding experience with location servicesiapfibns and scaling hosted service models. Intaadithrough our acquisition of Thinknear
and our own internal efforts, we have developeckeige in real time bidding and advertising tanggttapabilities.
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Our current research and development efforts anesked on:
e improving and expanding features, functionality @edformance of our existing servic

» developing applications, services and produmtsiéw mobile phones, mobile phone operating systml emerging wireless
network technologies, and developing our technofogwutomobiles, desktop computers and tablets;

» developing key technology and content to reduae tharty cost:

» developing innovative and engaging advertisirgdpcts across our navigation solutions that afilemhighly effective
targeting of end users and provide for accuratesoreanent of behavior; and

» developing features and functionality that allowND® be used as a substitute for commercial mapces

Our development strategy is to identify featuresyises and products that are, or are expected,tndeded or desired by our end users.
We also work closely with our wireless carrier amsérs to develop and offer service features tleaatractive to their subscriber base, which
are complementary to their other offered applicatjand strategies to address their need to iresedsscribers and revenue.

As of June 30, 2014, our research and developreant tonsisted of 431 people, 163 of whom are Idaat&unnyvale and Culver City,
California and 268 of whom are located in Shangima Xi‘an, China; S8o Paulo, Brazil; Berlin, Gergiaand Cluj, Romania. We have been
successful in creating cross border capabilitighénUnited States, China and Romania for highevehgineering at lower cost. Our U.S. and
China research and development operations funtigether on service and product development arghsidn of our existing services to new
mobile phones. Our Romanian development effortaga@n our OSM products and certain mobile navigapimducts. Our research and
development expenses were $65.8 million , $60.8aniknd $60.6 million for fiscal 2012, 2013 andl20Qrespectively. We expect that the
absolute dollar amount of our research and devedmprxpenses will not change materially in fiscl2

Marketing and sale
Automotive Navigation Services

In connection with sales efforts directed at autbiteomanufacturers and OEMs, we employ a sales thahfocuses on targeted
customers and responds to requests for proposaktatdd sales opportunities.

The design and sales cycle for automotive navigagervices and products is substantially longem thase associated with our mobile
navigation services to customers of wireless carioe our advertising platform services. The autivecsales cycle is long and consultative
requires direct and continuous management of temer and OEM providers to succeed in securingnbas. Often the automobile
manufacturer uses the sales process to help theefite the ultimate product that they choose tiveeto their end users. For example, de
wins for vehicles may be awarded 12 to 36 montha po the anticipated commercial launch of theiekeh In January 2014, we announced
that we entered into a contract with one of thefieplargest global auto manufacturers to providevorldwide connected navigation services
beginning with select model year 2017 vehicles. Elogv, once we launch services with an automotiveufzeturer, our application and
services are typically bundled with the vehiclesrfaltiple years because of the longer automotreglpct cycles.

Mobile Navigation Services

We distribute our navigation services to end uiesugh mobile phone application stores, such gae®p App Store and Google's
Google Play, as well as through the distributioaraiels of our wireless carrier customers.

Marketing. We focus marketing efforts for our services ostritiution in the iPhone and Android applicationrkedplaces. These efforts
are focused on building our direct relationshipwdbnsumers and the Scout brand specifically. WWadahe majority of our marketing efforts
on app store optimization, search engine optinopatpp store marketing, and supporting our wisetesrier customers' marketing programs
to promote our navigation services to their sulbess. This strategy enables us to leverage theatiagkresources of our wireless carrier
customers and reduce our sales and marketing €astsvireless carrier customers are our primaryaof marketing to end users for our
white label mobile navigation services. They emmoyariety of marketing programs to sell our nati@aservices, including promotion in
retail stores and through their sales forces, araligh various media and Internet advertising. W§e enplement selected public relations
activities to support the launch of our navigatsamvices on new devices or the release of new aaoigservices.
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Sales. Our wireless carrier customers are primarily ogsible for obtaining our end users through thalies and marketing efforts to
their existing and potential subscribers.

Advertising Network Services

Marketing. We market our advertising services based upotozation expertise. We are building brand recagniand customer
relationships based upon a consultative relatignafith key advertising buyers, primarily advertgiagencies. Given the mobile advertising
marketplace is still in its infancy, we believetthhge have an opportunity to influence the way bayerderstand the advertising opportunity.

Sales. We are highly engaged in direct sales effortsxjgand the reach of our mobile advertising sol&idxs of June 30, 2014, our
advertising sales team included 13 employees facasegrowing direct relationships with large agesand brands. We anticipate increasing
our advertising sales headcount significantly dyfiacal 2015; however, individual sales represtivea typically take three to six months to
become fully productive in selling our products.

Customers

We derive revenue primarily from wireless carrienstomobile manufacturers and OEMs, and advertessisadvertising agencies. We
derive our revenue primarily from automobile marmtidizgers and OEMs whose vehicles contain our proggiesoftware and are able to access
our navigation services. We also derive revenum foar partnerships with wireless carriers who sefl navigation services to their subscriber:
either as a standalone service or in a bundle otithr data or voice services. We currently prowidenavigation solutions to end users in
North America, China, Europe, South America andtéalis.. End users may also subscribe to our nagigatervices from our applicatic
stores.

We generate revenue from automobile manufacturet<aEMs for delivery of customized software andaltigs from the distribution of
this customized software for on-board and conneatdd based navigation solutions. We typically et long term supply arrangements
with our auto customers to provide our solution®ss multiple car models in multiple regions arotima world.

We also generate revenue from advertisers and églimgragencies for the delivery of search andldispdvertising impressions based
the specific terms of the advertising contract.

As of June 30, 2014 , we had entered into agreeswettt wireless carriers to provide our navigatsemvices in certain countries. Our
revenue from customers located in the United Staaewprised 94% , 92% and 94% of our total reveudiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014,
respectively.

We are substantially dependent on AT&T and Fordbfarrevenue. For fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, AT&jresented 35% , 28% and
24% of our revenue, respectively. In fiscal 20112 and 2014, Ford represented 13% , 36% and 46%ratvenue, respectively. We expect
AT&T and Ford to represent a significant portionoof revenue for the foreseeable future. In addljtior fiscal 2012, 2013 and 2014, Sprint
Nextel Corporation, or Sprint, represen36% , 16% and less than 10% of our revenue, resp8ct

As amended in January 2011, our agreement with AT&& initial term of which expired in March 20X8jtomatically renews at the end
of the initial term for successive one year periodiess either party provides notice of terminatibteast 60 days prior to the expiration of the
applicable term. Our agreement with AT&T was auttcadly renewed in March 2014 for one year. Durthg term of our agreement, we are
the exclusive provider of white label GPS navigatervices to AT&T. AT&T is not required to offeuonavigation services. Our agreement
with AT&T also allows either party to terminate thgreement if the other party is insolvent or maligrbreaches its obligations and fails to
cure such breach. We are also required to give Ap&€ferred pricing during the term of our agreement

We provide automotive-grade GPS navigation softviaféord pursuant to an agreement dated Octob&2QI®. We are the preferred
provider for GPS on-board navigation integratechwiord's second-generation SYNC platform duringi#ne of the agreement, which was to
expire on May 31, 2014, but was extended througteDber 2017. The agreement may be renewed for ssigeel 2-month periods if either
party provides notice of renewal at least 45 daja po the expiration of the applicable term ahd dther party agrees to such renewal. Our
agreement with Ford also allows either party tonteate the agreement if the other party is insdleemmaterially breaches its obligations and
fails to cure such breach.

Under our agreements with AT&T and Ford, we haviggakbions to indemnify each of them against, amotiger things, losses arising ¢
of or in connection with any claim that our techomy or services infringe third party proprietaryimellectual property rights. Our agreements
with AT&T and Ford may be terminated in the evemirgringement claim is made
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against us and it is reasonably determined tha¢ tisea possibility our technology or service inged upon a third party's rights.

We employ administrative, physical and technicégaards to prevent unauthorized collection, agaess and disclosure of our end
users' private data and to comply with applicabtiefal, state and local laws, rules and regulatidfesdo not use any end user data for direct
marketing or promotions without the consent ofuker and do not store any user location informatianis specifically identifiable with an
end user except to deliver and support our servitkesare also required to comply with our custofretringent privacy policies and standards.

Intellectual property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, éacrk and trade secret laws, as well as confidaptmocedures and contractual
restrictions, to establish and protect our proprigtights. These laws, procedures and restrictiwogide only limited protection and the legal
standards relating to the validity, enforceabitityd scope of protection of intellectual properghts are uncertain and still evolving.
Furthermore, effective patent, trademark, copyragid trade secret protection may not be availatbés/éry country in which our services and
products are available.

We seek to patent key concepts, components, pigiquocesses and other inventions. As of July2814, we held 52 U.S. patents and
57 foreign patents expiring between April 11, 2@2@ December 30, 2033, and have 115 U.S. and &®yfopatent applications pending. Of
the pending 115 U.S. patent applications, 111 amprovisional patent applications, which are paggplications that are examined on their
merits by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office,&nde provisional patent applications, which deglffor purposes of establishing priority
but cannot result in an issued U.S. patent unhesgare first converted to nonprovisional pateftgese patents and patent applications may
relate to features and functions of our navigagervices and the technology platform we use toigeothem. We have filed, and will continue
to file, patent applications in the United Stated ather countries where there exists a strategiurological or business reason to do so. Any
future patents issued to us may be challengedlidated or circumvented. Any patents that may isauee future with respect to pending or
future patent applications may not provide suffitie broad protection or may not prove to be erdatde in actions against alleged infringers.

As of July 31, 2014, we owned the U.S. Patent aradl@mark Office registered trademarks for Goby® MONVAY® , Scout®,
skobbler®, Sipity®, Telenav®, Thinknear® and Wharetz®, as well as the logos for Telenav, Scouthbker and Thinknear. We also own
the Telenav and design logo registered tradematthkeitunited Kingdom and European Union. We havessdwnregistered trademarks,
including the names Always There Navigation™, Dnvith Friends™, Evie™, Geobehavioral™, Geocookie™ gets you and gets you
there™, Location Index ™, Location Score ™, MyTiesWMileage™, RoadAssist™, , Situational TargetingStart Planner™, Telenav
Connected Service™, Telenav GPS Navigator™, Tel&@magator™, Telenav Scout™ and Telenav Shotgun™ eMdeavor to enter into
agreements with our employees and contractors &hdoarties with which we do business in orderinuitlaccess to and disclosure of our
proprietary information. We cannot be certain thatsteps we have taken will prevent unauthorizedar reverse engineering of our
technology. Moreover, others may independently gviechnologies that are competitive with ourshat infringe our intellectual property.
The enforcement of our intellectual property righitso depends on the success of our legal actgaiast these infringers, but these actions
may not be successful, even when our rights haga bdringed.

We also enter into various types of licensing agreats to obtain access to technology or data tithtisers utilize in connection with our
navigation services. Our contracts with certaiargors include minimum guaranteed royalty paymeviigh are payable regardless of the
ultimate volume of revenue derived from the nuntdfgraying end users. Our most important agreemantsvith the providers of maps
pursuant to which we generally pay a monthly feregoel user, a per transaction fee or a revenuénghaercentage for data provided based in
each case upon a muligred fee structure. We obtain map data purswaantagreement with TomTom North America, Inc.TomTom, date
July 1, 2009, as amended. Our agreement with Tomasran initial term of five years (except for btiard applications sold on Apple's App
Store and selected vehicle navigation system agtjlics) and will automatically renew for each supgd application for successive one year
periods thereafter, unless either party providagem notice of termination at least 90 days pt@the expiration of the then-current term for
each supported application. In September 2010 mended our agreement with TomTom to change thstfaeture for map and POI data we
use to provide our services for Sprint's bundlddrofgs. Pursuant to the amended agreement, w& @ay om a percentage of fees we collect
from Sprint for basic navigation services and owsg advertising revenue and a flat monthly feespbescriber for premium navigation
services. We also pay TomTom certain guaranteethmim payments for such services. The license pdapdavigation services provided 1
Sprint's bundled offerings was to expire on thdieraof December 31, 2012 or termination of ouresgnent with Sprint with respect to the
those bundled services. Effective July 1, 2012amended our TomTom agreement, to (a) extend thede period for navigation services
provided for Sprint's bundled offering to June 3013; (b) license TomTom map data for our autoneotisvigation product, Scout for Cars,
through December 31, 2014; and (c) license TomTa@p data for our HTML5, browser-based, voice-guided
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turn by turn GPS navigation service for mobile pemrScout for Apps, through December 31, 2014 chffe January 30, 2014, we amended
our TomTom agreement to extend the license pedoddmTom map data for voice-guided turn by turrS3favigation service for mobile
phones (except for Sprint’s bundled offering, auttiv® navigation products) through December 315201

We also obtain map data from HERE North AmericaCl formerly known as Navigation Technologies Cogpimn, a Nokia company,
or HERE, pursuant to an agreement dated Decemi2802, Our agreement with HERE was automaticaliewed under its existing terms
through January 31, 2015, and automatically reffewsuccessive one year periods unless either paotyides notice of non-renewal at least
180 days prior to the expiration of the applicablen. In addition, HERE is obligated to make ava#acertain map data for our current
automotive customers to fulfill their requiremeassfollows: for Ford (through 2027); and for oneld# five largest global auto manufacturers
(through 2019).

Our agreements with TomTom and HERE also allowrtyga terminate the agreement if the other partyemally breaches its
obligations and fails to cure such breach. In agdidjtwe obtain other data such as weather updgassprices, POI and traffic information from
additional providers.

Competition

The markets for development, distribution and séllecation services and advertising services &kl competitive. Many of our
competitors have greater name recognition, largstotner bases and significantly greater finantéahnical, marketing, public relations, sa
distribution and other resources than we do.

Competitors are offering mobile location servidegtthave similar functionality to ours for free.rlexample, Google and Apple offer fr
voice-guided turn by turn navigation as part ofitioperating system services, Android and iOS, eetipely. Waze Inc. was acquired by
Google, and its navigation service will continuétooffered by Google to consumers, as well aggbieitegrated into the Google offering.

We compete in the location services market anchaarary competitors include location service prarslsuch as Apple, Google,
Microsoft, Nokia, TeleCommunication Systems, or T@8d TomTom; PND providers such as Garmin LtdGarmin, and TomTom;
integrated navigation mobile phone providers siBarmin and Nokia; and providers of Internet ambite based maps and directions such
as AOL Corporation, or AOL, Apple, Mapquest, Imar. Mapquest, Google, Microsoft and Yahoo!, Inc.Yahoo, Yelp Inc., or Yelp,
Foursquare Labs, Inc., or Foursquare, and Fullpdgehnologies, Inc. (MotionX), or Fullpower.

We compete in the automotive navigation market witablished automobile manufacturers and OEMgandders of on-board
navigation services such as AISIN AW CO., Ltd, 6/, Robert Bosch GmbH, or Bosch, Elektrobit Cagimn, or Elktrobit, Garmin,
TomTom and NNG LLC, or Nav N Go, as well as othempetitors such as Apple, Google, Microsoft and TCS

We compete in the advertising network servicesrass with mobile platform providers, including GtedApple, and Millennial Media,
Inc., or Millennial Media, among others.

Competition in our market is based primarily ondgaret placement and performance including featduestions, reliability, flexibility,
scalability and interoperability; wireless carriagtomotive manufacturer and OEM and advertisirenay relationships; technological
expertise, capabilities and innovation; price af/gees and products and total cost of ownershignrecognition; and size and financial
stability of operations. We believe we compete fabdy with respect to these factors based upopdnmrmance, reliability and breadth of our
services and products and our technical experience.

Some of our competitors and potential competitojeyeadvantages over us, either globally or inipatar geographic markets, includi
with respect to the following:

» significantly greater revenue and financial resea

» stronger brand and consumer recognition in a pdatianarket segment, geographic region or worldy
» the capacity to leverage their marketing expendgurcross a broader portfolio of prodt

e access to core technology and intellectual propartjuding more extensive patent portfol

. access to custom or proprietary cont
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» quicker pace of innovatio
» stronger wireless carrier, automotive and handsetufacturer relationshiy
» more financial flexibility and experience to malaaisitions
* lower labor and development costs;
» broader global distribution and prese!

Our competitors’ and potential competitors’ advaetover us could make it more difficult for usédl our navigation services and
advertising network services, and could resulhioréased pricing pressures, reduced profit margiogased sales and marketing expense
failure to increase, or the loss of, market sharexpected market share, any of which would likedyse harm to our business, operating resul
and financial condition.

Employees

As of June 30, 2014, we employed 632 people, inetud31 in research and development, 101 in saldsrarketing, 34 in customer
support, data center operations, and ads traffickjperations, and 66 in a general and adminisera@pacity. As of that date, we had 300
employees in the United States, 236 in China, 8amania, nine in Germany and one in Brazil. We alsgage a number of temporary
employees and consultants. None of our employeepissented by a labor union or is a party tollective bargaining agreement.

Executive Officers of the Registrai

The following table sets forth the names, age®{dsine 30, 2014) and positions of our executiVieas:

Name Age Position

Dr. HP Jin 50 President, Chief Executive Officer and ChairmathefBoard of Directors
Michael Strambi 52 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Salman Dhanani 41 Co-President, Automotive Business Unit

Loren Hillberg 56 General Counsel, Secretary and General Managerilé/Bbsiness Unit
Vincent Uttley 54 Senior Vice President, Product Development

Hassan Wahla 42 Co-President, Automotive Business Unit

Dr. HP Jinis a cofounder of our company and has served apreaident and a member of our board of directioesOctober 1999.
Dr. Jin has also served as our chief executive@ffand chairman of our board of directors fromabet 1999 to May 2001 and since
December 2001. Prior to Telenav, Dr. Jin served s@snior strategy consultant at the McKenna Graugtrategy consulting firm. Prior to that
time, Dr. Jin was a business strategy and managetoesultant at McKinsey & Company, a managemensghing firm. Dr. Jin was also
previously a technical director at Loral Integraialvigation Communication Satellite Systems, or CBE, a division of Loral Space &
Communications, Inc., a GPS service and engineedngpany. Dr. Jin holds a B.S. and M.S. in Mecharimgineering from Harbin Institute
of Technology in China and a Ph.D. in Guidance,ifj@ion and Control, with a Ph.D. minor in Elecaii&ngineering, from Stanford
University.

Michael Strambhas served as our chief financial officer and weassince June 2012. From November 2009 to Juh2,20r. Strambi
served as our vice president of finance. From Déezr2008 to August 2009, Mr. Strambi served as piesident and chief accounting officer
of Silver Spring Networks, Inc., a provider of singid services. From February 2008 to DecembeB20. Strambi served as chief financial
officer of Metacafe, Inc., a provider of online g services. From February 2006 to February 2008Skambi served as vice president of
finance of MobiTV, Inc., a provider of mobile medialutions. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Strambi serveddrious positions, the most recent of
which was vice president, controller and treasuith Macromedia, Inc., a provider of web publighioroducts and solutions that was acqt
by Adobe Systems Incorporated. Mr. Strambi hol&s% in Business Administration with a concentnatiio Accounting from California State
University, Sacramento and an M.B.A. in Financerfithe University of Southern California.

Salman Dhananis a cofounder of our company and has served gsazident of our automotive business unit sincedgn2014.
Mr. Dhanani served as our vice president, growtitesgy and partnerships from July 2012 to Janu@ty}2as our vice president, products fr
August 2010 to July 2012 and as our vice presigentjucts and marketing from August 2009 to Au@@t0. Mr. Dhanani served as our
executive director of marketing from March 2009tdy 2009 and as our senior director of marketngfNovember 1999 to February 2009.
From January 1999 to November 1999, Mr. Dhanani se
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rved as a consultant at the McKenna Group, a gyatensulting firm. From July 1996 to December 1998 Dhanani served as an applical
engineer at Schlumberger Ltd., a technology coimguiervices company. Mr. Dhanani holds a B.S.lectfical Engineering from the
University of Washington.

Loren Hillberghas served as our general counsel and secretagy April 2009 and general manager, mobile businagssince January
2013. From September 2007 to September 2008, Mhdrj served as vice president and general coatgedrcel0 Networks, a privately h
communications and networks company. From April2@0May 2007, Mr. Hillberg held various managemgasitions, including executive
vice president and general counsel at Macrovisiorp@ation (now Rovi Corporation), a publicly tradaigital entertainment company. From
May 1998 to March 2005, Mr. Hillberg served as eenice president and general counsel at Macroméutia a provider of web publishing
products and solutions that was acquired by Adotste®ns Incorporated. Mr. Hillberg holds a B.A. icdBomics from Stanford University a
a J.D. from the University of California, Hastingsllege of Law.

Vincent Uttleyhas served as our senior vice president of pratdiestlopment since June 2014 and served as our séeegpresident of
engineering from May 2014 to June 2014. From A2BiL3 to May 2014, Mr. Uttley served as vice presidd product development at
Jawbone, a consumer electronics company. Mr. UtdayAcceleration, a consulting services compammfMarch 2011 to May 2014. From
November 2011 to January 2013, Mr. Uttley servedi@s president of product development and useeapce at Amazon Lab 126,
inventive research and development company. Frayn2D10 to March 2011, Mr. Uttley served as exeauitiice president of product
development at Rovi Corporation, a digital ententant company. From October 2007 to July 2010,Uttey served as a vice president of
engineering at Sony Corporation. Mr. Uttley holdB.8. in Electrical Engineering from the UniversitiyCalifornia, Davis.

Hassan Wahl&as served as co-president of our automotive bssineit since January 2014. Mr. Wahla served asioampresident,
business development and carrier sales from ARAG® to January 2014 and served as our executigetdi of business development from
May 2005 to August 2009. From April 2003 to May 80Mr. Wahla served as a senior product managseztel Communications, a wireless
communications company that merged with SprintniFebruary 2002 to April 2003, Mr. Wahla servedias president of business
development of Wireless Multimedia Solutions, avately held wireless software platform company.rki®eptember 1999 to February 2002,
Mr. Wahla served as director of business developmeklicroStrategy, Inc., a business intelligencftvgare company. Prior to that time,

Mr. Wahla served as a senior consultant at Maritfoeer, a maritime equipment company. Mr. Wahlaldal B.S. in Industrial Engineering
from Virginia Tech, an M.S. in Management from Sey Institute of Technology and a Masters of Iragamal Affairs from Columbia
University.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We operate in a rapidly changing environment tih@blves numerous uncertainties and risks. Theuafig risks and uncertainties may
have a material and adverse effect on our busirfasmcial condition or results of operations. Yshould consider these risks and
uncertainties carefully, together with all of théher information included or incorporated by refeoe in this Form 10-K before you decide
whether to purchase any of our securities. If ahthe risks or uncertainties we face were to octlue, trading price of our securities could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your irtaant.

Risk related to our business

We have incurred losses in fiscal 2014 and expéett tve will continue to incur losses in fiscal 20Had we do not know when, or if, we will
return to profitability, as we make further expertdres to enhance and expand our operations in ordersupport growth and diversification
of our business.

As a percentage of revenue, our net income (loas)(20)% and 7% in the years ended June 30, 2@fiscal 2014, and 2013, or fiscal
2013, respectively. Our revenue from paid wirekzssier mobile navigation has substantially deaiaed we expect it to continue to do so.
Our gross margin has declined to 60% in fiscal 204 64% in fiscal 2013 due primarily to the inased proportion of product revenue
contributed from our on-board automotive navigasofutions, which generally have higher associatedent costs and resulting lower gross
margins than our mobile navigation services prodithgough our wireless carrier customers.

We anticipate that we will incur net operating s fiscal 2015, as we do not expect to reducerpenditures while our gross profil
expected to decline despite slightly higher expoteenue. These expected losses are due to actedpe
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continued decline in our higher margin mobile natign revenue. Furthermore, there is a lengthyydeddween securing the award of a new
customer contract with a top five global auto mastidrer and the timing of revenue thereto, as aglh substantial required upfront investn
in research and development resources for suctcastemer contract, and continued investments nagedsie to the early nature of our
advertising business. In addition, we recently &regluskobbler, which will increase our operatinggenses without an offsetting increase in
revenue in the near term.

Although we are working to replace rapidly declminireless carrier revenue, our efforts to develew services and products and attrac
new customers require investments in anticipatfdorgger term revenue. For example, the designecfarl automotive navigation products ¢
services is 18 months to 24 months and in ordainadesigns and achieve revenue from this growslaarve typically have to make
investments two to four years before we anticipateiving revenue, if any. This will be the casedur recently announced top five global
automaker customer. We intend to make additionedstments in systems and continue to expand ouatpes to support diversification of
our business, but it is likely that these effottsligersification will not replace our declining igless carrier revenue in the short-term, if at all
We also anticipate that as we replace some of exsopnel, we will do so with employees in highestageographic areas who have different
skills. As a result of these factors, we believewiléincur a net operating loss and that we wiltir net losses at least through fiscal 2015 anc
we cannot predict when, or if, we will return tefitability. Our investments and expenditures may nesult in the growth that we anticipate.
Although we acquired skobbler and have expendediadal internal resources to develop our own OSAédxl maps to reduce our mapping
costs in the long-term, in the short-term, thoseetijment efforts will have a negative effect om ahility to become profitable.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results havadtuated in the past and may fluctuate in the futudue to a number of factors. As a
result, we may fail to meet or exceed the expeotatiof securities analysts or investors, which abghuse our stock price to decline.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may significantly in the future. Therefore, you shdulot rely on the results achieved in
any one quarter as an indication of future perforcea Period to period comparisons of our revenaeoperating results may not be
meaningful. Our quarterly results of operations rilagtuate as a result of a variety of factorsjuding, but not limited to, those listed below,
many of which are outside of our control:

e the transition away from paid carrier navigatiorfreemium offerings for mobile phone based navaaservice:
* impact of results of the offering of a premium wgdg on a basic version of our service that is effdor free
« the ability of automobile manufacturer customerseth automobiles equipped with our produ

< the introduction of competitive in-car platformsd products, such as Apple's CarPlay and Goagl&sinitiatives, including Open
Automotive Alliance;

« the seasonality of new vehicle model introductiand consumer buying patterns, as well as the sfffatconomic uncertainty on
vehicle purchasesparticularly outside of the U.S.;

» the effectiveness of our entry into new businesasrsuch as advertisi
« changes made to existing contractual obligationk wicustomer that may affect the nature and tirfrrgvenue recognitio
« the loss of our relationship or a change in ouenexe model with any particular wireless carrieteomer

e poor reviews of automotive service offeringoimthich our navigation solutions are integratediitésy in limited uptake of
navigation options by car buyers;

« loss of subscribers by our wireless carrier custsrea reduction in the number of subscriberdaaspthat include our servic
» the timing and quality of information we receiverft our customer
e ourinability to attract new end use

< the amount and timing of operating costs andtabgxpenditures related to the expansion of qarations and infrastructure
through acquisitions or organic growth;

» the timing of expenses related to the developmeatquisition of technologies, products or busies
e the timing and success of new service introductimnas or our competitol
» the timing and success of marketing expendituresto products

« the extent of any interruption in our servi
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» potential foreign currency exchange gains asdds associated with expenses and sales denomimatgadencies other than the
U.S. dollar;

< general economic, industry and market conditibias impact expenditures for new vehicles, smangis and mobile location
services in the United States and other countriesrevwe sell our services and products;

* changes in interest rates and our mix of invesitisy which would impact our return on our invesitaen cash and marketable
securities;

e changes in our effective tax rates;
« the impact of new accounting pronouncem

Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results imigad analysts and investors to change their tfaddevaluing our common stock. A:
result, our stock price could decline rapidly areleould face costly securities class action lawsuitother unanticipated issues.

We are dependent on Ford for a substantial and iaasing portion of our revenue and our business,dircial condition and results of
operations will be harmed if our revenue from Fodbes not continue to grow or declines.

Ouir first automobile navigation products were idtroed in fiscal 2009, and a second generationaxfuymts were introduced in fiscal
2010 in a limited number of vehicles and just rélgereached a broader model portfolio at a singl®aobile manufacturer, Ford. Ford
represented approximately 46% and 36% of our revéméiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, respectively. &pect that Ford and other OEMs will
account for an increasing portion of our revengeour revenue from paid wireless carrier providadgation declines. In addition, our revel
could decline if Ford increases the cost to consamgour navigation product or reduces the nunabeehicles or the geographies in which
vehicles with our product as an option are soldtsosales of vehicles fall below forecast duedmpetition or global macro-economic
conditions. In April 2014, our contract with Forcsvextended through December 2017. The agreemegrben@newed for successive 12-
month periods if either party provides notice afewal at least 45 days prior to the expiratiorhef applicable term and the other party agrees
to such renewal. Our agreement with Ford also aleither party to terminate the agreement if theioparty is insolvent or materially
breaches its obligations and fails to cure suchdireln the event that Ford does not elect to remaveontract after December 2017, or cho
to renegotiate our contract on less favorable teausrevenue may decline and our business opgredsults and financial condition could be
harmed. After December 2017, Ford may elect no¢b@w our agreement. We may not successfully iserear revenue from Ford if our
products are replaced within vehicles by Ford witin competitors' products or from price competitiaom third parties.

For on-board automotive navigation, we recognizemee as the related customized software is deliver and accepted by our
customers. In addition we recognize royalties edfn@m our on-board solutions generally as thevearfé is reproduced for installation in
vehicles. We have limited experience managing, stijng and retaining automobile manufacturers aB#/® as customers and if we are not
able to maintain Ford as a customer our revenuededline.

We may not be successful in generating materialeeue from automotive manufacturers and OEMs othéan Ford and our business,
financial condition and results of operations wile harmed if we are unable to diversify our autonvet navigation revenue

Although we have attempted to mitigate our depeod@m Ford by establishing relationships with o#ngilomobile manufacturers and
OEMs, these relationships may not produce sigmificavenue if the products are launched in limiteztels or due to competition from third
parties. In addition, we may incur significant espe to develop products for automobile manufacsysarch as under the worldwide connecte
navigation services agreement we announced in da8044, without ever receiving any revenue reldtethe sale of vehicles with our
navigation services. Our ability to attract autoitemanufacturers may also be limited if the OEMsgen to provide navigation services have
existing relationships with other navigation verglor provide their own solutions. Some automobisnuafacturers or OEMs may be reluctant
to select our products for their worldwide platfodume to the concentration of our mobile navigabosiness in North America and our relative
lack of experience with connected mobile navigatioother geographies.

Delphi's new, connected infotainment system, wiitbgrates white label versions of our Scout forsGm-board automotive platform,
was introduced in model year 2013 vehicles for Néunerica by General Motors. During fiscal 2014o&cfor Cars was launched with maps
in South America. Delphi also plans to distribute product in China with a major Chinese auto maouifrer in fiscal 2015. Even if we retain
Delphi as a customer, automobile manufacturers mo&ylect to purchase Delphi's navigation offeritigg include our software and/or
services for reasons unrelated to performance $aftware or services. If so, we may be unableuitd a direct relationship with a given
automobile manufacturer or with a different OEM.
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Our automotive navigation products are an importapart of our effort to expand outside of mobile dee navigation to other platforms and
we may not be successful in our efforts to attractd retain automobile manufacturers and OEMs, impbent profitable and high quality
products or achieve end customer acceptance of senvices and fee mode

In fiscal 2009, we began offering our first off-mdaonnected automotive navigation products anat poi that time, we had limited
experience in the automotive navigation markefideal 2010, we began offering our first on-boantioanotive navigation products. Our on-
board solutions may not satisfy automotive manui&@es’ or end customers’ expectations for thosetiwis. If automobile manufacturers and
OEMs do not believe that our services meet thestaruers’ needs, our products and services mayendebigned in to future model year
vehicles.

The design and sales cycle for on-board or off-th@atomotive navigation services and productslistuntially longer than those
associated with our mobile navigation servicesust@mers of wireless carriers or our advertisirgfptm services. As a result, we may not be
able to achieve significant revenue growth with reaisstomers from the automotive navigation busimessshort period of time, or at all. For
example, design wins for vehicles may be awardetb B5 months prior to the anticipated commeraahkch of the vehicle. In January 2014,
we announced that we entered into a contract withad the top five largest global auto manufactuterprovide its worldwide connected
navigation services beginning with select model @7 vehicles. In the event that our productheagroduction vehicles, we would not
expect to receive any revenue from the launchadgahvehicles until fiscal 2017 at the earliest, mntthe course of the development of those
vehicles we may be designed out altogether. There@volume or revenue guarantees provided byathtis manufacturer.

As we have limited experience in the automotiveigation market, we also may not price our solutionsuch a way that is profitable 1
us and enables us to recoup the development expamsimcurred to provide such solutions in the timgeexpect or at all. Development
schedules for automotive navigation products affecdit to predict, and there can be no assurahaewe will achieve timely delivery of these
products to our customers. To the extent that veegehservice fees beyond an initial fee at the timeevehicle is purchased, we may not be
successful in gaining traction with customers tovjite services and charge ongoing monthly or anfags outside of the traditional on-board
navigation service model. Our map, POl and othetertt costs for our automobile navigation solutiare higher than those we have
historically paid for our mobile phone-based natimaservices and to date we have not been ahieedSM offerings for automotive
navigation. If we are unable to improve our margime may not be able to operate our automobilegadizin business profitably. If we fail to
achieve revenue growth in any of our automotivegetion solutions (whether on-board, off-board tires), we may be unable to achieve the
benefits of revenue diversification. In additiony ¢hird party content suppliers, HERE and TomTane, also becoming competitors with their
own navigation services offerings.

As our offerings in automobile navigation expandbtought-in, as well as built-in, we may not cothganticipate the financial
accounting treatment for the various products. \Wbddbe required to amortize revenue from prodagts time although we previously
recognized revenue for similar products when thaiegble vehicle was sold.

We introduced Scout, a service that end users aagsa for navigation and planning with their mobpit®nes, computers, and cars. We
have not previously offered a planning service sewvice that spans different platforms. We camsstire you that automobile manufacturers
and end users will accept our Scout service om éubey do, that end users will adopt and usg $ervice, which encompasses services
different than our historical strength in navigatior that we will be able to generate sufficientenue from Scout to offset its costs. If we fail
to develop innovative products that automobile niacturers and end users adopt, our operating seantt financial condition could be
harmed. Further, Google and Apple have each desdltgrhnology platforms that they are marketingutm manufacturers. If auto
manufacturers adopt these platforms, they mayadspt Google and Apple’s navigation services thatan these platforms and if so,
consumers may elect to use these free servicargfferather than pay for our products which areemily sold by Ford as new car features
with substantial cost to the consumer.

We may be unable to enter into agreements to peasilomobile navigation products if we do not offavigation products that serve
geographies throughout the world or automobile rfesturers and OEMs are uncomfortable with our Bbib support markets outside of the
United States. Our automobile manufacturer and @EMomers may choose to partner with providersadtion services with extensive
international operations. We may be at a disadgenta attracting such customers due to our busineisg concentrated in the United States.
Ford only recently began offering vehicles with sotutions outside of the United States and we nmybe successful in those geographies if
customers are uncomfortable with the look and ééelur solutions. If we are unable to attract daire such automobile manufacturer and O
customers, our revenue and operating results witidgatively affected.

Our ability to build demand for our automobile rgation products is also dependent upon our alidifyrovide the products in a cost
effective manner, which may require us to reneg@tisap and POI content relationships to addresspeific demands of dneard navigatio
applications.
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The success of our automotive navigation productaynbe affected by the number of vehicle models mffewith our navigation solutions, ¢
well as overall demand for new vehicles.

Our ability to succeed long term in the automotivdustry depends on our ability to expand the nunolbenodels offered with our
navigation solution by our current automobile maatiirers. We are also dependent upon our abiligfttact new automobile manufacturers
and OEMs. For automobile manufacturers with whomhawe established relationships, such as Fordsueaess depends on continued
production and sale of new vehicles with, and adogty, end users of our products offered by sutbraobile manufacturers, when our
product are not standard features. As we move fahwair existing automobile manufacturers and OEMsg not include our solutions in
future year vehicles or territories, which wouldyagvely affect our revenue from these productedBetion and sale of new vehicles are
subject to delay from forces outside of our contsakh as natural disasters, parts shortages ardstoppages, as well as general economic
conditions.

We may not successfully generate advertising revens a result of our acquisition of Thinknear ordm our navigation services if we are
unable to attract and retain advertisers.

Although we began providing advertising to somewf end users in 2010 and the percent of our revegpresented by advertising has
grown rapidly, advertising remained less than 16%uo total revenue during fiscal 2014. In OctoBéd2, we acquired Thinknear, a privately
held California-based hyper-local mobile advertisstompany. In order to grow our advertising businese need to identify and attract a
significant number of advertisers through our Thia&r platform. The mobile advertising market ishhygcompetitive, and advertisers have
many options through which to purchase mobile atsieg. Our business will require us to attract agtdin a large number of advertisers and
will also require us to maintain the ability to phase a large volume of inventory at competitivatyactive rates. Increased competition from
other mobile advertising companies and technolagetbpers could impair our ability to secure adgertrevenue. Increased competition
could also limit our ability to purchase inventdoy advertising placements at an economically etitra rate. We do not have substantial
experience in selling advertising and supportingestisers and may not be able to develop thesebddjes successfully. We may not be
successful recruiting the number of sales persomaeieed to scale or effectively train them to sedbile advertising. Sales personnel may
be slow to ramp up their sales pipelines, negatiepacting our ability to grow. We may not succéedttracting and retaining a critical mass
of advertisers and ad placements and may not leessitl in demonstrating the value of mobile adsig. If we fail to do so, we may be
unable to generate a material level of revenue fadwertising to offset the costs of providing freevigation.

Our legacy wireless carrier mobile navigation busiss has continued to deteriorate and we have bamabie to generate sufficient revenues
from other navigation and advertising activities. dur legacy wireless carrier mobile navigation ngess continues to decline, our reven
and net income or loss will continue to be adveysaffected.

We have historically been substantially dependarttvm wireless carrier customers for a large partibour revenue. Sprint, which was
our largest source of revenue until fiscal 2012seel paying us for mobile navigation provided $csitbcribers in bundles on September 30,
2013. Our other large wireless carrier customeve ladso experienced declines in monthly recurrengenue from subscriptions for mobile
navigation. In fiscal 2014 and 2013, AT&T represeh?4% and 28% of our total revenue, respectivelfiscal 2013 and fiscal 2014, AT&T
subscribers have materially decreased their sydignts for, and usage of, our paid navigation s®w¥iand our revenue from our relationship
with AT&T has declined accordingly. We anticipatat AT&T subscribers, and subscribers of otherieerwho pay monthly recurring
charges for our services, will continue to decréhsé& subscriptions for paid navigation serviaeaivor of free or freemium offerings and that
our revenue from our relationship with AT&T will oinue to decline. AT&T may determine that the aafsbffering our service to its
subscribers outweighs the benefits if the droppbBubscribers continues. Our failure to maintain @lationship with AT&T would
substantially harm our business and we cannot agsur that we and AT&T will be able to reduce sulliws erosion. We anticipate that eve
AT&T remains a wireless carrier customer, our rexefrom AT&T will continue to decline substantiatiyiring fiscal 2015 and possibly
beyond.

Our experience with Sprint and other mobile wirglearriers has been that subscribers do not ggytenonthly recurring charges for
mobile navigation products that were formerly beadivith other services and instead use free omig® offerings. We have sought to
develop other sources of revenue from our locatiased platforms, including automotive navigatiod ktation-based advertising, but we
have not been able to fully replace the legacy teokireless carrier revenue. Our other sourcegwdmue have not achieve the critical mass t
provide revenue as fast as the declines in mobilel@gs carrier revenue and we believe we may bélario replace the mobile wireless car
revenue with stable, recurring revenue in the texan. As a result, we anticipate that we will cang to incur net losses in fiscal 2015 and
possible future periods. If we are unable to dertratesto investors that we have developed statgterm revenue streams, the trading pr
of our common stock may decline further and invesstoay be unable to achieve liquidity through tale ®f our common stock.
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Our success depends on significantly increasing thember of end users for our services and produttigough distribution with our wireles
carrier customers, automotive manufacturer and OEdistomers and through application stores.

Our future success depends on achieving widesplealdyment of our navigation services and prodtietsugh wireless carrier
customers, automotive manufacturers and OEMs aodgdh application stores. We have seen declindgimumber of paid monthly recurring
fee end users we acquire through our wirelesseraztistomers. Furthermore, we expect that our rev&om wireless carrier customers will
continue to decline and that the composition ofréreaining wireless carrier revenue will changerdlie near term. In light of this trend away
from paid navigation and toward freemium offeringg, will be required to increase the number of glglsi in which our automotive navigation
solutions are offered and the number of car buespurchase those solutions, as well as sucdlgssfunvert an increasing number of our
subscribers who are not paying for our servicesurgpremium paid offerings and generate revenuseliing advertising that those subscribers
see in our free and paid products. We do not higvefisant experience in sourcing and selling melaitlvertising and may not be successful ir
doing so. However, we believe that to achieve higaeirns on mobile advertising, we need to be abkffer advertisers a larger pool of
mobile users. Our ability to generate revenue foamnavigation services will depend on the broadritiution and quality of those services
subscriber demand for those services, which may lmamarket. Attempts to generate revenue from pegtnium services or advertising may
not be successful and our business, operatingtsesud financial condition could be adversely afdc

We provide freemium navigation to compete with frefferings and we may not be successful with thesev products or convert “free”
users to paid users.

We provide freemium personalized navigation apfilices on the Apple App Store, the Google Play mignkee, Microsoft Windows
Marketplace and through other marketplaces anaviretess carrier partners. Freemium offerings age basic navigation services that are
monetized through paid upgrades to premium prodastsvell as through advertising. We may not aghsbstantial end user acceptance of
these products, and even if end users downloadissthe freemium products, we may not be successbainverting those “free” users into
paid users, particularly since we have begun terafbice-guided navigation in our freemium offesn@ur freemium offerings provide
planning features and other features unrelatedite pavigation that we do not have substantial eepee in designing or marketing. These
features may deter users who are looking for a pavégation offering. We have limited experienceriarketing our products and services
directly to end users or generating advertisingnexe through our mobile navigation users. To thergthat our number of active subscribers
is low, we may not be able to fulfill sufficient\aettising orders to generate meaningful advertisevgnue from a freemium model. Bad
reviews from end users who dislike our freemiuneffgs may dissuade other end users from downlgazlin freemium offerings or
converting to paid users. We may not be successfydining visibility among end users without indog significant expenses to market our
products and services to those users. In additiergo not have experience in converting userseaf ipplications to paid users or in genere
revenue from full featured products solely throaglvertising revenue. If we are unable to achiegé kisibility among end users on a cost
effective basis or fail to convince those end useronvert to paid products and revenue produsémgices, we may be unable to sustain our
revenue and we may incur losses in the future.

Mobile connected device users may choose not tovalbcation information and therefore local advesthg on their devices

The growth of our advertising revenue will dependoar ability to deliver location targeted, highglevant ads to consumers on their
mobile connected devices. Our targeted advertisiimgghly dependent on the consumers allowing appibins to have access to their location
data. Users may elect not to allow location dataisly for a number of reasons, including personakpy concerns. Mobile operating systems
vendors and application developers are also prommdéatures that allow device users to disableadeftinctionality that consumers may elect
to invoke. In addition, companies may develop patsithat enable users to prevent ads from appeanitigeir mobile device screens. If any
these developments were to become widely used tguooers, our ability to deliver effective advertgsicampaigns on behalf of our advertisel
clients would suffer, which could hurt our ability generate advertising revenue.

Our business practices with respect to data coulkgise to liabilities or reputational harm as asult of governmental regulation, legal
requirements or industry standards relating to camser privacy and data protection.

Our advertising services depend on our abilitydltect, store and use information related to motidgices and the ads we place,
including a device's geographic location for thepmse of targeting ads to the user of the deviedeFal, state and international laws and
regulations govern the collection, use, retentabraring and security of data that we collect acoassnobile advertising platform. We strive to
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, p@iand legal obligations relating to privacy aatbdorotection. However, it is possible that
these requirements may be interpreted and appliadianner that is inconsistent with our practiées. failure, or perceived failure, by us to
comply with such laws could result in proceedingactions against us by governmental entities, won@ss or others. Such proceedings or
actions could hurt our reputation, force us to sib@gnificant amounts to defend ourselves, distoactmanagement, increase our costs of ¢
business, require us to change our advertisingcgeror disclosures, adversely affect the demanddoservices and ultimately result in the
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imposition of monetary liability. We may also bent@ctually liable to indemnify and hold harmless olients from the costs or consequence:
of inadvertent or unauthorized disclosure of datd tve store or handle as part of providing ouvises.

The regulatory framework for privacy issues worldevis evolving, and various government and consw@agencies and public advocacy
groups have called for new regulation and changé@sdustry practices, including some directed atrttobile and advertising industries in
particular. It is possible that new laws, regulasipstandards, recommendations, best practicesjoirements will be adopted that would affect
our business, particularly with regard to locatlmased services, collection or use of data to taxdetand communication with consumers via
mobile devices. To the extent that we or our cieare subject to new law or recommendations or stm adopt new standards,
recommendations, or other requirements, we may geeagter compliance burdens. If we are perceivatbasperating in accordance with
industry best practices or any such guidelinesodes with regard to privacy, our reputation mayesudnd we could lose relationships with
advertiser or developer partners.

We operate in a highly competitive market, includitompetitors that offer their services for freehigh could make it difficult for us to
acquire and retain wireless carrier customers anuldeusers.

The market for development, distribution and sdllcation services is highly competitive. Manyafr competitors have greater name
recognition, larger customer bases and signifigagriéater financial, technical, marketing, pubgtations, sales, distribution and other
resources than we do. Competitors may offer mabdation services that have at least equivalenttfanality to ours for free. For example,
Google offers free voice-guided turn by turn natimaas part of its Google Maps product for mobiéwvices based on the Android operating
system platform, and recently introduced a simikw product for the iOS platform. Apple offers priepary maps and voice-guided turn by
turn directions and Nokia, provides a downloadif®tatest version of HERE Maps on its smartphometeh also provides voice-guided turn
by turn navigation functions. Microsoft also prog&da free voice-guided turn by turn navigation sotuon its Windows Mobile and Windows
Phone operating systems. Competition from thesedfferings may reduce our revenue, result in ncuiring additional costs to compete and
harm our business. We also do not know what trexceéif the acquisition of Nokia’s mobile phone Imesis by Microsoft will have on
competition in the mobile navigation market. If aureless carrier customers can offer these mabdation services to their subscribers for
free, they may elect to cease their relationshipis us, like Sprint did, or alter or reduce the manor extent to which they market or offer our
services or require us to substantially reducefees or pursue other business strategies that otgyrove successful. In addition, new car
buyers may not value navigation solutions builtartheir vehicles if they feel that free (broughj-offerings, for example Apple CarPlay or
Google's auto initiatives, including Open Autometi&lliance, are adequate and may not purchaseotutians with their new cars.

Our primary competitors include location serviceviders such as Apple, Google (including Waze),mBoft, Nokia, TCS, and
TomTom; PND providers such as Garmin and TomTomviders of Internet and mobile based maps andtitrexsuch as AOL, Apple,
Mapquest, Google, Microsoft, Yahoo, Yelp, Foursguand Fullpower; and wireless carriers and comnatioic solutions providers developi
their own location services. In the automotive gation market, we compete with established autored@EMs and providers of on-board
navigation services such as AISIN, Bosch, Elektrabarmin, TomTom and Nav N Go, as well as othenpetitors such as Apple, Google,
Microsoft and TCS. In our advertising business,campete against mobile platform providers, inclgd@oogle, Apple, and Millennial Medi
among others. Some of our competitors’ and ourrmiialecompetitors’ advantages over us, either dlghm in particular geographic markets,
include the following:

« the provision of their services at no or low castbnsumer:

» significantly greater revenue and financial reses

e stronger brand and consumer recognition regioraalkyorldwide

» the capacity to leverage their marketing expendgucross a broader portfolio of mobile and nontagivoducts
e access to core technology and intellectual propertyuding more extensive patent portfol

e access to custom or proprietary cont

« quicker pace of innovatic

e stronger wireless carrier, automotive, handset f@@twrer and advertising agency relationst

» stronger international presence may make our largepetitors more attractive partners to automatimamufacturers and OEN
e greater resources to make and integrate acquis,

« lower labor and development costs;

« broader global distribution and prese!
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Our competitors’ and potential competitors’ advaetaover us could make it more difficult for us#dl our navigation services, and
could result in increased pricing pressures, rediypeefit margins, increased sales and marketingesgs and failure to increase, or the loss o
market share or expected market share, any of whathd likely cause harm to our business, operatasglts and financial condition.

If we are unable to integrate skobbler or future quisitions successfully, our operating results apcospects could be harme

We acquired skobbler, which has operations in Gaynaad Romania, in January 2014. In the futuremag make acquisitions to imprc
our navigation services offerings or expand inter mearkets. Our future acquisition strategy will dagd on our ability to identify, negotiate,
complete and integrate acquisitions and, if necgssaobtain satisfactory debt or equity financtogund those acquisitions. Mergers and
acquisitions are inherently risky, and any merger acquisitions we complete may not be succedsfitilire mergers and acquisitions we may
pursue would involve, numerous risks, including fiblllowing:

» difficulties in integrating and managing the ogi®ns, technologies and products of the compaméacquire including skobbler,
which is geographically remote from our existinggoions;

« diversion of our managemestttention from normal daily operation of our Inesis

e our inability to maintain the key business nglaships and the reputations of the businessexg@ire, such as the European
automobile manufacturer and OEM relationships obsier;

* our inability to retain key personnel of the acqdicompan)

e uncertainty of entry into markets in which wevbdimited or no prior experience and in which catifprs have stronger market
positions;

* our dependence on unfamiliar affiliates and custsméthe companies we acqu

< insufficient revenue to offset our increased expsrassociated with acquisitio

< our responsibility for the liabilities of the busises we acquire, including those which we mayntitipate; an
* our inability to maintain internal standards, cotgr procedures and polici

We may be unable to secure the equity or debt igndecessary to finance future acquisitions ongetrat are acceptable to us. If we
finance acquisitions by issuing equity or convéetitbebt securities, our existing stockholders likily experience dilution, and if we finance
future acquisitions with debt funding, we will incimterest expense and may have to comply witmfire covenants and secure that debt
obligation with our assets.

We may be required to recognize a significant charg earnings if our goodwill or other intangiblessets become impaired.

We have recorded goodwill related to our prior asitjons, and may do so in connection with any ptiéd future acquisitions. Goodwill
and other intangible assets with indefinite lives @ot amortized, but are reviewed for impairmemntually or on an interim basis whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying value of these assets may not be reableer Factors that may indicate that the
carrying value of our goodwill or other intangitdlssets may not be recoverable include a persigéetine in our stock price and market
capitalization, reduced future cash flow estimated slower growth rates in our industry. We rhayequired to record a significant charg
our financial statements during the period in whadly impairment of our goodwill or other intangilassets is determined, which would
adversely impact our results of operations.

We may be required to recognize a significant charg earnings if our strategic private equity intagents become impaired

We have in the past and may in the future enterimtestments in businesses in order to complemeatpand our current business or
enter into new markets. Private equity investmangsinherently risky and subject to factors outsifleur control and no assurance can be
given that our previous or future investments Wélsuccessful, will deliver the intended beneéits] will not materially harm our business,
operating results or financial condition. We mayéguired to record a significant charge in ouaficial statements during the period in which
any impairment of our private equity investmentdesermined, which could adversely impact our tssefl operations. We recorded a $0.3
million impairment charge for one cost-method inweent during fiscal 2014.

Our effective tax rate may fluctuate, which couldduce our anticipated income tax benefit in fisc015.

Our effective tax rate could be adversely affedtgdeveral factors, many of which are outside afamntrol. Our effective tax rate
may be affected by the proportion of our revenuekiacome (loss) before taxes in the various doimest international jurisdictions in whi
we operate. Our revenue and operating resultsiffieul to predict and may fluctuate substantiditpm quarter to quarter. We are also subjec
to changing tax laws, regulations and interpretetio multiple
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jurisdictions in which we operate, as well as thguirements of certain tax and other accounting lbolings. Since we must estimate «
annual effective tax rate each quarter based amdbination of actual results and forecasted resdilssibsequent quarters, any significant
change in our actual quarterly or forecasted anrasallts may adversely impact the effective tax fat the period. Our estimated annual
effective tax rate may fluctuate for a variety esons, including:

» changes in forecasted annual operating incomessriy jurisdictior
» changes in relative proportions of revenue andrireor loss before taxes in the various jurisdiciomwhich we operat
« changes to the valuation allowance on net defémedsset

» changes to actual or forecasted permanent difters between book and tax reporting, includingakesffects of purchase
accounting for acquisitions and non-recurring ckarghich may cause fluctuations between report@pgs;

e impacts from any future tax settlements with stideral or foreign tax authoritie

* impacts from changes in tax laws, regulatiorg iaterpretations in the jurisdictions in which weerate, as well as the requirement:
of certain tax rulings;

* impacts from withholding requirements in variowm-U.S. jurisdictions and our ability to recotyde withholdings, which may
depend on how much revenue we have in a partipudadiction to offset the related expenses;

e impacts from acquisitions and related integratictiviies; ol
* impacts from new FASB requiremel

Although we believe our estimates are reasonateylitimate tax outcome may differ from the amouatorded in our financial
statements and may materially affect our finaneallts in the period. In fiscal 2014, we recordedhluation allowance on the majority of our
deferred tax assets, net of liabilities since theets are not more likely than not to be realizskd upon our assessment of all positive and
negative evidence. Realization of deferred taxtassalependent upon future taxable earnings,itiadg of which is uncertain. Due to losse:
fiscal 2014 and expected losses in fiscal 201 5panentially future years in the U.S., we establishefiscal 2014 a valuation allowance on
deferred tax assets in the U.S. that we believienatlbe realized by the carryback provisions dsUax law. U.S. tax law allows for the two-
year carryback of losses and -year carryback of credits to previous tax yeargtvisan generate a tax refund to the extent taxeze paid.
Due to foreign operating losses in previous yeatsantinued foreign earnings volatility, we coma to maintain a full valuation allowance
for our foreign deferred tax assets. In fiscal 2046 expect to realize approximately $1.3 millidrioS. deferred tax assets on the balance
sheet as of June 30, 2014 based upon our abildgriyback losses and credits within the carryhmafiod. In the event deferred tax assets
cannot be realized based upon the ability to caktosses and credits within the carryback peod effective tax rate would be negatively
impacted.

Our wireless carrier customers may change the pnigiand other terms by which they offer our mobilavigation services, which could
result in increased end user turnover, lower revenand adverse effects on our business.

Our wireless carrier customers have significantifigity as to the manner by which our mobile natign services are distributed by
them. They may bundle the product with other appiimis or services such as unlimited data plangerGtheir flexibility in the future they m:
reduce the monthly fees per subscriber that thgyupaf their subscribers do not use our servigesfen as the wireless carriers expect or for
any other reason in order to reduce their costs wireless carrier customers may also decide &erpiices, impose usage caps or discontinue
unlimited data service plans, which could causeenur users who receive our services through thiases po move to a less expensive plan the
does not include our services or terminate thédatianship with the wireless carrier. If imposeldese pricing changes or usage restrictions
could make our mobile navigation services lessaetitre and could result in current end users ali@indamur mobile navigation services. If €
user turnover increased, the number of our endsus®t our revenue would decrease and our busireadd Wwe harmed. We are also require
give AT&T certain most favored customer pricingspecified products and in certain markets. In @@tacumstances this may require us to
reduce the price per end user under the AT&T cehtrehich may adversely impact our revenue.

We rely on our customers for timely and accuratebsariber and vehicle sales information. A failure disruption in the provisioning of this
data to us would materially and adversely affectr@bility to manage our business effectively.

We rely on our wireless carrier customers to hibscribers and collect monthly fees for our moh#igation services, either directly or
through third party service providers. In additiarg rely on our automotive and OEM customers twipleus with reports on the number of
vehicles they sell with our on-board navigatiornvgsss included and to remit royalties for thoseesab us. If our customers or their third party
service providers provide us with inaccurate datexperience errors or
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outages in their own billing and provisioning systewhen performing these services, our revenuelradgss than anticipated or may be
subject to adjustment with the customer. In the, pas have experienced errors in wireless caraporting. If we are unable to identify and
resolve discrepancies in a timely manner, our reganay vary more than anticipated from period taogeand this could harm our business,
operating results and financial condition.

We rely on a proprietary provisioning and reportirgystem to track end user activation, deactivatand usage data and any material
failures in this system could harm our revenue, aft our costs and impair our ability to manage obwsiness effectively

Our provisioning and reporting system that autloaméis end users and tracks the number of end aisgtheir use of our services is a
proprietary and customized system that we develagtednally. Although we believe that the flexibyjliof this service to integrate tightly with
wireless carriers’ reporting and provisioning syssegives us a competitive advantage, we mightriegenue and the ability to manage our
business effectively if the system were to expeeematerial failures or be unable to scale as osinless grows. In addition, we may not be
able to report our financial results on a timelgibaf our customers question the accuracy of ecords or we experience significant
discrepancies between the data generated by ousjmaing and reporting systems and data genetatebeir systems, or if our systems fail
we are unable to report timely and accurate infoionao our third party data providers. The indhitio timely report our financial results
would impair the quality of our financial reportimgd could result in the delisting of our commarckt

If our end users increase their usage of our seméc our operating loss may increase, or we may ineuger losses because we offer t
service as a free offering or usage for paid offiegls outpaces our expectatior

With limited exceptions, fees for the use of ouwsms do not vary depending on whether or howroftie end user uses our services, ant
we offer certain of our mobile phone based navigesiervices for free. Historically, end users usiagain mobile phones or under certain
service plans tended to use our services moredthem end users. We budget and operate our sewcemmking certain assumptions about
usage patterns. If our end users were to furtheease their usage of our services substantialigyaye end users access our services for free
through a freemium model, we would incur additiomghenses to expand our server capacity and patjaadd third party content fees. These
additional costs would harm our operating resutts ffnancial condition.

We rely on third party data and content to providar services and if we were unable to obtain coritahreasonable prices, or at all, our
gross margins and our ability to provide our serg&ewould be harmec

We rely on third party data and content to provide services, including map data, POI, traffic mfiation, gas prices and weather
information. If our suppliers of this data or camttevere to enter into exclusive relationships vather providers of location services or were to
discontinue providing such information and we weamnable to replace them cost effectively, or atalk, ability to provide our services would
be harmed. Our gross margins may also be affetthd cost of third party data and content increasdstantially. Although we have recently
announced efforts to use OSM data to reduce thersgs we incur for third party map data, we maybeauccessful at integrating OSM data
into our products and may experience difficultywéustomer acceptance if the quality of the consugarerated data within OSM is lower
than that of paid maps.

We obtain map data from TomTom and HERE, whichcarapanies owned by our current and potential cogpgTomTom and Nokia,
respectively. Accordingly, these third party data aontent providers may act in a manner thatismour best interest. For example, they |
cease to offer their map and POI data to us.

In the future, we may be unable to obtain cert@oogpding data from Tom Tom and HERE if we ceasegusieir map data and instead
rely on OSM data, in a manner similar to the emgtkobbler products. If we are unable to obtarepintegral data from these providers, we
may not be able to successfully launch OSM-basedymts.

We may not be able to upgrade our navigation sesvitatform to support certain advanced featurdsamctionality without obtaining
technology licenses from third parties. Obtainihgse licenses may be costly and may delay theduntt@n of such features and functionality,
and these licenses may not be available on comatlgrtavorable terms, or at all. The inability téfer advanced features or functionality, or a
delay in our ability to upgrade our navigation $eeg platform, may adversely affect consumer denf@andur navigation services and,
consequently, harm our business.

We also use our proprietary provisioning and repgrsystem to record and report royalties we owthital party providers of content
used by end users in connection with our serviCestain of the third party content providers hawe ight to audit our use of their services
and, if we were found to have under or incorrentlyorted usage, we may be required to pay the plairty content providers for the actual
usage, as well as interest and the cost of the.a\mly significant error in our recording and payrhef royalties to our third party content
providers could have a material and adverse effieciur financial results. We may also incur lossea result of any significant error.
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Network failures, disruptions or capacity constramin our third party data center facilities or inur servers or other cloud servers cot
affect the performance of our navigation serviceschharm our reputation and our revenue.

Our navigation services are provided through a doatimn of our servers, which we house at thirdypdata centers, the public Internet
and the private and wireless networks of our wiglearrier customers. Our operations rely to afgignt degree on the efficient and
uninterrupted operation of the third party datateesnwe use. Our hosted data centers are curfieniyed in third party facilities located in the
San Francisco Bay Area, and we use a cloud prowdhriocations in Oregon and Virginia for certaiavigation and advertising network
services. Depending on the growth rate in the nurabeur end users and their usage of our servite® do not timely complete and open
additional data centers, we may experience capisityes, which could lead to service failures ascugtions. In addition, if we are unable to
secure data center space with appropriate powelingeand bandwidth capacity, we may be unabldficiently and effectively scale our
business to manage the addition of new wirelesgecaustomers, increases in the number of ouruseds or increases in data traffic.

Our data centers are potentially vulnerable to dgma interruption from a variety of sources, intthg fire, flood, earthquake, power
loss, telecommunications or computer systems filouman error, terrorist acts or other eventshdie not yet completed a comprehensive
business continuity plan and there can be no asseithat the measures implemented by us to dateeasures implemented by us in the
future, to manage risks related to network faillwedisruptions in our data centers will be adeguat that the redundancies built into our
servers will work as planned in the event of netfarlures or other disruptions. In particularpié experienced damage or interruptions to ou
data centers in the San Francisco Bay Area outyatnlprovide efficient and uninterrupted operatiaf our services would be significantly
impaired.

We could also experience failures of our data asrdeinterruptions of our services, or other peol in connection with our operations,
as a result of:

« damage to or failure of our computer softwardandware or our connections and outsourced seaviamgements with third
parties;

» errors in the processing of data by our ser

e computer viruses or software defe

» physical or electronic breaks, sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism amdai events; ¢
» errors by our employees or third party service fuens

Poor performance in or disruptions of our servimasld harm our reputation, delay market acceptafoair services and subject us to
liabilities. Our wireless carrier agreements regjuis to meet at least 99.9% operational uptimeirements, excluding scheduled maintenance
periods, or be subjected to penalties.

In addition, if our end user base continues to grditional strain will be placed on our techngiegstems and networks, which may
increase the risk of a network disruption. Any getén a network or system, or other unanticipatethlem that leads to an interruption or
disruption of our navigation services, could havaaterial adverse effect on our operating resultsfanancial condition.

We may not be able to enhance our location servitekeep pace with technological and market devehamts, or develop new location
services in a timely manner or at competitive psc

The market for location services is characterizgddpid technological change, evolving industnndirds, frequent new product
introductions and short product life cycles. Tok@ace with technological developments, satisfydasing customer requirements and ack
product acceptance, our future success dependsawpa@bility to enhance our current navigation sy platform and advertising services
platforms and to continue to develop and introduee navigation services, advertising services dhdrdocation-based product offerings and
enhanced performance features and functionality imely basis at competitive prices. Our inabjlityr technological or other reasons, to
enhance, develop, introduce or deliver compellgnyises and products in a timely manner, or airailesponse to changing market conditions
technologies or consumer expectations could haaatarial adverse effect on our operating resultsaid result in our services becoming
obsolete. Our ability to compete successfully eépend in large measure on our ability to maingaiechnically skilled development and
engineering team and to adapt to technologicalgdsand advances in the industry, including progidor the continued compatibility of our
services platform with evolving industry standaatisl protocols and competitive network operatingremments.
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Our lengthy sales cycle makes it difficult for us predict when we will generate revenue from autdritie manufacturer and OEM
customers.

Being selected to participate and being designtedriaw vehicle models is a lengthy and time consgrprocess and our navigation
services platform may not be included for factagdnd our control if we are participating in thénidde design with an OEM. Because of th
lengthy cycles, we may experience delays fromithe tve begin the sales process and incur increasstd and expenses to obtain a partner &
a customer and integrate our navigation servicatfqum until the time we generate revenue from swichless carrier, OEM or automobile
manufacturer. These delays may make it difficulptedict when we will generate revenue from newtausrs. For example, we announced in
January 2014 that we entered into an agreementanitp five global automobile manufacturer but wendt anticipate generating revenue
related to the sale of vehicles under this agre¢uonatil model year 2017 vehicles come to market.

A large percentage of our research and developmaperations are conducted in China and Romania, amar ability to introduce new
services and support our existing services costeff’ely depends on our ability to manage those otendevelopment sites successfu

Our success depends on our ability to enhancewterd services and develop new services and ptedapidly and cost effectively. A
majority of our research and development persoareein China and Romania. Although we have soughdtain certain key personnel, we
may be unable to retain them over the long-ternaddition, we have been experiencing significantéases in compensation costs in China
due to competitive market conditions for qualifidff, as well as higher risk of employee turnameecertain China markets.

We also expect that we may continue to consolidat&in of our operations or reduce our workfofagd are unable to sustain our
current revenue due to the decline in wirelesdararevenue. These reorganizations or reductiomerae could result in unexpected costs or
delays in product development that could impair ahility to meet market windows or cause us todoreertain new product opportunities.

Because our long term success depends on our aghiiditincrease the number of end users located alasif the United States, our busine
will be susceptible to risks associated with intational operations.

As of June 30, 2014 , we had international openatia China, Mexico, Brazil, Germany and Romaniar €xperience with wireless
carriers, automobile manufacturers and OEMs anériiders outside the United States is limited. @uenue from customers in the United
States comprised 94% and 92% of our total reveoufistal 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our limieegberience in operating our business
outside the United States increases the risk timatarrent and future international expansion é$fonay not be successful. In particular, our
business model may not be successful in parti@gantries or regions outside the United Statesdasons that we currently do not anticipate.
In addition, conducting international operationbjeats us to risks that we have not generally fanede United States. These include:

« fluctuations in currency exchange ra
e unexpected changes in foreign regulatory requires,
« difficulties in managing the staffing of remote ogions

» potentially adverse tax consequences, incluthirgcomplexities of foreign value added tax systdorgign tax withholding,
restrictions on the repatriation of earnings anahgfes in tax rates;

« dependence on foreign wireless carriers with difieépricing model:

e roaming charges to end us:

e availability of reliable mobile networks in thoseuntries

* requirements that we comply with local telecommatian regulations and automobile hands free lawkase countrie
« the burdens of complying with a wide variety ofdign laws and different legal standa

e increased financial accounting and reporting busderd complexitie

e political, social and economic instability in sojnesdictions

e terrorist attacks and security concerns in genara

* reduced or varied protection for intellectual pnapeights in some countrie

The occurrence of any one of these risks could thegha affect our international business and, copsatly, our operating results.
Additionally, operating in international marketgjuéres significant management attention and firarreisources. We cannot be certain that th
investment and additional resources required @béish, acquire or integrate operations in othemtges will produce desired levels of reve
or profitability and we may incur larger lossesaa®sult.
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We rely on our management team and need specialpmtonnel to grow our business, and the loss oé @m more key employees or our
inability to attract and retain qualified personnelould harm our business.

Our success and future growth depend on the skitisking relationships and continued services ofraanagement team. Our future
performance will depend on our ability to contirtagetain our senior management, particularly eghowth areas of our business, such as
advertising.

Our future success also will depend on our ahititattract, retain and motivate highly skilled memsel in the United States and
internationally. All of our U.S. employees work fes on an at will basis. Competition for highlylld personnel is intense, particularly in the
software industry and for persons with experienith 8PS and location services. The high degre@uofpetition for personnel we experience
has resulted in and may also continue to resuktarincurrence of significantly higher compensatosts to attract, hire and retain employees.
We have from time to time experienced, and we ejgecontinue to experience, difficulty in attrangi hiring and retaining highly skilled
employees with appropriate qualifications. In aiddit existing employees often consider the valuthefstock awards they receive in
connection with their employment. If our stock grigerforms poorly, it may adversely affect our ipto retain highly skilled employees. Our
inability to attract and retain the necessary pamsbcould adversely affect our business and fuguogith prospects.

We may be required to incur unanticipated capitadpenditures.
Circumstances may arise that require us to maketigifzated capital expenditures, including:
* the implementation of our equipment at new datdersrand expansion of our operations at data cg
» the replacement of outdated or failing equipment
» the acquisition of key technologies to supportxgand our products and servic

We rely on network infrastructures provided by owireless carrier customers and mobile phones foe tthelivery of our mobile navigation
services to end user

We generally provide our navigation services fraim @wn servers, which require close integratiorhwlite wireless carriers’ networks.
We may be unable to provide high quality serviédlsa wireless carriers’ networks perform poorlyeaperience delayed response times. Our
future success will depend on the availability godlity of our wireless carrier customers’ netwoirkshe United States and abroad to run our
mobile navigation services. This includes deployh@em maintenance of reliable networks with theespelata capacity and security necessar
to provide reliable wireless communications servid®e do not establish or maintain these wirele$aorks and have no control over
interruptions or failures in the deployment and memance by wireless carrier customers of theiwoilt infrastructure. In addition, these
wireless network infrastructures may be unableufipsrt the demands placed on them if the numbsule$cribers increases, or if existing or
future subscribers increase their use of limiteddwadth. Market acceptance of our mobile navigaservices will depend in part on the que
of these wireless networks and the ability of oireless carrier customers to effectively managé théscribers’ expectations.

Wireless communications have experienced a vaoietytages and other delays as a result of infrestre and equipment failures and
could face outages and delays in the future. Thateges and delays could affect our ability to gievour navigation services successfully. In
addition, changes by a wireless carrier to its petinfrastructure may interfere with the integoatiof our servers with their network and
delivery of our navigation services and may caumkbesers to lose functionality for services theyehalready purchased. Any of the foregoing
could harm our business, operating results anadiaécondition.

We cannot control the quality standards of our lese carrier customers, their mobile phone progided other technology customers.
We cannot guarantee that the mobile phones ardrfreeerrors or defects. If errors or defects odounobile phones or services offered by
wireless carrier customers, it could result in eoners terminating our services, damage to our atjout increased customer service and
support costs, warranty claims, lost revenue andrtéd development resources, any of which cowletiaely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

Mergers, consolidations or other strategic transixcts in the wireless communications industry couldaken our competitive positio
reduce the number of our map providers and adveysaffect our business.

The mapping data industry continues to experienosdidation. Should one of our map providers ctidate or enter into an alliance
with another navigation provider, this could havwaaterial adverse impact on our business. Curreitly of our map suppliers are owned by
competitors in the navigation space and recen#yntiobile phone business of Nokia, which had its aawvigation service and owns HERE,
was acquired by Microsoft. Such a consolidation wayse us to lose a map supplier or require usctease the royalties we pay to map
vendors as a result of enhanced supplier leveraigieh would have a negative effect on our busindss may be unable to replace our map
suppliers, were we to lose a map supplier, andahmining map supplier may increase license feeadtlition, as we continue to use more
OSM-based maps and no longer
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purchase maps from those suppliers, we may be emalpurchase other data that is integral to ovigaéion products from our existing map
suppliers.

Changes in business direction and market conditiamuld lead to charges related to structural reorgzation and discontinuation of
certain products or services, which may adversdfget our financial results.

In response to changing market conditions and ¢s@el to focus on new and more potentially attvactipportunities, we may be requi
to strategically realign our resources and congiglgtructuring, eliminating, or otherwise exitingrimin business activities. For example, in
April 2013, we sold our enterprise business toira tharty, which resulted in a net gain to us Habaequired us to provide transition services
to the buyer in the fourth quarter of fiscal 20lBthe fourth quarters of fiscal 2013 and 2014grder to better align and focus our resource
initiated restructuring plans resulting in reduosaf approximately 83 and 108 full-time positiorespectively, and restructuring charges of
$1.5 million and $2.4 million, respectively, reldte severance and benefits for the positions sled. Any decision to reduce investment in,
dispose of, or otherwise exit business activitiegy mesult in the recording of special charges, asctvorkforce reduction and excessive facility
space costs.

Risks related to our intellectual property and relgtion

We operate in an industry with extensive intelleatyproperty litigation. Claims of infringement agast us, our customers, or other business
partners may cause our business, operating resats financial condition to suffer

Our commercial success depends in part upon ugastmers and our customers not infringing intéllatproperty rights owned by oth
and being able to resolve claims of intellectualpgarty infringement without major financial expetudés and/or need to alter our technologies
or cease certain activities. We operate in an imgwgith extensive intellectual property litigati@md it is not uncommon for our wireless
carrier customers, handset manufacturing partaetsmobile manufacturers and OEMs and competitobetinvolved in infringement lawsu
by or against third parties. Many industry partaips that own, or claim to own, intellectual prapexggressively assert their rights, and our
customers and other business partners, who we ageegtain circumstances to indemnify for intellead property infringement claims related
to our services, are often targets of such assertiWe cannot determine with certainty whetherexigting or future third party intellectual
property rights would require us to alter our temlbgies, obtain licenses or cease certain actdvitie

We have received, and may in the future receiamd from third parties alleging infringement aritles related claims. As of the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we were named dsfandant in several cases alleging that our @esvnfringe other parties' patents, as
well as other matters. See Part |, Iltem 3, “LegatPedings,” for a description of these matterg@sEhcases and future litigation may make it
necessary to defend ourselves and our customerstaedbusiness partners by determining the saaferceability and validity of third party
proprietary rights or to establish our proprietaghts. Some of our competitors may have substintieeater resources than we do and ma
able to sustain the costs of complex intellectuapprty litigation to a greater degree and for lemgeriods of time than we could. In addition,
patent holding companies that focus solely on etitrg royalties and settlements by enforcing patigits may target us, our wireless carrier
customers or our other business partners. Thespartgs typically have little or no product reveraunel therefore our patents may provide |
or no deterrence against such companies filingnpatéingement lawsuits against us. Regardlesstadther claims that we are infringing
patents or other intellectual property rights hamg merit, these claims are time consuming andyctsevaluate and defend and could:

» adversely affect our relationships with our currentuture customers and other business par

e cause delays or stoppages in the shipment efhiéglenabled or preloaded mobile phones or vehigtesause us to modify or
suspend the provision of our navigation services;

* cause us to incur significant expenses in defendiighs brought against our customers, other basipartners or t
« divert management's attention and resou

e subject us to significant damages or settlem

* require us to enter into settlements, royalty egnising agreements on unfavorable terrr

e require us or our business partners to cease rettvities and/or modify our products or servi

In addition to liability for monetary damages agsins or, in certain circumstances, our custonveegnay be prohibited from developil
commercializing or continuing to provide certainoofr navigation services unless we obtain licefizes the holders of the patents or other
intellectual property rights. We cannot assure @t we will be able to obtain any such licenses@mmercially reasonable terms, or at all. If
we do not obtain such licenses, our business, tipgnasults and financial condition could be miatér adversely affected and we could, for
example, be required to cease offering our
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navigation services or be required to materialtgrabur navigation services, which could involvéstantial costs and time to develop.

Indemnity provisions in various agreements potetifaexpose us to substantial liability for intellégal property infringement, damage
caused by defective software and other losses.

Our agreements with our customers include indewatifin provisions. We agree to indemnify them @sskes suffered or incurred in
connection with our navigation services or produictsiuding as a result of intellectual propertfrimgement, damages caused by defects and
damages caused by viruses, worms and other malisiwitware. The term of these indemnity provisigngenerally perpetual after execution
of the corresponding agreement, and the maximuengiat amount of future payments we could be rexgliio make under these
indemnification provisions is generally substanéiatl may be unlimited. In addition, some of thegg@ements permit our indemnitees to
terminate their agreements with us if they deteentirat the use of our navigation services or prtedindringes third party intellectual property
rights.

We have received, and expect to receive in thedutiemands for indemnification under these agreesn&hese demands can be very
expensive to settle or defend, and we have in&lséipcurred substantial legal fees and settlem@sts in connection with certain of these
indemnity demands. Furthermore, we have been edtily several customers that they have been nasnéef@ndants in certain patent
infringement cases for which they may seek indeiwatibn from us. See the section entitled “Legald@edings.” These indemnity demands
remain outstanding and unresolved as of the dafeoform 10-K. Large future indemnity paymentd associated legal fees and expenses,
including potential indemnity payments and legalsfand expenses relating to the current or futotiications, could materially harm our
business, operating results and financial condition

We may in the future agree to defend and indenmifycustomers in connection with the pending nedifons or future demands,
irrespective of whether we believe that we haveladigation to indemnify them or whether we beligkiat our services and products infringe
the asserted intellectual property rights. Alteiredy, we may reject certain of our customers’ imihity demands, which may lead to disputes
with our customers and may negatively impact olati@nships with them or result in litigation agstirus. Our customers may also claim that
any rejection of their indemnity demands const#gtenaterial breach of our agreements with thelowadg them to terminate such
agreements. Our agreements with certain customaysom terminated in the event an infringement clisimade against us and it is reasoni
determined that there is a possibility our techgglor services infringed upon a third party’s righf, as a result of indemnity demands, we
make substantial payments, our relationships withcostomers are negatively impacted or if anywfaustomer agreements is terminated,
business, operating results and financial conditimnd be materially adversely affected. See Rdréin 3, “Legal Proceedings.”

The occurrence or perception of a security breaahdisclosure of confidential information could harnour business.

Our products and services include the transmismnshstorage of certain personal, private and cenfidl information primarily related
the location of our end users. If there is a séglieach or if there is an inappropriate disclesefrany of these types of information, we could
be exposed to investigations, litigation, fines paedalties. Remediation of and liability for logsnwisappropriation of end user or employee
personal information could have a material adveffext on our business and financial results. Ef/ere were not held liable for such event, a
security breach or inappropriate disclosure of quas private or confidential information could heour reputation and our relationships with
current and potential end users. Even the peraepfia security risk could inhibit market accep&iof our navigation services. In addition, we
may be required to invest additional resourcegttept against damages caused by any actual agipedcdisruptions of our navigation
services or security breaches.

Recent United States Supreme Court cases andliidpeion have addressed issues relating to pingithformation regarding the
location of a vehicle or mobile device to law erfEment agencies without a warrant. The law relededobile phones and integrated GPS
tracking in a vehicle remains unsettled and we bmgubjected to different standards in differensglictions. We may incur substantial cos
we are required to litigate whether an individukdtsation can be disclosed without a warrant, whichld harm our operating results. We may
also be required to provide information about theation of an end user’'s mobile phone to governraatttorities, which could result in public
perception that we are providing the governmenth witelligence information and deter some end uera using our services. Any of these
developments could harm our business.

Changes in government regulation of the wirelessvmounications, the automobile and mobile advertisimglustries may adversely affect
our business.

It is possible that a number of laws and regulatioray be adopted in the United States and elsewinatreould restrict the wireless
communications industry, further regulate the autbite industry or impair the mobile advertising irstry, including laws and regulations
regarding lawful interception of personal data,dsfree use of mobile phones or navigation servigdsn autos or the control of such use,
privacy, taxation, content suitability, copyrighitdaantitrust. Furthermore, the growth and develagtroéelectronic storage of personal
information may prompt calls for more stringent somer protection
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laws that may impose additional burdens on compgasueh as ours that store personal informationakifigipate that regulation of the
industries in which our products and services aeslwill increase and that we will be required eévate legal and other resources to address
this regulation. Changes in current laws or reguieat or the imposition of new laws and regulationthe United States or elsewhere regarding
the wireless communications or automobile industniy make operation more costly, and may matgrietluce our ability to increase or
maintain sales of our products and services.

We may become subject to significant product lidlgilcosts.

If our navigation services or products contain defethere are errors in the maps supplied by thartly map providers or if our end users
do not heed our warnings about the proper useesktiproducts, collisions or accidents could ocesulting in property damage, personal
injury or death. If any of these events occurscaeld be subject to significant liability for persd injury and property damage and under
certain circumstances could be subject to a judgrfeepunitive damages. We maintain limited insur@against accident related risks
involving our products. However, we cannot assune that this insurance would be sufficient to caber cost of damages to others or will
continue to be available at commercially reasonedties. In addition, we may be named as a defenlditigation by consumers individually
or on behalf of a class if their handsets or autafes suffer problems from software downloads fraun customers. If we are unable to obtain
indemnification from our customer for any damagekegal fees we may incur in connection with suochmplaints, our financial position may
be adversely impacted. In addition, insurance ayegenerally will not cover awards of punitive @da@s and may not cover the cost of
associated legal fees and defense costs. If wenatdle to maintain sufficient insurance to covardpict liability costs or if our insurance
coverage does not cover an award, our business\dial condition and results of operations couladieersely affected.

Government regulation designed to protect end ugdvacy may make it difficult for us to provide owgervices or adopt advertising based
revenue models.

We transmit and store a large volume of persoratiimation in the course of providing our produatsl &ervices. This information is
increasingly subject to legislation and regulationsumerous jurisdictions around the world. Thizgrnment action is typically intended to
protect the privacy and security of personal infation that is collected, stored and transmittedrifrom the governing jurisdiction.

Legislation may also be adopted in various jurigdits that prohibits use of personal informatiod aearch histories to target end users
with tailored advertising, or provide advertisirtigall. Although our advertising revenue to dateds significant, we anticipate we will continue
to grow advertising revenue in the future to im@@verage revenue per user in certain markets.

We could be adversely affected if domestic or imiional legislation or regulations are expandektuire changes in our business
practices or if governing jurisdictions interpretimplement their legislation or regulations in wahat negatively affect our business. For
example, the USA PATRIOT Act provides certain rigtd U.S. law enforcement authorities to obtairspeal information in the control of
U.S. persons and entities without notifying theeeffiéd individuals. If we are required to allocatgmsicant resources to modify the delivery of
our services to enable enhanced legal intercepfitime personal information that we transmit armtestour results of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

In addition, because various foreign jurisdictitiase different laws and regulations concerningstbeage and transmission of personal
information, we may face unknown requirements fitse compliance challenges in new internationaketarthat we seek to enter. Such
variation could subject us to costs, delayed serldanches, liabilities or negative publicity tlieauld impair our ability to expand our
operations into some countries and therefore lmitfuture growth.

As privacy and data protection have become morsitbanissues, we may also become exposed to patéabilities as a result of
differing views on the privacy of personal infornagit These and other privacy concerns could adlyenmsgact our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual proggrand proprietary rights, our competitive positiand our business could be harme

We rely primarily on a combination of patent lawsdemark laws, copyright laws, trade secrets,identfiality procedures and
contractual provisions to protect our proprietagtinology. However, our issued patents and anydyiatents that may issue may not survive
a legal challenge to their scope, validity or eoéability, or provide significant protection for.(Ehe failure of our patents to adequately prc
our technology might make it easier for our contpetito offer similar products or technologiesatidition, patents may not issue from any of
our current or any future applications.

Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual peaty is difficult and costly. The steps we haveetato protect our proprietary rights
may not be adequate to prevent misappropriatiamuofntellectual property. We may not be able ttedeunauthorized use of, or take
appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectual priyprights. Our competitors may also independetilyelop similar technology. In addition,
the laws of many countries do not protect our gedary rights to as great an extent as do the t#tise United States. Any failure by us to
meaningfully protect our intellectual property adul
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result in competitors offering products that inamagte our most technologically advanced featurésgtwcould seriously reduce demand for
navigation services. In addition, we may in thaifatneed to initiate infringement claims or litigat Litigation, whether we are a plaintiff or a
defendant, can be expensive, time consuming anddirayt the efforts of our technical staff and mgerdal personnel, which could harm our
business, whether or not such litigation resulta determination favorable to us.

Confidentiality agreements with employees and otharay not adequately prevent disclosure of our &amkcrets and other proprietary
information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our proprietary technology, including greprietary software components
our navigation services and related processegder @o protect our proprietary technology and peses, we rely in part on confidentiality
agreements with our employees, licensees, indepérdatractors and other advisors. These agreemeysot effectively prevent disclosure
of our confidential information and may not provigie adequate remedy in the event of unauthorizadadiure of our confidential information.
In addition, others may independently discoverdraécrets and proprietary information, and in stages we could not assert any trade secre
rights against such parties. Costly and time comsgiitigation could be necessary to enforce anémeine the scope of our proprietary rights,
and failure to obtain or maintain trade secretgution could adversely affect our competitive bassposition.

We use open source software in our navigation sesvplatform and client applications and may usesmpen source software in the
future. Use of open source software may subjechauigation services platform and client applicasito general release or require us to re-
engineer our navigation services platform and tkgaplications, which may cause harm to our businésm time to time, there have been
claims challenging the ownership of open sourcensot against companies that incorporate open s@afitware into their products. As a
result, we could be subject to suits by partiesrdtay ownership of what we believe to be open sewaftware. Some open source licenses
contain requirements that we make available sotwde for modifications or derivative works we cesbfised upon the open source software
and that we license such modifications or derivatisorks under the terms of a particular open solizease or other license granting third
parties certain rights of further use. If we congbaur proprietary software products with open sewaftware in a certain manner, we could,
under certain of the open source licenses, be nedjti release our proprietary source code. Intimthdio risks related to license requirements,
usage of open source software can lead to grdsksrthan use of third party commercial softwaseppen source licensors generally do not
provide warranties or controls on origin of theta@fre. Open source license terms may be ambigualisany of the risks associated with
usage of open source cannot be eliminated, andl cibulot properly addressed, negatively affect lousiness. If we were found to have
inappropriately used open source software, we neagguired to release our proprietary source aedengineer our navigation services
platform and client applications, discontinue thkef our service in the event re-engineering oabe accomplished on a timely basis or take
other remedial action that may divert resourcesydwam our development efforts, any of which coatilersely affect our business, operating
results and financial condition.

Risks related to being a publicly traded companydamlding our common stock

As a public company, we are obligated to develod amintain effective internal control over financlaeporting. We may not alway
complete our assessment of the effectiveness ofilmi@rnal control over financial reporting in a tirely manner, or such internal control mi
not be determined to be effective, which may adebraffect investor confidence in our company aras a result, the value of our common
stock.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that we test dernal control over financial reporting and discl@scontrols and procedures annually
For example, as of June 30, 2014, we performeeé@syand process evaluation and testing of our iatemwntrol over financial reporting to
allow management and our independent registerelicpadrounting firm to report on the effectivene$®ur internal control over financial
reporting, as required by Section 404 of the Sagbadxley Act. Our compliance with Section 404 regsithat we incur substantial expense
and expend significant management time on compdiaetated issues. Moreover, if we are not ableotoly with the requirements of Section
404 in the future, or if we or our independent ségjied public accounting firm identify deficienciasour internal control over financial
reporting that are deemed to be material weaknggsemarket price of our stock may decline anccanddd be subject to sanctions or
investigations by the NASDAQ Global Market, the S&ther regulatory authorities, which would regusignificant additional financial and
management resources.

We will incur continued high costs and demands uporanagement as a result of complying with the laargl regulations affecting public
companies, which could harm our operating results.

As a public company, we incur significant legalc@anting, investor relations and other expensesyding costs associated with public
company reporting requirements. We also have irduaind will incur costs associated with currenpooaite governance requirements,
including requirements under Section 404 and gihevisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well dssrimplemented by the SEC and the
stock exchange on which our common stock is tradéglare generally not eligible to report under mludisclosure requirements or benefit
from longer phase in periods for “emerging growth
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companies” as such term is defined in the Jump&tartBusiness Act of 2012. The expenses incurrepiutjic companies for reporting and
corporate governance purposes have increased dcallyabver the past several years. We expect thdss and regulations to continue to
impact our legal and financial compliance costsstaiitially and to make some activities more timescmning and costly. We are unable
currently to estimate these costs with any degfeemainty. We also expect that, over time, it fb@ymore expensive for us to obtain director
and officer liability insurance. As a result, it ynlae more difficult for us to attract and retairatified individuals to serve on our board of
directors or as our executive officers if we canpratvide a level of insurance coverage that thdigbe is adequate.

Regulations relating to offshore investment acties by residents of China may limit our ability tecquire Chinese companies and cot
adversely affect our business.

In October 2005, SAFE, a Chinese government aggmoymulgated “Relevant Issues Concerning ForeigtchBrge Control on Domestic
Residents’ Corporate Financing and Roundtrip Inmesit Through Offshore Special Purpose VehiclesCiocular 75, that states that if
Chinese residents use assets or equity interesiteimChinese entities as capital contributionegtablish offshore companies or inject asse
equity interests of their Chinese entities intasbffre companies to raise capital overseas, theynegister with local SAFE branches with
respect to their overseas investments in offshongpanies. They must also file amendments to tegistrations if their offshore companies
experience material events involving capital vaiatsuch as changes in share capital, share ér@nsfiergers and acquisitions, spinoff
transactions, long term equity or debt investmentsses of assets in China to guarantee offshdigations. Under this regulation, their failt
to comply with the registration procedures settfamtsuch regulation may result in restrictionsgeimposed on the foreign exchange activi
of the relevant Chinese entity, including restans on the payment of dividends and other distidiostto its offshore parent, as well as
restrictions on the capital inflow from the offskarntity to the Chinese entity.

We attempt to comply, and attempt to ensure thastmekholders who are subject to Circular 75 aheiorelated rules comply, with the
relevant requirements. However, we cannot provideassurances that all of our stockholders whdChiaese residents have complied or will
comply with our request to make or obtain any atile registrations or comply with other requiretserquired by Circular 75 or other
related rules. Any future failure by any of ourcitbolders who is a Chinese resident, or contrdded Chinese resident, to comply with
relevant requirements under this regulation coulgext us to fines or sanctions imposed by the €@rgovernment, including restrictions on
our Chinese subsidiary’s ability to pay dividendsrake distributions to us.

If securities analysts do not publish research @ports about our business or if they publish negatievaluations of our stock, the price
our stock could decline.

We expect that the trading price for our commouwlstwill be affected by any research or reports thdtistry or financial analysts publi
about us or our business. If one or more of théyatsawho may elect to cover us downgrade theiluatens of our stock, the price of our
stock could decline. For example, in late July 2G@llowing our earnings release for the three rherand fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,
several financial analysts published research tepawering their price targets of our stock. Afterr announcement and the publication of
these reports, our stock price fell more than 40%ne or more of these analysts cease coveragarafompany, our stock may lose visibility
in the market, which in turn could cause its ptwelecline. As of June 30, 2014, only one reseanztyst published reports regarding our
company. In addition, if our stock were to trad@m@tes below $5.00 per share in the future, fifgranalysts may terminate coverage of our
company due to internal policies within their intrasnt banks, which could result in further stocic@ideclines.

Our stock price has fluctuated significantly and maontinue to fluctuate in the future.

Our common stock was sold in our IPO at $8.00 pares Although our common stock has traded at prasehigh as $22.07 per share, it
has also traded at prices as low as $4.65 ancehédsd to have significant downward and upward priogements in a relatively short time
period. Future fluctuations or declines in the imgdorice of our common stock may result from a bemof events or factors, including those
discussed in the preceding risk factors relatinguiooperations, as well as:

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiagults
» changes in the financial projections we may protathe public or our failure to meet these prof;

e announcements by us or our competitors of sizarit technical innovations, relationship changéh ey customers,
acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vergugapital raising activities or capital commitngnt

» the publics response to our press releases or other pulllmuanements, including our filings with the S
» lawsuits threatened or filed against us;

» large distributions of our common stock by sigrifit stockholders to limited partners or others whmediately resell the shar
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General market conditions and domestic or inteonali macroeconomic factors unrelated to our peréorre, such as the continuing
unprecedented volatility in the financial marketsy also affect our stock price. For these reasomestors should not rely on recent trends tc
predict future stock prices or financial resultszdstors in our common stock may not be able tpadie of the shares they purchased at prices
above the IPO price, or, depending on market cimdit at all.

In addition, if the market price of our common $tdalls below $5.00 per share for an extended peofctime, under stock exchange
rules, our stockholders will not be able to usehssltares as collateral for borrowing in margin acts. Further, certain institutional investors
are restricted from investing in shares priced Wwe$6.00 per share. This inability to use sharesunfcommon stock as collateral and the
inability of certain institutional investors to iest in our shares may depress demand and leaksoadasuch shares creating downward
pressure on and increased volatility in the mapkiee of our common stock.

Recently, the market price for our common stocktheded only slightly above the cash value of mammon stock. If investors do not
value our company as an ongoing business and af it for the cash on our balance sheet, oukgidce may decline if we continue to
incur net losses and use our cash to fund opegtile may also attract investors who are lookimgsFmrt-term gains in our shares rather that
being interested in our long-term outlook. As autgeghe price of our common stock may be volatile.

The concentration of ownership of our capital stotiknits your ability to influence corporate matters

Our executive officers, directors, current 5% aajer stockholders and entities affiliated withntHeeneficially owned (as determined in
accordance with the rules of the SEC) approximed8l$3% of our common stock outstanding as of Bn&014 . This significant
concentration of share ownership may adverselyctffe trading price for our common stock becansestors often perceive disadvantages i
owning stock in companies with controlling stocldls. Also, these stockholders, acting togethdrpwiable to control our management and
affairs and matters requiring stockholder approwaluding the election of directors and the appitaf significant corporate transactions, suct
as mergers, consolidations or the sale of subathndill of our assets. Consequently, this conaittn of ownership may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control, inahgda merger, consolidation or other business coatioim involving us, or discouraging a
potential acquirer from making a tender offer drestvise attempting to obtain control, even if tblagnge of control would benefit our other
stockholders.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Facilities

Our corporate headquarters are located at 950 Dgn€&WDrive, Sunnyvale, California in an office cwtigig of approximately 175,000

square feet pursuant to a lease that expires ireer 2019. This headquarters facility houses thienity of our U.S. research and
development, support, marketing and general andrastnative personnel. We lease approximately 48 &fuare feet of space in Shanghai,
China for our research and development, salesgoubst operations pursuant to leases expiring pte®eber 2014 and September 2016,
approximately 19,000 square feet in Xi'an, Chirta,research and development operations pursudeases expiring in September 2014 and
October 2014, and as well as approximately 11,g0@ feet in Cluj, Romania, for research and agraknt operations pursuant to a lease
that expires in December 2014. We lease approxlynaf000 square feet in Culver City, California fesearch and development and sales
and marketing operations. We also lease officeespétess than 3,000 square feet each in Northlleshington; Reston, Virginia; Southfield,
Michigan; Boston, Massachusetts; Chicago, lllindlsw York, New York; Berlin, Germany; and Sdo Palrazil for our sales, marketing a
business development personnel located in thoses dreaddition to our headquarters and otheresdfigve lease data center space in Sunn
and Santa Clara, California. We believe our curfaditities will be adequate or that additional epavill be available on commercially
reasonable terms for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
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From time to time, we may be subject to legal pediiegs and claims in the ordinary course of businég have received, and may in
future continue to receive, claims from third pestasserting infringement of their intellectualgedy rights. Future litigation may be neces:
to defend ourselves and our customers by determthia scope, enforceability and validity of thirarty proprietary rights or to establish our
proprietary rights. From time to time we also mayslibject to claims from our third party contertviders that we owe them additional
royalties and interest, which claims may resulitigation if we and the third party content progidare unable to resolve the matter. There cal
be no assurance with respect to the outcome oftamgnt or future litigation brought against ugparsuant to which we have indemnification
obligations and the outcome could have a matetiadise impact on our business, operating resutt§iaancial condition.

On December 31, 2009, Vehicle IP, LLC, or Vehidk filed a patent infringement lawsuit againstrughie U.S. District Court for the
District of Delaware, seeking monetary damages &l expenses and other relief. Verizon WirelasSerizon, was named as a defendan
in the Vehicle IP litigation based on the VZ Nauigaproduct and has demanded that we indemnifydafend Verizon against Vehicle IP. At
this time, we have not agreed to defend or indeyrwérizon. AT&T was also named as a co-defendattiénVehicle IP litigation based on the
AT&T Navigator and Telenav Track products. AT&T Hasdered the defense of the litigation to us aadire defending the case on behalf of
AT&T. After the Court issued its claim constructionling the parties agreed to focus on early surgriigment motions, and asked the Court
to postpone the rest of the case schedule penagéngesolution of these potentially case-dispositivgions. The defendants filed motions for
summary judgment of noninfringement. On April 1013 the Court granted AT&T and our motion for sumyrjadgment of noninfringement.
While the Court's ruling appears to be dispositif/plaintiff's claims, plaintiff is appealing thésttrict court's claim construction and summary
judgment ruling. The appeal is currently ongoinghie U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circtlig oral argument was held on April :
2014. Due to the uncertainties related to litigatiwe are unable to evaluate the likelihood ofezith favorable or unfavorable outcome. We
believe that it is reasonably possible that we inlur a loss; however, we cannot currently estinzatange of any possible losses we may
experience in connection with this case. Accordingle are unable at this time to estimate the &ffetthis lawsuit on our financial condition,
results of operations, or cash flows.

On April 30, 2010, Traffic Information, LLC filed patent infringement lawsuit against us in the WBtrict Court for the Eastern
District of Texas, seeking monetary damages, fadsapenses, and other relief. The patent at issisesubject to reexamination by the PTO
and the reexamined claims were found invalid. Rifaiappealed this finding and on May 30, 2013, Batent Trial and Appeal Board, or
PTAB, confirmed the invalidity of these claims. iAtéf filed a request for reconsideration of thiscision with the PTAB, which was denied
January 13, 2014. In light of the reexamination pladhtiff's appeal of the reexamination findingse Court stayed the case and the case will
remains stayed and administratively closed unlesplaintiff obtains a favorable decision on appesbre the PTAB or Federal Circuit Court
of Appeals. On March 12, 2014, Traffic Informatifiled an appeal with the U.S. Appeals Court for egleral Circuit. Due to the preliminary
status of the lawsuit and uncertainties relatddig@mtion, we are unable to evaluate the likelilaf either a favorable or unfavorable outcome
We believe that it is reasonably possible that wWeincur a loss; however, we cannot currently mstie a range of any possible losses we may
experience in connection with this case. Accordingle are unable at this time to estimate the &ffetthis complaint on our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

In addition, we have received, and expect to comtito receive, demands for indemnification from customers, which demands can be
very expensive to settle or defend, and we havedpast offered to contribute to settlement am®antl incurred legal fees in connection witf
certain of these indemnity demands. A number adgtiedemnity demands, including demands relatingetading litigation, remain
outstanding and unresolved as of the date of tisFA.0-K. Furthermore, in response to these demaedway be required to assume control
of and bear all costs associated with the defehearacustomers in compliance with our contract@hmitments. At this time, we are not a
party to the following cases; however our custonhenge requested that we indemnify them in conneatiibh such cases:

In 2008, Alltel, AT&T, Sprint and T-Mobile USA, or-Mobile, each demanded that we indemnify and dittbem against patent
infringement lawsuits brought by patent holding pamies EMSAT Advanced Geo-Location Technology LIo@ &ocation Based Services
LLC (collectively, “EMSAT") in the U.S. District Cart for the Northern District of Ohio. After T-Mdlei also sought indemnification and
defense from Google, Inc., Google intervened inTtidobile litigation. After claim construction and eééd motion practice, EMSAT agreec
dismiss all claims against Google in at least tHddbile suit, and in March 2011, EMSAT and AT&T et their claims. By March 2011, all
the EMSAT cases were either dismissed or stayelbwlie PTO completed its reexamination of the Wglidf the patents at issue. The PTO
concluded its reexamination of two of the patentsuit, confirming the validity of only two of thasserted claims from those patents. At this
time, all patent claims that EMSAT alleged to bieinged by the Telenav GPS Navigator product haaenicancelled during reexamination. In
the suits against Mobile, Alltel and Sprint, EMSAT has amended itieghtions to remove allegations of infringementhaf patent claims th,
were cancelled during reexamination. Accordinghg €ourt has lifted the stays in those suits aadrihtters are ongoing. However, in the T-
Mobile suit, EMSAT and T-Mobile have stipulatedaalismissal of the case. Due to
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uncertainties related to litigation, we are unablevaluate the likelihood of either a favorablainofavorable outcome. We have arbitrated with
and compensated one carrier for our defense oldiggmtwithout a negative effect on our financiahdibion, results of operations, or cash flc
We have not yet determined the extent of our indécation and defense obligations to the other lgse carriers. We believe that it is
reasonably possible that we will incur additiorad; however, we cannot currently estimate a rahgéher possible losses we may experienc
in connection with this case. Accordingly, we anable at this time to estimate the overall effedthese cases on our financial condition,
results of operations, or cash flows.

In March 2009, AT&T demanded that we indemnify aledlend them against a patent infringement lawsoight by Tendler Cellular of
Texas LLC, or Tendler, in the U.S. District Cowt the Eastern District of Texas. In June 2010, ATsettled its claims with Tendler and we
came to an agreement with AT&T as to the extemtusfcontribution towards AT&T's settlement and émeount of our contribution was not
material; however, there continues to be a disagee¢ as to whether any additional amounts are dov@d &T for legal fees and expenses
related to the defense of the matter. We belieatittis reasonably possible that we will incur diddal loss; however, we cannot currently
estimate a range of other possible losses we nyagriexce in connection with this case. Accordinglg,are unable at this time to estimate the
overall effects on our financial condition, resudfsoperations, or cash flows.

While we presently believe that the ultimate outeashthese proceedings, individually and in theraggte, will not materially harm our
financial position, cash flows or overall trendg@sults of operations, legal proceedings are stibjeinherent uncertainties and unfavorable
rulings could occur. Nevertheless, were unfavoréibbd outcomes to occur, there exists the possitif a material adverse impact on our
business, financial position, cash flows or overalhds in results of operations.

Large future indemnity payments and associated fega and expenses, including potential indempétyments and legal fees and
expenses relating to our wireless carrier and athstomers’ indemnity demands with respect to pantiiigation, could materially harm our
business, operating results and financial conditi@hen we believe a loss or a cost of indemnifozats probable and can be reasonably
estimated, we accrue the estimated loss or castlefnification in our consolidated financial staents. Where the outcome of these matters
is not determinable, we do not make a provisioaunfinancial statements until the loss or coshdémnification, if any, is probable and can
be reasonably estimated or the outcome becomesrkrdtihough to date we have not agreed to deferiddamnify our customers for
outstanding and unresolved indemnity demands wiverdo not believe we have an obligation to do sthhar our solution infringes on asser
intellectual property rights, we may in the futagree to defend and indemnify our customers in ection with demands for indemnification,
irrespective of whether we believe that we havelaigation to indemnify them or whether we beliewg solution infringes the asserted
intellectual property rights. Alternatively, we megject certain of our customers’ indemnity demaimtduding the outstanding demands,
which may lead to disputes with our customers, tieglgt impact our relationships with them or reduoltitigation against us. Our wireless
carrier or other customers may also claim thatraggction of their indemnity demands constitutesaderial breach of our agreements with
them, allowing them to terminate such agreemehtige Imake substantial payments as a result of imitgrdemands, our relationships with «
customers are negatively impacted, or any of oatarner agreements is terminated, our businessatipgresults and financial condition
could be materially harmed.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.

PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Glaobatket under the symbol “TNAV” on May 13, 2010.afollowing table sets
forth the range of high and low closing sales wiskour common stock for the periods indicated:
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Year ended June 30, 2014 High Low

First Quarter $ 6.2 $ 5.31
Second Quarter $ 726 $ 5.97
Third Quarter $ 6.5 $ 5.6¢
Fourth Quarter $ 6.5C $ 5.2¢
Year ended June 30, 2013 High Low

First Quarter $ 6.2: $ 5.5¢
Second Quarter $ 8.2 $ 6.01
Third Quarter $ 83C $ 6.27
Fourth Quarter $ 6.4t $ 5.0C

We had approximately 84 stockholders of recordfaluly 31, 2014. A substantially greater numbehalflers of our common stock are
“street name” or beneficial holders, whose sharesald by banks, brokers and other financial tustins. We have never declared or paid
dividends on our common stock and do not expepajodividends on our common stock for the foreskechiture. Instead, we anticipate that
all of our earnings in the foreseeable future lused for the operation and growth of our busines

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds.

Not applicable.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

This performance graph shall not be deemed “swigcinaterial” or to be “filed” with the Securitiemd Exchange Commission for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchargef1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, @rafise subject to the liabilities under
that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incatgd by reference into any filing of Telenav, lnnder the Securities Act or the Exchange
Act.

The following graph shows a comparison from May A@10 (the date our common stock commenced traminbhe NASDAQ
Global Market) through June 30, 2014 of cumulatotel return for our common stock, the NASDAQ Corsip® Index and the Russell 3000
Index. Such returns are based on historical reaulisare not intended to suggest future performddat for the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the Russell 3000 Index assume reinvestmerividedds.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"®

Among Telenay, Inc, the NASDAQ Composite indexand
the Russell 3000 index

HE i 1 i j 1 ¥ i i
May-10 Now-10 May-11 MNowe-11 Mayw-12 Now12 Maw13 MNow-13 May-14

=g T elenav; Inc === | A 50 AG C omposite {total returns) === Russell 3000

2100 invested on 5M13410 in stock or 430010 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fizcal vear ending June 30, 2014

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should bedraconjunction with the consolidated financiatements and related notes thereto
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We havevddrthe statement of operations data for fiscatsyeaded June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012
and the balance sheet data as of June 30, 2012048drom the audited consolidated financial sta&ets included elsewhere in this Form 10-
K. The statement of operations data for the figealrs ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 and the balheeedata as of June 30, 2012, 2011 and
2010 were derived from the audited consolidatedriaial statements that are not included in thisrFd@-K. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance v8thgenerally accepted accounting principles, or ®ABhe results of operations of our
enterprise business, which were previously presesdea component of our consolidated operatindtee$iave been classified as discontinued
operations in our statement of operations for atlqas presented. We have not declared or distibaty cash dividends on our common si
Historical results are not necessarily indicati¥eesults to be expected for future periods.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

(in thousands, except per share data) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Revenue $ 150,311 $ 191,80 $ 205,52 $ 199,11¢ $ 161,88t
Cost of revenue 60,84: 69,11 44.,44¢ 38,15( 27,24¢
Gross profit 89,47 122,68 161,07- 160,96¢ 134,64.
Operating expenses:
Research and development 60,57 60,34¢ 65,76¢ 52,61% 38,35¢
Sales and marketing 33,13¢ 30,43t 25,34¢ 16,58¢ 11,88¢
General and administrative 26,17¢ 24,76" 26,08 19,757 14,51¢
Restructuring costs 4,41; 1,671 — — —
Total operating expenses 124,29¢ 117,22( 117,19 88,96: 64,76:
Operating income (loss) (34,827 5,467 43,88: 72,00¢ 69,88(
Other income (expense), net 1,28¢ 1,20i 1,48¢ 1,17: (407)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
provision (benefit) for income taxes (33,539 6,674 45,36¢ 73,17¢ 69,47
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (4,01%) 1,09: 13,55¢ 28,59. 27,18:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net of
tax $ (29,529 % 5581 $ 31,80¢ $ 44587 $ 42,29
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, n
of tax — 3 7,48t $ 60z $ (2,017 $ (880)
Net income (loss) $ (29,524 % 13,067 $ 32,40¢ $ 42,57 % 41,41(
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.7¢) $ 012 $ 077 $ 1.06 $ 2.72
Income from discontinued operations, net of
tax $ — % 0.1t $ 0.01 $ (0.05) % (0.0¢)
Net income (loss) $ (0.7¢) $ 03z $ 0.7¢ $ 1.01 $ 2.6¢€
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.7¢) $ 0.1z $ 07z $ 09¢ $ 1.37
Income from discontinued operations, net of
tax $ — % 0.1t $ 0.0z % (0.05) % (0.03)
Net income (loss) $ (0.7¢) $ 031 $ 0.74 $ 094 $ 1.34
Weighted average shares used in computing net
income (loss) per share applicable to common
stockholders:
Basic 38,79¢ 40,31( 41,40¢ 41,97¢ 15,56¢
Diluted 38,79¢ 41,91¢ 43,94+ 45,08¢ 30,83
Consolidated Balance Sheets Data: June 30,
(in thousands) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments $ 136,84¢ $ 191,68! $ 199,46¢ $ 203,31( $ 112,86:
Working capital 153,23t 190,38! 204,97 178,60: 134,87
Total assets 239,84 273,66 264,77¢ 260,62 173,72
Common stock and additional paid-in capital 129,31¢ 118,23: 118,89° 115,10¢ 109,72!
Total stockholders’ equity 192,40! 214,46: 216,51¢ 188,46t 149,03
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bel regether with our consolidated financial statetseand the notes to those statem
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. This disaussiontains forward-looking statements based oncourent expectations, assumptions,
estimates and projections about Telenav and owstrg. These forward-looking statements involvksrisnd uncertainties. Our actual results
could differ materially from those indicated in seeforward-looking statements as a result of carfattors, as more fully described in “Risk
factore” in Item 1A of this Form 10-K, Management’s Dissias and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resolt Operations and elsewhere
in this Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation talate publicly any forward-looking statements foy aeason, even if new information
becomes available or other events occur in theréutu

Overview

Telenav is a leading provider of location-basedfpten services. These services consist of our nmapravigation platform and our
advertising delivery platform. Our map and navigatplatform allows Telenav to deliver enhanced fiocebased services to developers, auto
manufacturers and end users. We use our map afghtian platform as the basis for delivering enlehmobile applications such as our
industry leading mobile navigation. Our advertisiivery platform delivers highly targeted adveirtg services leveraging our location
expertise. Recently, we have focused on enhanceinghap and navigation platform by closely alignmg technology to the OSM communi
In January 2014, we completed our acquisition lobfathe shares of privately held skobbler, a laoabased services company based in
Germany. We believe the acquisition of skobblet @rlable us to combine its OSM-based GPS navigadicmology with our existing mobile
navigation solutions.

We offer our map and navigation platform to custmrie a number of ways. We distribute our servibesugh our wireless carrier
partners, including AT&T, and directly to consum#mough mobile application stores and marketplaGemerally, we provide our basic
services to consumers for free and provide conssitheropportunity to purchase premium versionsiefgroduct. We refer to the free to
premium distribution as the “freemium” model oftdisution. Our free products are designed to beetiaad through delivery of advertising to
consumers. Our success with the freemium modelratispepon our ability to generate a substantialactser base as well as the ability to
generate revenue from advertising and conversiarseifs from free to premium services.

We offer our map and navigation platform servi@eadto manufacturers and original equipment manwfers, or OEMs, for distribution
with their vehicles. Our primary customer to dé&terd, currently distributes our product as an apldeature with the majority of its models in
the U.S. Our product is now included on models rfactured in the U.S., Canada, Mexico, South Ameiizaope and China. We also have a
relationship with another automotive OEM that dlsites our products with another major auto martufac and in January 2014 we
announced an agreement with a top five global m#oufacturer for integration of our off-board amshigected solutions in its vehicles, which
we expect to commence in model year 2017. Our aniiwmsolutions are typically a self-contained $ioln including software and related
services and content within the car, or on-boand,are often enhanced through connection to davéces for additional real time capabilities
such as traffic. Our history as a cloud based seippf navigation services provides a unique adsgain the marketplace over our competit

Our advertising delivery platform offers advertssignificant audience reach, sophisticated targetapabilities and the ability to deliver
interactive and engaging ad experiences to consuaretheir mobile devices. We are experts in locabiased advertising and offer unique
value to brick-and-mortar and brand advertisersubh our location targeting capabilities. Our teabgy focuses on managing the complexity
and scale associated with mobile location dataetwer better mobile campaigns for our advertigiagtners. We deliver mobile advertiseme
by leveraging our proprietary in-house ad servaahhology. Our inventory, or accessible marketpimiprised of thousands of mobile
applications and mobile websites that are accebsedgh programmatic RTB tools. In June 2014, datfprm had access to over 100 billion
potential ad impressions.

We derive revenue primarily from wireless carrienstomobile manufacturers and OEMs, and advertasisadvertising agencies. We
primarily derive our revenue from automobile marmtifiaers whose vehicles contain our proprietaryeafé and are able to access our
personalized navigation services. We also derivermee from our partnerships with wireless carrven® sell our mobile navigation services to
their subscribers. In addition, we have a growiangibess in mobile advertising where our customexpamarily advertising agencies that
represent national and regional brands and charamlers that work closely with local and smallibass advertisers.

We generate revenue from the delivery of customszdtivare and royalties from the distribution astbustomized software in
automotive navigation applications. For exampledRgilizes our on-board automotive navigation prctdn its
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Ford SYNC platform, which includes MyFord Touch avigLincoln Touch. Ford began shipping this prodinctertain North American
vehicles with the 2011 model year, and our navigasiolution is currently deployed in 17 differemtréf and Lincoln models in North America.
Ford and Lincoln models with our on-board autommimavigation product began shipping to South Anaerith the 2012 model year and
China with the 2013 model year. Our automobile nfacturer and OEM customers pay us a royalty fet@software is reproduced for
installation in vehicles with our automotive nadiga solutions.

We generate revenue from mobile navigation serylz@sed upon our map and navigation platform, tjinaervice subscriptions. End
users with subscriptions for our services are galyebilled for our services through their wirelesarier or through mobile application stores
and marketplaces. Our wireless carrier customegraipdased on several different revenue modelljdimg (1) a revenue sharing arrangemen
that may include a minimum fee per end user, @pathly or annual subscription fee per end use¢3pbased on usage.

We generate revenue from advertising network sesvibrough the delivery of search and display atbieg impressions based on the
specific terms of the advertising contract.

Recent Developments

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, in order twther align our resources and consolidate fagdljtive initiated a restructuring plan
consisting of the elimination of approximately f08-time positions in the U.S. and China and weargled restructuring charges of $2.4
million related to severance and benefits for tbsiions eliminated. Earlier in fiscal 2014, we goenced our consolidation of our Sunnyvale,
California headquarters facilities from two builgginto one, and during the fourth quarter we casgr Boston, Massachusetts office. As a
result, we recorded restructuring charges of $2lilomrelated to the impairment of the facilitydses.

On January 29, 2014, we completed our acquisitfi@il ®f the shares of skobbler. We acquired skebfir consideration of
approximately $23.8 million, consisting of approately $19.2 million in cash and $4.6 million in s of our common stock. We believe the
acquisition of skobbler will enable us to combite@SM-based GPS navigation technology with oustaag mobile navigation solutions. The
transaction has been accounted for under the atguimethod of accounting.

In January 2014, we announced that we enteredhintmtract with one of the five largest global am@nufacturers to provide worldwide
embedded and connected navigation services begimith select model year 2017 vehicles. The agre¢cm@vers an initial three-year
production cycle, which we expect to commence witect model year 2017 vehicles. Under the terntkeofigreement, we expect our
connected services to support navigation in moaia 100 countries. There are no volume or revenaeagtees provided by this auto
manufacturer.

As of October 1, 2013, Sprint Nextel CorporationSerint, no longer provided us compensation farsmrvices on a fixed fee basis for
bundled offerings provided to its customers. Theneie we receive from Sprint consists primarilyefenue from monthly recurring fees paid
by end users for premium services. The current hipmécurring fee revenue is substantially lowertlthe fee revenue we had previously
received from Sprint for the bundling of our seesand we anticipate that this trend will continbebsequent to October 1, 2013, we have nc
experienced significant replacement revenue fronsatibers who formerly had access to our servivesigh the Sprint bundles. In fiscal
2015, consistent with the last two fiscal yearsexpect that subscription revenue from our partripsswith wireless carriers for navigation
will decline substantially as AT&T and our entir@hbile navigation customer base continue to expee@teclines in subscribers paying
monthly recurring charges for navigation applicasio

All information in the following management's dission and analysis of financial condition and ressof operations includes only rest
from continuing operations (and excludes our ditomed enterprise business, which was sold in A#l3) for all periods presented, unless
otherwise noted.

Key operating and financial performance metrics

We monitor the key operating and financial perfoncemetrics set forth in the tables below to halgwaluate growth trends, establish
budgets, measure the effectiveness of our salemarkkting efforts and assess our operationalieffates. Certain of these measures, non-
GAAP income (loss) from continuing operations, oktax, adjusted earnings before interest, taxegretiation and amortization, or adjusted
EBITDA, from continuing operations and diluted nGAAP income (loss) from continuing operations, ofetax, per share are not measures
calculated in accordance with U.S. generally a@mbptcounting principles, or GAAP, and should retbnsidered as an alternative to any
measure of financial performance
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calculated and presented in accordance with GAARdHition, these non-GAAP measures may not be acabpe to similarly titted measures
of other companies because other companies magatmtlate them in the same manner that we do.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Revenue $ 150,31: $ 191,80 $ 205,52.
Gross margin 60% 64% 78%
Non-GAAP gross margin 62% 65% 79%
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta $ (29,529 % 5581 % 31,80¢
Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing operationst of tax $ (6,839 $ 18,18: % 39,18(
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations $ (12,12 $ 25,49: % 59,02:
Diluted income (loss) from continuing operationst af tax, per share $ (0.7¢) $ 0.1z % 0.7z
Diluted non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing ogions, net of tax, per
share $ (0.1) % 04z % 0.8¢

Gross margin is our gross profit, or total revelass cost of revenue, expressed as a percentage tftal revenue. Our gross margin ha:
been and will continue to be impacted by the irgir@apercentage of our revenue base derived fraomative navigation solutions and
advertising network services, which generally hligher associated third party content costs and ffarty display ad inventory costs,
respectively, than our navigation offerings prodderough wireless carriers.

Non-GAAP gross margin measures our GAAP gross maeyicluding the impact of stock-based compensatipense and capitalized
software and developed technology amortization egee. Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing ogderes, net of tax, measures GAAP
net income (loss) from continuing operations, rigar, excluding the impact of stock-based compgosaxpense, capitalized software and
developed technology amortization expenses, arel dfms such as legal settlements, valuation allm&s against certain deferred tax asset:
and restructuring costs, net of taxes. Stock-basathensation expense relates to equity incentiardsgranted to our employees, directors,
and consultants. Stock-based compensation expasdecken and will continue to be a significant rengrnon-cash expense for us. While we
include the dilutive impact of such equity awandsvieighted average shares outstanding, the expesseiated with stock-based awards
reflects a non-cash charge that we exclude from@AAP income (loss) from continuing operations, oktax, non-GAAP income (loss) from
continuing operations, net of tax, per share, atjdséed EBITDA from continuing operations. Capitalil software amortization expense
represents internal software costs that are prelyiaiapitalized and charged to expense as the aidtis used in our operations. Developed
technology amortization expense relates to the tmation of acquired intangible assets. Legal seténts represent settlements from patent
litigation cases in which we are defendants andltgydisputes. The valuation allowance againstrdedetax assets related to a valuation
allowance established against our deferred taxsaBséhe U.S. Restructuring costs represent ratogrof the estimated amount of costs
associated with restructuring activities. Our nofA® tax rate from continuing operations differsifréhe GAAP tax rate from continuing
operations due to the elimination of any tax effdfdhe GAAP stock-based compensation expenseal, $etflements, restructuring costs, and
other items that are being eliminated to arrivihatnon-GAAP income (loss) from continuing openasionet of tax.

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations measuvas GAAP income (loss) excluding the impact ofcktbased compensation
expense, depreciation, amortization, interest irgasther income (expense), provision (benefitjicome taxes, and other items such as lege
settlements and restructuring costs, net of tajustdd EBITDA, while generally a measure of prdiitiy, can also represent a loss.

Non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (loss) froomtinuing operations, net of tax, and adjustedTEB\ from continuing
operations are key measures used by our managemeéhbard of directors to understand and evaluateare operating performance and
trends, to prepare and approve our annual budgleioasievelop short- and long-term operational plémgparticular, we believe that the
exclusion of the expenses eliminated in calculatiog-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (loss) froontinuing operations, net of tax,
and adjusted EBITDA can provide a useful measur@doiod-to-period comparisons of our core businkgsaddition, non-GAAP income
(loss) from continuing operations, net of tax, aadfusted EBITDA are key financial measures usethbycompensation committee of our
board of directors in connection with the developtra incentive-based compensation for our exeeutifficers. Accordingly, we believe that
non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (loss) froontinuing operations, net of tax, and adjustedTEB provide useful information to
investors and others in understanding and evalyatim operating results in the same manner as anagement and board of directors.
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Diluted non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing ogions, net of tax, per share is calculated as®AAP income (loss) from

continuing operations, net of tax, divided by tliletéd weighted average number of shares outstgnilining the period.

These non-GAAP measures have limitations as apalyttols, and you should not consider them iraisoh or as substitutes for analysis

of our financial results as reported under GAAPW8®f these limitations are:

» although depreciation and amortization are oash charges, the assets being depreciated antizedanay have to be replaced in
future, and adjusted EBITDA from continuing opesat does not reflect cash capital expenditure remqents for such replacements

or for new capital expenditures;

* non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (lose)rircontinuing operations, net of tax, and adju&B&dr DA from continuing
operations do not reflect the potentially dilutimgpact of equity-based compensation;

» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect tax paymengd thistorically have represented a reduction i @a&ilable to us or tax benefits that

may arise as a result of generating net losses; and

» other companies, including companies in our &gy may calculate adjusted EBITDA or similarlifed measures differently, which

reduces its usefulness as a comparative measure.

Because of these and other limitations, you shoaitider non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP incomegjdrom continuing
operations, net of tax, adjusted EBITDA from couiing operations and diluted non-GAAP income (Idsmn continuing operations, net of
tax, per share alongside other GAARsed financial performance measures, includinguarcash flow metrics, net income (loss) and dhex

GAAP financial results.

The following tables present reconciliations ofgganargin to non-GAAP gross margin, income (losgnfcontinuing operations, net of
tax, to non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing cd@ns, net of tax, and income (loss) from contigubperations, net of tax, to adjusted
EBITDA from continuing operations for each of therijpds indicated:

Gross margin

Adjustments:
Capitalized software and developed technology amnadion
Stock-based compensation expense

Non-GAAP gross margin

Net income (loss)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Adjustments:
Legal settlement
Restructuring costs
Capitalized software and developed technology anadion
Valuation allowance against deferred tax asset
Stock-based compensation expense:
Cost of revenue
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Total stock-based compensation
Tax effect of adding back adjustments

Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing operationst of tax
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
60% 64% 78%
2% 1% 1%
—% —% —%
62% 65% 79%
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
(29,52 $ 13,06 32,40¢
— 7,48¢ 60z
(29,529 5,581 31,80¢
— 1,30(C 1,50(C
4,417 1,671 -
3,58¢ 3,68( 2,004
7,39¢ — —
10C 14¢ 91
4,48¢ 3,50¢ 2,50¢
3,30¢ 2,29( 1,16¢
3,64( 2,69¢ 1,354
11,53t 8,64 5,122
(4,24%) (2,696 (1,257
(6,839 $ 18,18: 39,18(
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net income (loss) $ (29,529 % 13,060 $ 32,40¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — 7,48¢ 602
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta (29,52¢) 5,581 31,80¢
Adjustments:
Legal settlement — 1,30(¢ 1,50(C
Restructuring costs 4,41z 1,671 —
Stock-based compensation expense 11,53t 8,64 5,122
Depreciation and amortization 6,75¢ 8,40¢ 8,171
Interest and other (income) expense, net (1,28¢) (1,207%) (1,489
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (4,015 1,09t 13,90¢
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations $ (12,12) % 2549 $ 59,02

Key components of our results of operations

Sources of revenue

We classify our revenue as either product or sesvievenue. Services revenue consists primarilgvanue we derive from our mobile
navigation services, off-board automotive navigaservices and mobile advertising services. Prodwenue consists primarily of revenue we
receive from the delivery of customized softward ewyalties from the distribution of this custondzeoftware in certain automotive navigat
applications.

We offer voice-guided, real-time, turn by turn, rllemavigation service under several brand namesding Scout by Telenav and
Telenav GPS as well as under wireless carrier lsrémd‘white label” brands). We derive servicesamwe primarily from our wireless carrier
customers for their end users' subscriptions tohwalvile navigation services. Our wireless carrigstomers pay us based on several different
revenue models, including (1) a revenue sharingngement that may include a minimum fee per end (®ea monthly or annual subscripti
fee per end user, or (3) based on usage. Certainrafontracts provide our wireless carrier cust@méth discounts based on the number of
end users paying for our services in a given mdntlgeneral, our wireless carrier customers pag lesver monthly fee per end user if an end
user subscribes to our mobile navigation servisgsaat of a bundle of mobile data or voice servibas if an end user subscribes to our mc
navigation services on a standalone basis. Weodlsoour applications directly to end users thioagplication stores such as the Apple App
Store and the Google Play marketplace. Finallyprexide free versions of our services which caregate revenue through advertising
supported arrangements, and subscriber upgragsrtaum versions for a fee. We also derive servieesnue from advertising network
services through the delivery of search and dispthsertising impressions based on the specificgerhthe advertising contract. In the future,
we may have other revenue models.

For services that our subscribers purchase throughvireless carriers, our wireless carrier cust@naee responsible for billing and
collecting the fees they charge their subscrib@rshfe right to use our navigation services. Wéspect to Sprint, through September 30, 2013
we received a guaranteed fixed fee from SprinhBwigation applications provided to subscriberBundles with other Sprint services. We
recognized revenue for the aggregate fees monthly siraight-line basis over the term of the ageremWhen we are paid on a revenue
sharing basis with our wireless carrier customéies amount we receive varies depending on sevarir, including the revenue share rate
negotiated with the wireless carrier customer piiee charged to the subscriber by the wirelesserazustomer, the specific sales channel of
the wireless carrier customer in which the serisoaffered and the features and capability of #rwise. As a result of these factors, the am
we receive for a subscriber may vary considerabtyia subject to change over time.

In addition, the amount we are paid per end useuirevenue sharing arrangements may also vamgnaiapg upon the metric used to
determine the amount of the payment, includingntivaber of end users at any time during a monthatleeage monthly paying end users, the
number and timing of end user billing cycles and eser activity. Although our wireless carrier amsers generally have sole discretion abour
how to price our mobile navigation services totlsaibscribers, our revenue sharing arrangementrggninclude monthly minimum fees per
end user. To a much lesser extent, we also seemnices directly to consumers through applicasimmes.
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Subscription fee revenue from our mobile navigaservices represented 42% , 61% and 86%o0f our vevienfiscal 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively. Subscription fee revenue foammobile navigation service declined from fisg@ll2 to fiscal 2014 , primarily due to the
transition to an extension of the fixed fee wittriSpat a lower rate that eventually ceased in &aper 2013 and a substantial decrease in the
number of paying subscribers for navigation sewjo®vided through AT&T and others, including T-MebU.S. Cellular and NIl Mexico.

AT&T represented 24% , 28% and 35% of our revenuiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Ifdi€014, our agreement with
AT&T was automatically renewed, under its existtagms through March 2015, and provides that we auaifitinue to be the exclusive provider
of white label GPS navigation services to AT&T. AT&s not required to offer our navigation servicé&e anticipate that we will continue to
depend on AT&T for a material portion of our reverfar the foreseeable future; however, we have sebstantial declines in the number of
paying subscribers for our services through AT& Eiothe past few years

Sprint represented less than 10%, 16% and 36%rakeenue in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respelgti We operate under an
agreement with Sprint, which we most recently aneend April 2013. Under this amended agreementnSpontinued the fixed fee
arrangement related to the Sprint bundle throughe®eber 30, 2013, and agreed to partner to generag@ue from mobile navigation and
mobile advertising programs through December 3152Commencing on October 1, 2013, Sprint ceasedndle our navigation services,
which caused our revenue to decrease substantathajority of the Sprint subscribers who were reicgy our services through bundles as of
September 30, 2013 did not convert to our paidgetion services and we have not recouped thedwsnue through freemium or monthly
recurring charges paid by those Sprint subscribers.

We expect that the percentage of our revenue repied by wireless carrier customers will continudécline in fiscal 2015 due to the
absence of any revenue from Sprint bundles andritieipated decline of the number of subscribegsrgamonthly recurring charges with
other wireless carrier customers.

Revenue from our mobile advertising, which incluttes delivery of search and display, location-basgs represented 8% , 2% and 1%
of our revenue in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 peetvely. Our advertising revenue is derived fnatationships established with advertising
agencies, direct customers, and channel partnersad®search revenue is earned from the delivelyoation-based ad impressions targeted t
end users engaged in a specific search task nglizir mobile navigation solutions. Such ad seegubnue represented less than 10% of our
overall advertising revenue. Our display revenlaes to the advertising business developed vid tiieknear acquisition that delivers targe
location-based impressions to end users of thirty pkeveloper applications.

Revenue from our automotive navigation solutiompsesented 50% , 37% and 13% of our revenue inlf&tk4 , 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Ford represented 46% , 36% and 138tiofevenue in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012, raspdy. In April 2014, our contract with
Ford was extended through December 2017. The agr@emay be renewed for successive 12-month peffi@ither party provides notice of
renewal at least 45 days prior to the expiratiothefapplicable term and the other party agressi¢tb renewal.

We provide both on-board and off-board connectedgadion solutions to Ford. Our on-board soluti@msists of software, map and POI
data loaded in the vehicle that provides voice-gditlirn by turn navigation displayed on the vehsdeeen. Our off-board connected solution
enables a mobile device that is paired with theokeho activate in-vehicle text-based and voicédgd turn by turn navigation. We recognize
revenue from our off-board connected solutions migrttased on annual subscriptions, which are stibje maximum annual fee with Ford.
This revenue is classified as services revenuegmésented less than 5% of overall automotivegadian solutions revenue.

Our product revenue is primarily derived from outamnotive be orboard solutions as the related customized softigadelivered to, ar
accepted by our customers. In addition, we recegruyalties earned from our on-board solutiondassoftware is reproduced for installation
in vehicles. We anticipate that we will continuediepend on Ford for a material portion of our rexgefor the foreseeable future

For fiscal 2015, we expect automotive and advegdisevenue to represent the growing componentsiofevenue but our expectations

may not be realized. However, while we anticipat®agng our overall revenue in fiscal 2015, the lowyeoss margins generally experienced
with automotive and advertising revenue are expkitteesult in an overall lower gross profit inclid 2015.
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In fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we generated 98284 and 94% of our revenue, respectively, in thadd States. With respect to
revenue we receive from automobile manufactureds@iMs for sales of vehicles in other countries clessify that revenue as being
generated in the United States, because we prdeiileerables to and receive compensation from theufacturer's or OEM's United States'
entity.

Cost of revenue

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of the adghird party content, such as map, geocodes, ®&ific, gas price and weather data
and voice recognition technology that we use irvjgliag our navigation solutions. Our cost of reveralso includes the cost of third party
exchange ad inventory as well as expenses assbeidtedata center operations, customer suppartathortization of capitalized software,
recognition of deferred development costs on sjepibjects, stockased compensation and amortization of developdthtdogy. The large
components of our cost of revenue are the feesayeéqproviders of map, POl and traffic data, TomiTand HERE. We have agreements \
TomTom and HERE pursuant to which we pay royakiesording to a variety of different fee scheduiesluding on a per use basis, on a per
end user per month basis, and on a per installeidleebasis. With respect to TomTom, we are reguioepay certain minimum fees for access
to its content by our mobile navigation customassyell as a usage fee. Although we recently begarg OSM for certain of our freemium
navigation products, we do not anticipate that vileagase to use TomTom and HERE in the near-tetrow paid subscription mobile
navigation solutions.

For our on-board automotive navigation solutionsvfted to Ford, we pay royalties on a per installed produced basis to HERE as
well as other content providers, depending on trageaphic distribution of our solution with Ford. .

We classify our cost of revenue as either costodlipct revenue or cost of services revenue. Cagtazfuct revenue consists primarily of
the cost of third party content we incur in prowigliour on-board automotive navigation solutions @ubgnition of deferred development
costs. Cost of services revenue consists primafitite costs associated with third party contdritdtparty exchange ad inventory, data center
operations, customer support, amortization of edipigd software, stock-based compensation and @atioh of developed technology that we
incur in providing our navigation and advertisingtwiork services.

We primarily provide mobile navigation service mmer support through a third party provider to whemprovide training and
assistance with problem resolution. We use twoaurted, hosted data centers and industry stan@dadivare to provide our navigation
services. We generally offer to our wireless carigstomers and generally maintain at least 99.pitne every month, excluding designated
periods of maintenance. Our internal targets forise uptime are even higher. We have in the zast,may in the future, not achieve our
targets for service availability and may incur déea for failure to meet contractual service aability requirements, including loss of a port
of subscriber fees for the month or terminatiomwf wireless carrier customer agreement.

The largest component of cost of revenue as itagl@ our display advertising business is the ebktcation-based, third-party
advertising inventory which we acquire from adwny exchanges. Our search ad inventory is gemkfiadm our user base of paid and
freemium users of our Scout and Telenav brandedcanider branded mobile navigation solutions. Ot@able costs of our advertising
business are the cost of ad delivery via contralctestied relationships and the cost of our ad thkiffg operations.

While we expect that services revenue from wiretessier customers will continue to decline subsédly in fiscal 2015, we do not
expect to be able to reduce our cost of servioesmee at the same rate of decline as servicesuevéithough we successfully transitioned to
utilizing OSM content on our freemium navigatiorpgations resulting in notable cost savings, wk edntinue to incur significant costs,
especially related to third party content as welfax data center operations. Cost of servicesmgveelated to our advertising business will be
impacted by our ability to grow advertising revenag well as the cost and availability of displayiraventory sourced from third party
exchanges. While our product revenue is expect@tttease in fiscal 2015 due to continued growthutomotive, much of this growth will be
generated from distribution of our automotive siolatwith Ford in China and Europe where the undegycontent costs are significantly
higher on a per unit basis. Consequently, we exppettour overall total cost of revenue will incseas a percentage of revenue as we increa:
the percentage of our revenue from automotive radigg solutions and advertising network servicdsictv generally have higher associated
third party content costs and third party displdycasts, respectively, than our navigation offesipgovided through wireless carriers.
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Operating expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three caieg; research and development, sales and maglatithgeneral and administrative
addition, in fiscal 2013 and 2014 we incurred ngstiring costs primarily related to severance agnkfits expense associated with reductions
in workforce and facility exit costs associatedhadgbnsolidation of facilities. Our operating expemsonsist primarily of personnel costs, wi
include salaries, bonuses, advertising sales cosionis, payroll taxes, employee benefit costs amckdbased compensation expense. Other
expenses include marketing program costs, thirty gantractor and temporary staffing services,littees-related costs including rent expense,
legal, audit and tax consulting and other professiservice fees. We allocate stock-based comgensatpense resulting from the
amortization of the fair value of stock-based awagthnted, based on the department in which thedalmeder works. We allocate overhead,
such as rent and depreciation, to each expensgocgteased on headcount. Our operating expensesstabilized in absolute dollars in the
past fiscal year, as we have reduced certain heatlemd achieved greater operational effectiveimesspporting our traditional mobile
navigation services. Despite our recent restrungueifforts, we expect that certain costs will coné to increase over time, including
compensation and related costs; however, we aténoarg to evaluate spending in certain areas andke actions to create greater
efficiencies. We anticipate continued investmentesiources, including the hiring of additional heaght in, or reallocation of employee
personnel into, our growth areas, which includeeugtive and mobile advertising, with a recent ensighan hiring advertising sales personnel
and related support functions.

Research and developmemesearch and development expenses consist dyirnhgersonnel costs for our development employees
costs of outside consultants and temporary staffivig have focused our research and developmemtsetfo improving the ease of use and
functionality of our existing services, as welldes/eloping new service and product offerings inexisting markets and in new markets. A
significant number of our research and developreamniloyees are located in our development centehina and, as a result, a portion of our
research and development expense is subject tgebam foreign exchange rates, notably the ChiReseninbi, or RMB. In addition, with the
January 2014 acquisition of skobbler, we also imegearch and development expenses in the Romiagian

Sales and marketingSales and marketing expenses consist primarihecfonnel costs for our sales, product manageamehimarketing
staff, commissions earned by our sales personmkftencost of marketing programs, advertising aiodnotional activities. Historically, a
majority of our revenue has been derived from wesslcarriers, which bore much of the expense dketiag and promoting our services to
their subscribers, as well as consumers acquiredidgh open market application stores. More recently automotive and advertising revenue
have represented the most rapidly growing compenafinbur revenue, and we have invested in buildwmgadvertising sales team. Our sales
and marketing activities supporting our automotiaeigation services include product managementasdtess development efforts. Our
automotive manufacturer partners and OEMs alsoigegerimary marketing for our on-board and off-libaavigation services at the time a
vehicle is sold to their end customer.

General and administrativeGeneral and administrative expenses consist pitintd personnel costs for our executive, finarnegal,
human resources and administrative personnel,,lagdlt and tax consulting and other professioaalises and corporate expenses.

Other income, netOther income, net consists primarily of intengstearn on our cash and cash equivalents and t&hortinvestments,
gain or loss on investments and foreign currerggsaction gain or loss.

Income from discontinued operations, neicome from discontinued operations, net consiktesults of operations of our enterprise
business, which was sold in April 2013.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe®©ur provision (benefit) for income taxes primaigbonsists of corporate income taxes related to
profits or losses earned in the United States mrarate income tax refunds expected to be derik@ud fosses incurred in the United States the
may be carried back. Our effective tax rate coludtfiate significantly from year to year, partialyan those years in which we incur losses,
due to our ability to benefit from the carrybacknett operating losses within the carryback periodl the available amount therein, if any.
Furthermore, on a quarterly basis our tax ratedloatuate and could be adversely affected by iases in nondeductible stock compensatic
other nondeductible expenses. Our effective taxcauld also fluctuate due to a change in our agendr loss projections, changes in the
valuation of our deferred tax assets or liabiliti@schanges in tax laws, regulations, or accogrnpirinciples, as well as certain discrete items.

Critical accounting policies and estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenée@ordance with GAAP. In many cases, the accogitteatment of a particular
transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP aneslmot require our judgment in its applicationother cases, our judgment is required in
selecting among available alternative accountirgies that allow different accounting treatment $imilar transactions. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements also requirds nsake estimates and assumptions
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that affect the reported amounts of assets, ltadslirevenue, costs and expenses and relatedslises. We base our estimates on historical
experience and various other assumptions that Vievbeare reasonable under the circumstances. hyiinatances, we could reasonably use
different accounting estimates, and in some ingsuehanges in the accounting estimates are redgdikaly to occur from period to period.
Accordingly, actual results could differ signifiadgnfrom the estimates made by our managementh&axtent that there are differences
between our estimates and actual results, ourdditnancial statement presentation, financial ctowlj results of operations and cash flows
be affected. We believe that the accounting pdidiscussed below are critical to understandinchisiorical and future performance, as these
policies relate to the more significant areas iaw@ our judgments and estimates.

Revenue recognitionWe generate revenue primarily from service supsans, customized engineering fees and softwiaenses. We
also generate revenue from the delivery of seandhdisplay advertising impressions.

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery of the service odpob has occurred, the fee is fixed
or determinable and collectability is reasonabluasd. We derive our revenue primarily from sulpgions to access our mobile navigation
services, which are generally provided throughwiveless carrier customers that offer our serviogbeir subscribers or through application
stores. Our wireless carrier customers pay us basegveral different revenue models, includinga(t¢venue sharing arrangement that may
include a minimum fee per end user, (2) a monthlgrmual subscription fee per end user, or (3)daseusage. Our end users who subscribe
to our services through application stores pay m®athly or annual subscription fee.

We recognize monthly fees related to our mobileigetion services in the month we provide the sewidVe defer amounts received in
advance of the service being provided and recoghizeleferred amounts when the monthly servicebkas provided. We recognize revenue
for fixed fees for any humber of subscribers reicgj\our services as part of bundles monthly orragit-line basis over the term of the
agreement. Our agreements do not contain genghasrof refund once the service has been provikdalso establish allowances for
estimated credits subsequently issued to end bgeyar wireless carrier customers.

We recognize as services revenue the amount oales# carrier customers report to us as we praxidservices, which are net of any
revenue sharing or other fees earned and dedugtedrlwireless carrier customers. We are not tivecyal provider when selling access to
mobile navigation services through our wirelessieacustomers as the subscribers directly cont@btour wireless carrier customers. In
addition, we may earn a fixed fee or fixed percgetaf fees charged by our wireless carrier custerand our wireless carrier customers have
the sole ability to set the price charged to tealyscribers for our service. Our wireless carriestamers have direct responsibility for billing
and collecting those fees from their subscribetsva@ and our wireless carrier customers may offbsesribers a free trial for our service. For
end users who purchase our mobile navigation ses\tlerough application stores, we utilize the agapion store billing process. We provide
tiered pricing to certain of our wireless carriestomers based on the number of paying end usergiwen month, which may result in a
discounted fee per end user depending on the nuofileerd users. Revenue recognized is based ongbeutted fees earned for a given
period.

We also derive services revenue from the delivésearch and display advertising impressions. \Wegrize revenue when the related
advertising services are delivered based on thefgpeerms of the advertising contract, which asenmonly based on the number of ad
impressions delivered, or clicks, drives or actibpsisers on mobile advertisements.

We derive product revenue from the delivery of costzed software and royalties earned from theibigiion of this customized softwe
in certain automotive navigation applications. Waerally recognize customized software revenuegusia completed contract method of
contract accounting under which revenue is recaghigon delivery to, and acceptance by, the autdenotanufacturer of our on-board
navigation solutions. We generally recognize rgyedtvenue as the software is reproduced for irzdtait in vehicles, assuming all other
conditions for revenue recognition have been met.

In certain instances, due to the nature and tirafngonthly revenue and reporting from our customers may be required to make
estimates of the amount of revenue to recogniza fi@ustomer for the current period. For exammgam of our wireless carrier customers
not provide us with sufficient monthly individuallsscriber billing period details to allow us to qmute the allocation of monthly service fees
to the individual end user’s service period, andunh cases we make estimates of any requireccegrgriod revenue cutoff. In addition, if we
fail to receive an accurate revenue report fromraless carrier customer for the month, we willshém estimate the amount of revenue that
should be recorded for that month. These estinmtgsrequire judgment, and we consider certain fadad information in making these
estimates such as:

« subscriber data supplied by our wireless carristauers
« customer specific historical subscription and rexereporting trend
e end user subscription data from our internal systemc
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« data from comparable distribution channels of dhepcustomer

If we are unable to reasonably estimate recogrezagienue from a customer for a given period, Werdecognition of revenue to the
period in which we receive and validate the custtsmevenue report and all of our revenue recognitiriteria have been met. If we have
recorded an estimated revenue amount, we recordifiagence between the estimated revenue andlaetwsnue in the period when we
receive the final revenue reports from our customvlich typically occurs within the following montfio date, actual amounts have not
differed materially from our estimates.

Software development costé/e account for the costs of computer softwarelesxelop for internal use by capitalizing qualifyiogsts,
which are incurred during the application develophsage, and amortizing those costs over the adjiin’s estimated useful life, which
generally ranges from 18 months to 24 months dapgrah the type of application. Costs incurred eagitalized during the application
development stage generally include the costsftivace configuration, coding, installation and begt Such costs primarily include payroll
and payroll related expenses for employees diréntiglved in the application development, as wsltlird party developer fees. We expense
preliminary evaluation costs as they are incurrefbife the application development stage, as wglbas development implementation and
operation costs, such as training, maintenancerandr upgrades. We begin amortizing capitalizedsadien a project is ready for its inten
use, and we periodically reassess the estimatddl lige of a project considering the effects ofsalbescence, technology, competition and @
economic factors which may result in a shorter iemg life.

We capitalized zero, $0.9 million and $2.4 milliohsoftware development costs during fiscal 202813 and 2012 , respectively.
Amortization expense related to these costs, wiigh recorded in cost of revenue, totaled $1.0 oni)l2.1 million and $1.8 million for fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

We also account for the costs of computer softwmaaelevelop for customers requiring significant nfigdtion or customization by
deferring qualifying costs under the completed @sitmethod. All such development costs incurreddaferred until the related revenue is
recognized. We deferred $0.9 million, $1.3 millamd $2.4 million of software development costsmiyfiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 ,
respectively. Development costs expensed to cagveiue totaled $0.9 million, $4.9 million and4illion for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012
respectively.

Impairment of long-lived asset®Ve evaluate longjved assets held and used for impairment whenewvents or changes in circumstar
indicate that their net book value may not be recalle. We continually evaluate whether eventscirtdmstances have occurred that indicat
the balance of our property and equipment, longri@vestments and intangible assets with definiesImay not be recoverable. Our
evaluation is significantly impacted by our estiggaand assumptions of future revenue, costs, gmehsgs and other factors. If an event oc
that would cause us to revise our estimates andrgg®ns used in analyzing the value of our prgpand equipment, that revision could re:
in a non-cash impairment charge that could haveimal impact on our financial results. When thiestors and circumstances exist, we
compare the projected undiscounted future cashsflasgociated with the related asset or group etsasser their estimated useful lives age
their respective carrying amounts. We base the inmaant, if any, on the excess of the carrying antawer the fair value, based on market
value when available, or discounted expected dastsfof those assets, and record it in the penaghich we make the determination. During
fiscal 2013, we recorded a loss of $0.3 milliorcamnection with impairment in the carrying valuecapitalized software.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregatshpse price paid over the fair value of the ssets acquired. Goodwill is
not amortized and is tested for impairment at laastually or whenever events or changes in circamests indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. These tests are based onmmle siperating segment and reporting unit structe first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is necessary to perform thegtep quantitative goodwill impairment test. We aoé required to calculate the fair value
our reporting unit unless we determine, based guaditative assessment, that it is more likely thanthat the fair value is less than our
carrying amount. If we determine it is more likéhyan not that the fair value of the reporting usiiess than its carrying value, we perform a
two-step quantitative goodwill impairment test. Thist step of the impairment test involves comparihe fair value of the reporting unit to its
net book value, including goodwill. If the net boedkdue exceeds its fair value, then we would penftite second step of the goodwill
impairment test to determine the amount of the impent loss, if any. In assessing the fair valuewfreporting unit, we make assumptions
regarding our estimated future cash flows, inclgdistimate growth rate. If our estimates or relaeslmptions change in the future, or if our
net book value were to exceed our market capitaizawe may be required to record impairment ledated to our goodwill. We have not
recognized any impairment of goodwill in the thyear period ended June 30, 2014. As of June 301,204 had goodwill of $31.3 million.

Stock-based compensation expendke account for stock-based employee compensatiamgements under the fair value recognition
method, which requires us to measure the stockdbam®pensation costs of share-based compensatemmgaments based on the grant date
fair value, and recognize the costs in the findratetements over the employees’
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requisite service period. We recognize compensatiquense for the fair value of these awards wittetbased vesting on a straight-line basis
over an employee’s requisite service period of ed¢hese awards, net of estimated forfeitures.

Our stock-based compensation expense was as follows

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Cost of revenue $ 10 $ 14¢ $ 91
Research and development 4,48¢ 3,50¢ 2,50¢
Selling and marketing 3,30¢ 2,29( 1,16¢
General and administrative 3,64( 2,69¢ 1,35¢
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 11,53t % 8,641 $ 5,122

As of June 30, 2014 , there was $3.2 million ofemognized stock-based compensation expense rédatedested stock option awards,
net of estimated forfeitures, that we expect todmognized over a weighted average period of 1labsyé\t June 30, 2014, the total
unrecognized stock-based compensation cost retfatetricted stock units was $21.5 million , neéstimated forfeitures, and will be
amortized over a weighted average period of 3.1syea

We generally utilize the Black-Scholes option-prggcimodel to determine the fair value of our stopkan awards, which requires a
number of estimates and assumptions. In valuingeshased awards under the fair value accountingadesignificant judgment is required in
determining the expected volatility of our commaewock and the expected term individuals will holdittshare-based awards prior to
exercising. The expected volatility of our stock@sed on the historical volatility of various caamgible companies, as we do not have
sufficient historical data with regards to the \itiky of our own stock. The expected term of opsogranted represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstandingeXpected term was based on an analysis of ounritiat exercise and cancellation activity.
In the future, as we gain historical data for vititstin our own stock, the expected volatility ar&pected term may change which could
substantially change the grant date fair valuautifre awards of stock options and ultimately thgegse we record. In addition, the estimation
of stock awards that will ultimately vest requijedgment, and to the extent actual results diffemf our estimates, such amounts will be
recorded as an adjustment in the period estimateesised.

For fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we calculateddirevalue of options granted to employees with fihllowing weighted average
assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 62% 72% 64%
Expected term (in years) 4.4t 4.7¢ 4.5(C

Risk-free interest rate 1.44% 0.67% 0.71%

Dividend yield — — —

We recognize the estimated stdaksed compensation cost of restricted stock umétsof estimated forfeitures, over the vesting tefime
estimated stock-based compensation cost is bas#uk dair value of our common stock on the datgraft.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe®Ve use the liability method of accounting forante taxes. Under this method, income tax expens
(benefit) is recognized for the amount of taxesaid or refundable for the current year. In additideferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the expected future tax effect ofgerary differences between the financial reportind tax bases of assets and liabilities, anc
for operating losses and tax credit carryforwawle.must make assumptions, judgments and estinmmatistérmine our current provision for
income taxes and also our deferred tax assetdailities and any valuation allowance to be reeardgainst a deferred tax asset.

Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relatitteetcurrent provision (benefit) for income tatadee into account current tax laws,
our interpretation of current tax laws and posstle&comes of current and future audits conductefbi®ign and domestic tax authorities. We
have established reserves for income taxes to sslg@ential exposures involving tax positions timatld be challenged by tax authorities. In
addition, we are subject to the periodic examimatibour income tax returns by the Internal Reve8aevice, or IRS, and other domestic and
foreign tax authorities. Although we believe ouswamptions, judgments and estimates are reasortdialages in tax laws or our interpretation
of tax laws and the resolution of
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the current and any future tax audits could sigaiftly impact the amounts provided for income tawresur consolidated financial statements.

Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relatitleetvalue of a deferred tax asset take into adqaedictions of the amount and
category of future taxable income, such as incawm foperations or capital gains income and pregistiof the amount and category of future
taxable loss that may be carried back for a taxnefIn assessing the realizability of deferredassets, we consider whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the defergdassets, on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basid, be realized. Actual operating results and
the underlying amount and category of income inriyears as well as expectations regarding therggan of operating losses could render
our current assumptions, judgments and estimate=cof/erable net deferred taxes inaccurate. Artie@hssumptions, judgments and estim
mentioned above could cause our actual incomelibigations or refunds to differ from our estimatd®s)s materially impacting our financial
position and results of operations.

Results of operations

The following tables set forth our results of ogienas for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , as wek @&rcentage that each line item
represents of our revenue for those periods. Theg® period comparison of financial results & necessarily indicative of financial results
to be achieved in future periods.

The results of operations of our enterprise businesluding the related gain on sale, have beassified as discontinued operations in
our statement of operations for periods presetitemligh fiscal 2013. The following discussion foauselely on results of continuing
operations.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data 2014 2013 2012
Revenue: (in thousands)
Product $ 72,747 $ 69,16: $ 24,18¢
Services 77,56¢ 122,63t 181,33t
Total revenue 150,31« 191,80( 205,52:
Cost of revenue:
Product 36,77¢ 38,16¢ 13,61t
Services 24,06¢ 30,94¢ 30,83
Total cost of revenue 60,84: 69,11 44,44¢
Gross profit 89,47: 122,68 161,07-
Operating expenses:
Research and development 60,57 60,34¢ 65,76¢
Sales and marketing 33,13¢ 30,43t 25,34¢
General and administrative 26,17¢ 24,76¢ 26,08
Restructuring costs 4,417 1,671 —
Total operating expenses 124,29¢ 117,22 117,19
Operating income (loss) (34,82) 5,467 43,88
Other income, net 1,28¢ 1,20 1,48¢
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (33,539 6,67 45,36¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (4,01 1,09: 13,55¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta (29,524 5,581 31,80¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — 7,48¢ 602
Net income (loss) $ (29,529 ¢ 13,067 $ 32,40¢
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2014 2013 2012
Revenue: (as a percentage of revenue)
Product 48 % 36% 12%
Services 52% 64% 88%
Total revenue 10C % 10C% 100%
Cost of revenue:
Product 24 % 20% 7%
Services 16 % 16% 15%
Total cost of revenue 40 % 36% 22%
Gross profit 60 % 64% 7&%
Operating expenses:
Research and development 41% 31% 32%
Sales and marketing 22% 16% 12%
General and administrative 17% 13% 13%
Restructuring costs 3% 1% —%
Total operating expenses 83% 61% 57%
Operating income (loss) (23)% 3% 21%
Other income, net 1% —% 1%
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (22)% 3% 22%
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (2)% —% 6%
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta (200% 3% 1€%
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — % 4% —%
Net income (loss) (200% 7% 16%

Comparison of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2042013
Revenue

Product revenue Product revenue consists primarily of revenuaeeeive from the delivery of customized softward avyalties from
the distribution of this customized software inta@r automotive navigation applications. Produgeraie increased 5% to $72.7 million in
fiscal 2014 from $69.2 million in fiscal 2013 he increase was due primarily to increased tpyalenue from automotive navigation soluti
we provide for Ford vehicles, including the laurettour solutions in additional Ford and Lincoln netsland further geographic distribution.
Product revenue in fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013udet $2.8 million and $9.2 million, respectively castomized software revenue from Ford.
Product revenue in fiscal 2014 and 2013 also ireddu0.9 million and $8.7 million, respectively,atldd to a map content update separately
purchased by Ford. Excluding customized softwateraap navigation replacement unit revenue, ourraative royalty revenue increased
31% from fiscal 2013 to fiscal 2014.

Services revenueServices revenue consists primarily of revenueleré/e from our mobile navigation services andeatising. Services
revenue decreased 37% to $77.6 million in fiscd42flom $122.6 million in fiscal 20130f the decrease, a decline of $51.8 million wae @
the termination of our fixed fee revenue from Spfim bundled users, lower subscription fees résmirom decreases in the number of paying
subscribers for mobile navigation services provittedugh AT&T, T-Mobile and U.S. Cellular Corporai, or USCC, and a decrease in
mobile navigation revenue internationally. Theserdases were offset in part by growth in revenamfadvertising network services of $7.8
million . Going forward, we anticipate that mobilavigation services revenue from wireless carnsigliscontinue to decline.

Revenue concentrationsn fiscal 2014 and 2013 , Ford represented 46&639% of our total revenue, respectively. In fis2a14 and
2013, revenue from AT&T represented 24% and 28%uoftotal revenue, respectively, and revenue f&urint represented less than 10% anc
16% of our total revenue, respectively.

Revenue from our automotive navigation solutioqpsesented 50% and 37% of our total revenue inlf&@2a4 and 2013 , respectively.
Subscription fees from our mobile navigation sezgicepresented 42% and 61% of our total revenfiscal 2014 and 2013 , respectively.
Revenue from our mobile advertising services repres] 8% and 2% of our total revenue in fiscal 28dd fiscal 2013, respectively.
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We primarily sell our services in the United Statediscal 2014 and 2013 , revenue derived froi8.l$ources represented 94% and 929
of our total revenue, respectively. With respeatteenue we receive from automobile manufactuneds@EMs for sales of vehicles in other
countries, we classify that revenue as being géeetia the United States, because we provide dalbles to and receive compensation from
the manufacturer's or OEM's United States' entity.

Cost of revenue

Cost of product revenueOur cost of product revenue decreased 4% to $88li8n in fiscal 2014 from $38.2 million in fist2013 , as
compared to the 5% increase in our product reve@uecost of product revenue decreased due priyriaré decrease in amortization of
capitalized software and recognition of deferreste&4.0 million, partially offset by an increasdhird party content costs of $2.6 million. 1
increase in third party content costs was lowen tivauld be expected commensurate with the growthuimproduct revenue, as it was offset
a decrease due to the costs associated with tte# 813 map content update provided to Ford titahdt recur. In addition, the $8.7 million
revenue related to the map content update sepamtethased by Ford in fiscal 2013 had substagtidtiher associated content costs as a
percentage of revenue than our on-board navigatipalty revenue earned from Ford for productionieiels. As we have not adopted OSM for
automobile navigation services and do not antieiplaat we will do so in the near term, we do nqtezt to realize any material savings from
the use of OSM in our cost of product revenue.

Cost of services revenu®©ur cost of services revenue decreased 22% td $2ilion in fiscal 2014 from $30.9 million in fisl 2013 .
Cost of services revenue did not decline commetsuvith the 37%decrease in services revenue during fiscal 2014t 6fcservices revenue
fiscal 2014 was impacted by a decrease in thirtygamtent costs of $4.4 million and decreased agtwperations, customer support and dat:
center costs of $2.4 million, partially offset mcreased amortization expense of $0.9 million, grity related to developed technology
acquired from Thinknear and skobbler. As more afroobile navigation subscribers use our freemiuadpcts, we do not recoup the costs of
providing those services. Late in fiscal 2014 weased iPhone and Android versions of our Scoutilmolvigation applications that use O!
for map data and we anticipate that we will migi@ttger mobile navigation products to OSM over tiMée anticipate that the use of OSM will
offset in part the expense we incur in providingefmium mobile navigation services.

Gross profit. Our gross profit decreased to $89.5 million gtéil 2014 from $122.7 million in fiscal 201®ur gross margin decreasec
60% in fiscal 2014 from 64% in fiscal 2013 . Thedmse in gross margin was due to lower servieente and the increased proportion of
product revenue contributed from our on-board aotdra navigation solutions provided to our autowettustomers, which generally have
higher associated content costs and resulting lgness margins than our mobile navigation serviwesided through our wireless carrier
customers. We expect our gross margin to contiowetline as the percentage of our revenue froonzative offerings increases, and as a
result of increased competition on our offeringrafbile navigation services, especially from otheefofferings, resulting in declining services
revenue from mobile navigation. In addition, ouogg margin will continue to be negatively impadtethe future by the amortization of
developed technology acquired as part of our Jgr2@t4 acquisition of skobbler.

Research and developmer@ur research and development expenses were cabi@at $60.6 million in fiscal 2014 and $60.3 riilin
fiscal 2013 . The change was primarily comprisedexfreased compensation and benefits costs oh#ili®n associated with decreased
average headcount, primarily in our China offi@decrease in amortization and depreciation expefi®@.7 million and a decrease in rent
expense of $0.3 million, primarily due to lease @nment restructuring charges recorded separatalysitructuring costs, partially offset by a
decrease in capitalization and deferral of softveBreelopment costs of $1.3 million. This net desee&as offset by the reimbursement of $1.C
million of costs in connection with a cost recovepntract with a third party that was included is2013. As a percentage of revenue, rese
and development expenses increased to 41% in 28da from 31% in fiscal 2013 . The total numberexfearch and development personnel
decreased 7% to 431 at June 30, 2014 from 464at3Q, 2013 . Although research and developmesbpeel have decreased in the short-
term, we expect research and development expenbemiveflect a proportionate decrease as weingtsearch and development personn
higher cost geographic areas. We also believeathate continue to invest in expanding the navigasiervices we offer, establish relationships
with new automotive manufacturers, OEMs and adsensi and develop new services and products, re¥esmehose investments and
development efforts will lag the related reseamttt development expenses. We expect that reseatiothearelopment expenses will not change
materially in absolute dollars, as the savingsizedlfrom our restructuring efforts in June 2014 bé offset by a full year of expenses from
our acquisition of skobbler.

Sales and marketingOur sales and marketing expenses increased $33tdé million in fiscal 2014 from $30.4 million fiscal 2013 .
The increase was primarily due to increases in @sation, benefits and commissions of $2.3 miliad contracted services of $0.7 million,
partially offset by a decrease in advertising arahmtion expense of $0.8 million. As a percentaigeeeenue, sales and marketing expenses
increased to 22% in fiscal 2014 from 16% in fis2@13 . The total number
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of sales and marketing personnel increased 9%la@t0une 30, 2014 from 93 at June 30, 2013 . WWeatthat our sales and marketing
expenses will continue to increase over time irohlie dollars as we invest in sales personnel ataded support functions fort our growing
advertising business.

General and administrativeOur general and administrative expenses incre@®etb $26.2 million in fiscal 2014 from $24.8 ol in
fiscal 2013 , including $1.1 million in skobblercagsition related costs. The increase was primalily to increased compensation and benefit
of $0.8 million, increased stock compensation egpesf $0.9 million and increased professional sexviees of $0.8 million, partially offset
decreased legal costs of $1.4 million. The totahber of general and administrative personnel deexd@% to 66 at June 30, 2014 from 71 at
June 30, 2013 . As a percentage of revenue, gesretladdministrative expenses increased to 17%ad@alf2014 from 13% in fiscal 2013 . We
anticipate that our general and administrative agpe may vary substantially from period to perisdva incur legal expenses associated with
ongoing intellectual property litigation and reqgisefor indemnification related to intellectual pesty litigation proceed, as well as one-time
costs related to the acquisition of companies siscskobbler.

Restructuring costsWe incurred restructuring costs of $4.4 milliorfiscal 2014 in order to further align our res@s@nd consolidate
facilities. We initiated a restructuring plan catsig of reductions of approximately 108 full-tipesitions in the U.S. and China and we
recorded restructuring charges of $2.4 milliontedao severance and benefits for the positiomsiedited. In addition, we closed our Boston
office and consolidated our Sunnyvale headquaféeibties from two buildings into one and recordedtructuring charges of $2.0 million
related to the impairment of our facility leases.

We incurred restructuring costs of $1.7 milliorfistal 2013 in order to better align and focus @sources around our strategic growth
areas. We initiated a restructuring plan consistiigeductions of approximately 83 full-time poasiis in the U.S. and China and we recorded
restructuring charges of $1.5 million related teesance and benefits for the positions eliminabe@ddition, we consolidated our Shanghai
office facilities and recorded restructuring chargé$0.1 million related to the forfeiture of dease deposit. We also recorded restructuring
charges of $0.1 million related to the write-offaefrtain assets that were no longer useful to secapon the changes in our business.

Other income, netOur other income, net was $1.3 million in fis2all4 and $1.2 million in fiscal 2013 .

Income from discontinued operations, n€&ur income from discontinued operations, net $ia% million in fiscal 2013 and includes a
gain of $6.5 million realized on the sale of outegprise business, net of tax. We had no discoatiraperations in fiscal 2014.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe®ur provision (benefit) for income taxes, exchgldiscontinued operations, decreased to $(4.0)
million in fiscal 2014 from $1.1 million in fisc&013 . Our effective tax rate, excluding discontidwperations, was 12% in fiscal 2014
compared to 16% in fiscal 2013 . Our effectivetae in fiscal 2014 was lower than the tax compuatetthe U.S. federal statutory income tax
rate due primarily to the increase to the valuatibowance which resulted in additional federal éapense of $7.0 million.

The usage of our remaining U.S. federal and stet® darryforwards at June 30, 2014 of approxim&i2Ig million and $26.5 million,
respectively, is substantially limited each fisgaar by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.

As of June 30, 2014 , our cumulative unrecognizedenefit was $6.9 million, of which $1.5 millievas netted against deferred tax
assets. Included in the other long-term liabiliées unrecognized tax benefits at June 30, 20%5 &f million that, if recognized, would affect
the annual effective tax rate.

We believe it is reasonably possible that, as n€JR0, 2014, the gross unrecognized tax benefitkl aecrease (whether by payment,
release, or a combination of both) by approxima$dly million in the next 12 months. We recognizeeiest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits as part of our provisarincome taxes. We had $0.6 million and $0.3iornillaccrued for the payment of interest
and penalties at June 30, 2014 and 2013, resphctive

In fiscal 2014, we recorded a valuation allowancehe majority of our deferred tax assets, netadiilities, since the assets are not more
likely than not to be realized based upon our assest of all positive and negative evideriRealization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon future taxable earnings, the timing of whighimcertain. Due to losses in fiscal 2014 and eegdosses in fiscal 2015 and potentially
future years in the U.S., we established in fi€Hl4 a valuation allowance on deferred tax asadtsei U.S. that we believe will not be reali:
by the carryback provisions of U.S. tax law. U#x taw allows for the two-year carryback of losaed one-year carryback of credits to
previous tax years which can generate a tax refotice extent taxes were paid. Due to foreign dpeydosses in previous years and continue
foreign earnings volatility, we continued to mainta full valuation allowance for our foreign defed tax assets. Our valuation allowance
increased from the prior fiscal year by approxirya$10.1 million, $0.7 million and $0.3 million ifiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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The $10.1 million increase in our valuation allowarn fiscal 2014 included a $7.4 million valuatiaiiowance against deferred tax assets in
the U.S.

We anticipate that a significant portion of oucfs2014 tax benefit of $(11.4) million, net of theé.4 million valuation allowance against
deferred tax assets in the U.S., will be realizethé form of a refund during fiscal 2015.

On December 31, 2013, the research and develomresit expired for federal tax purposes. The 20a2phyer Relief Act extended the
research and development credit for two years D@dember 31, 2013. Although the research and dprrednt credit has been extended every
year since enactment, a tax benefit cannot be deddor the expired period until the extendershrlé been passed and signed by the Pres
If and when the extenders bill is passed and sigvitdretroactive effect, a retroactive tax benefill be recorded in the period the extenders
bill is passed and signed. We have recorded agagfl for the federal research and developmemditctterough December 31, 2013.

We file income tax returns with the Internal Revei8ervice, or IRS, California, various states andign tax jurisdictions in which we
have subsidiaries. The statute of limitations remmaipen for fiscal 2011 through fiscal 2013 inth8., for fiscal 2010 through fiscal 2013 in
state jurisdictions, and for fiscal 2009 througdtél 2013 in foreign jurisdictions. Fiscal yearssale the normal statute of limitations remain
open to audit by tax authorities due to tax attésigenerated in those early years which have tereied forward and may be audited in
subsequent years when utilized.

Comparison of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2032012
Revenue

Product revenue Product revenue increased 186% to $69.2 millicfiscal 2013 from $24.2 million in fiscal 2012. 8 increase was due
primarily to increased revenue from automotive gatibn solutions we provide for Ford vehicles, uthg the launch of our solutions in
additional Ford and Lincoln models. In additiompguct revenue in fiscal 2013 included $9.2 millafrcustomized software revenue received
from Ford.

Services revenueServices revenue decreased 32% to $122.6 mitlifiscal 2013 from $181.3 million in fiscal 201Phe decrease was
due primarily to lower revenue from Sprint resudtiinom our July 2012 Sprint amendment, which reglih a significant reduction in our fix
fee revenue from Sprint for bundled users begindinlg 1, 2012, and lower subscription fees resglfiom decreases in the number of paying
subscribers for mobile navigation services provittedugh AT&T and T-Mobile. These decreases werégily offset by growth in revenue
from monetization of freemium offerings through @l@ss carriers and application stores and growthahile navigation revenue
internationally. Accordingly, in fiscal 2013, seres revenue from Sprint, AT&T and T-Mobile decrebbg $65.3 million, and the decrease
was partially offset by an increase in servicegnere of $5.4 million driven by growth in monetizatiof freemium offerings and international.

Revenue concentrationsn fiscal 2013 and 2012, Ford represented 36%1&84 of our total revenue, respectively. In fis2al3 and
2012, revenue from AT&T represented 28% and 35%uofiotal revenue, respectively, and revenue framngrepresented 16% and 36% of
our total revenue, respectively.

Subscription fees from our mobile navigation sezviepresented 61% and 86% of our total revenuis¢alf2013 and 2012, respectively.
Revenue from our automotive navigation solutionsesented 37% and 13% of our total revenue inlf&@a3 and 2012, respectively. Reve
from our mobile advertising represented 2% and f#uototal revenue in fiscal 2013 and 2012, retpely.

We primarily sell our services in the United Statedfiscal 2013 and 2012, revenue derived from. ddbirces represented 92% and 94%
of our total revenue, respectively. With respeateteenue we receive from automobile manufactuneds@EMs for sales of vehicles in other
countries, we classify that revenue as being gée@ia the United States, because we provide dalbles to and receive compensation from
the manufacturer's or OEM's United States' entitbsolute dollars, revenue from our internaticy@rations increased in fiscal 2013.

Cost of revenue

Cost of product revenueOur cost of product revenue increased 180% to2h3lion in fiscal 2013 from $13.6 million in ftsl 2012,
which was lower than the 186% increase in prodexemue. Our cost of product revenue increased domaply to an increase in third party
content costs of $20.0 million, commensurate whth growth in our product revenue. However, cogirofluct revenue increased at a lower
rate than product revenue due primarily to the $8ilRon of customized engineering revenue fromdsavhich had substantially lower
associated costs as a percentage of revenue than-twoard navigation revenue earned from FordHersale of vehicles with our navigation
products.
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Cost of services revenu®ur cost of services revenue was comparable@®$8illion in fiscal 2013 and $30.8 million in ial 2012.
Cost of services revenue did not decline commetsuvih the 32% decrease in services revenue dtisogl 2013. Cost of services revenu
fiscal 2013 was impacted by increased network dpgrmand customer support costs of $1.2 milliod mecreased amortization expense of
$1.4 million, primarily related to the developedhaology acquired from Thinknear, that were offsgtn decrease in third party content costs
of $2.5 million.

Gross profit. Our gross profit decreased to $122.7 millionisedl 2013 from $161.1 million in fiscal 2012. Qgnoss margin decreased
to 64% in fiscal 2013 from 78% in fiscal 2012. Tdecrease in gross margin was due to lower serwaesnue from Sprint and the increased
proportion of product revenue contributed from onfboard automotive navigation solutions provide&aord, which generally have higher
associated content costs and resulting in lowesggneargins than our mobile navigation servicesigeml/through our wireless carrier
customers. However, the higher content costs afyarbrevenue in fiscal 2013 were partially offsgthe higher gross margin we earned or
$9.2 million of customized engineering revenue friéand.

Research and developmer@ur research and development expenses decre#str$50.3 million in fiscal 2013 from $65.8 miltian
fiscal 2012. The decrease was primarily due toetesd compensation and benefits costs of $5.@malssociated with decreased average
headcount, primarily in our China offices. As aqeattage of revenue, research and development eepdasreased to 31% in fiscal 2013 fron
32% in fiscal 2012. The total number of researah @evelopment personnel decreased 22% to 480 at3yr2013 from 615 at June 30, 2012.
A substantial portion of the decrease in personoelirred in June 2013 in conjunction with our nestinring efforts.

Sales and marketingOur sales and marketing expenses increased 2@30td million in fiscal 2013 from $25.3 million fiscal 2012.
The increase was primarily due to increased adbmegtiand promotion expenses of $2.2 million, inseebstock-based compensation of $1.1
million and increased recruiting expenses of $0llan. As a percentage of revenue, sales and ntiadexpenses increased to 16% in fiscal
2013 from 12% in fiscal 2012. The total numberags and marketing personnel decreased 18% toAfhat30, 2013 from 113 at June 30,
2012.

General and administrativeOur general and administrative expenses decréiféad $24.8 million in fiscal 2013 from $26.1 ok in
fiscal 2012. The decrease was primarily due toetesad legal costs of $5.4 million, partially offegtincreased compensation and benefits
costs of $1.2 million, increased stock compensagiqrense of $1.3 million and professional servfees of $0.4 million. The total number of
general and administrative personnel decreased3®b at June 30, 2013 from 73 at June 30, 2012 percentage of revenue, general and
administrative expenses were comparable at 13%aalf2013 and 2012.

Restructuring costsWe incurred restructuring costs of $1.7 milliorfiscal 2013 in order to better align and focus @sources around
our strategic growth areas. We initiated a restmireg plan consisting of reductions of approxima@3 full-time positions in the U.S. and
China and we recorded restructuring charges of glll®n related to severance and benefits forghsitions eliminated. In addition, we
consolidated our Shanghai office facilities andrded restructuring charges of $0.1 million relatthe forfeiture of our lease deposit. We
also recorded restructuring charges of $0.1 miltelated to the write-off of certain assets thatenso longer useful to us based upon the
changes in our business.

Other income, netOur other income, net was $1.2 million in fis2a@lL3 and $1.5 million in fiscal 2012. The change wemarily due to
decreased interest income due to lower cash amdecpsvalents and short-term investments balances.

Income from discontinued operations, n€&ur income from discontinued operations, net $ia% million in fiscal 2013 and $0.6 million
in fiscal 2012. Income from discontinued operationiscal 2013 includes a gain of $6.5 million lizad on the sale of our enterprise business
net of tax.

Provision for income taxesOur provision for income taxes, excluding discaumed operations, decreased to $1.1 million irefi013
from $13.6 million in fiscal 2012. Our effectivexteate, excluding discontinued operations, was I%scal 2013 compared to 30% in fiscal
2012. Our effective tax rate in fiscal 2013 wasdowhan the tax computed at the U.S. federal statimcome tax rate due primarily to the
R&D credit and changes in intercompany arrangemgatsially offset by nondeductible stock compeitsat
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Liquidity and capital resources
The following table sets forth the major sourced ases of cash and cash equivalents for each gietheds set forth below:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (22,559 $ 4291 % 29,307
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 20,13: (18%) (36,719
Net cash used in financing activities (8,889 (23,879 (9,640
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbagmnts 51 13 (87
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (11,259 $ 18,867 $ (17,139

At June 30, 2014 , we had cash and cash equivaedtshort-term investments of $136.8 million , ebhprimarily consisted of money
market mutual funds, municipal securities, corpotainds and commercial paper held by well-cap#dlimancial institutions.

Our accounts receivable are heavily concentratedsimall number of customers. As of June 30, 2@l# accounts receivable balance
was $25.8 million , of which Ford and AT&T repreteth47% and 19% , respectively.

Our future capital requirements will depend on meagjors, including our ability to stabilize ouvenue and control expenses in fiscal
2015 and beyond, whether we return to profitahilite timing and extent of expenditures to supgextelopment efforts, the expansion of
research and development and sales and marketingies and headcount, the introduction of our reavd enhanced service and product
offerings and the growth in our end user base. @ieve our cash, cash equivalents and short-tevestments will be sufficient to satisfy our
financial obligations through at least the nexini@nths. However, we expect to use cash in operattigities in fiscal 2015 and we may
experience greater than expected cash usage iatmgeactivities if revenue is lower than we améate or we incur greater than expected cost
of revenue or operating expenses. Our revenue pechiing results could be lower than we anticifiamong other reasons, our customers,
two of which we are substantially dependent uparaftarge portion of our revenue, were to limitemminate our relationships with them; we
were to fail to successfully compete in our higbbmpetitive market, including against competitotsoveffer their services for free; our
revenue did not grow as expected or we were urtabileduce our costs by using OSM. In the futurenves acquire businesses or technolo
or license technologies from third parties, andway decide to raise additional capital through aelgquity financing to the extent we believe
this is necessary to successfully complete thegeisitions or license these technologies. Howeagdijtional financing may not be available to
us on favorable terms, if at all, at the time we&kenauch determinations, which could have a matedaérse effect on our business, operating
results, financial condition and liquidity and casdsition.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitidket cash provided by (used in) operating actsitivas $(22.6) million , $42.9 million
and $29.3 million in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 20t@spectively. Cash provided by (used in) operatictiyvities has historically been affected by
growth in our end user base and increases in anatipg costs. In fiscal 2014 , cash used in opayatctivities was driven principally by a net
loss of $29.5 million and a $23.0 million changeim operating assets and liabilities, partiallisef by non-cash charges for depreciation and
amortization of $6.8 million , stock-based compeieseof $11.5 million , and valuation allowance @&ferred tax assets of $7.4 million . In
fiscal 2013, cash provided by operating activities provided principally by net income of $13.1limil, non-cash charges for depreciation
and amortization of $8.4 million, stock-based comgagion of $8.6 million and a $7.1 million changeour operating assets and liabilities. In
fiscal 2012, cash provided by operating activities generated principally by net income of $32.Hiani, non-cash charges for depreciation
and amortization of $8.2 million and stock-basedhpensation of $5.1 million, partially offset by 2054 million change in our operating asset:
and liabilities.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitidet cash provided by (used in) investing actgtivas $20.1 million , $(0.2) million
and $(36.7) million during fiscal 2014 , 2013 arid 2 , respectively. In fiscal 2014 , cash was ptegiprimarily by proceeds from sales and
maturities of short-term investments, net of pusesa of $40.2 million , partially offset by our agsjtion of skobbler for $19.2 million and
purchases of property and equipment of $1.1 millionfiscal 2013, we used cash primarily for oagaisition of Thinknear of $18.3 million
and purchases of property and equipment of $2.lomilwhich were offset by proceeds from sales mmadurities of shorterm investments, n
of purchases, of $22.2 million. In fiscal 2012, kcags used primarily for purchases of property eqaipment of $13.5 million ($7.3 million of
which was related to tenant improvements in our headquarters building), internal software develeptitosts of $2.4 million and net
purchases of $18.0 million of short-term investrselfe expect our capital expenditures in futuréogsrto remain in line with fiscal 2014
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as we continue to invest in the infrastructure eeedr our strategic growth areas of automotive aavertising, while also leveraging the
benefits of hosted environments for which we ngkarhave to make large upfront capital expenditwwestments.

Net cash used in financing activitieBuring fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we used @ashur financing activities of $8.9 million , $Z8.
million and $9.6 million, respectively. In fiscaD24 , 2013 and 2012 , these activities reflecrépeirchases of our outstanding stock under ot
stock repurchase programs and tax withholdings géded to net share settlements of restricteckaiaits upon vesting, and were patrtially
offset by proceeds from the exercise of optionsofarcommon stock.

Contractual obligations, commitments and contingees

We generally do not enter into long term minimunnghase commitments. However, we have agreed tong@ynum annual license fees
to certain of our third party content providers.r@tincipal commitments, in addition to those rethto our third party content providers,
consist of obligations under facility leases fdii@f space in Sunnyvale and Culver City, CalifoyiNarthlake, Washington; Reston, Virginia;
Southfield, Michigan; Boston, Massachusetts; Chacdiginois; New York, New York; Shanghai, Chinaj'ah, China; Sdo Paulo, Brazil;
Berlin, Germany; and Cluj, Romania.

The following table summarizes our outstanding @oreelable contractual obligations as of June 30420

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Operating lease obligations(1) $ 27,07: % 4,76C % 10,477 $ 9,77 $ 2,06
Purchase obligations(2) 6,02: 4,41¢ 1,48z 12t —
Total contractual obligations $ 33,098 $ 9,17¢ $ 11,95¢ $ 9,897 $ 2,06:

(1) Consists of contractual obligations for office spander noncancelable operating leases, net oéasibincom
(2) Consists of minimum noncancelable financiahautments primarily related to fees owed to certhird party content providers,
regardless of usage level.

At June 30, 2014 , we had a liability for unrecagui tax benefits and an accrual for the paymerelafed interest totaling $6.1 million .
Due to uncertainties related to these tax mattesare unable to make a reasonably reliable edingfathen cash settlements with the taxing
authority will occur.

Warranties and indemnifications

Our agreements with our customers generally incagttain provisions for indemnifying them againabilities if our navigation service
or products infringe a third party’s intellectuabperty rights or for other specified reasons. Veehin the past received indemnification
requests or notices of their intent to seek indéoation in the future from our customers with respto litigation in which our customers have
been named as defendants. See Part |, Item 3, 'Begeeedings.” As it relates to past indemnificatiequests or notices, in certain situations
we have agreed to defend or indemnify our custofieerthe indemnity demands. For those notices wherdave not agreed to provide
indemnity or defense to date, or future demandifilemnity, we may in the future agree to defend iademnify our customers, irrespective
of whether we believe that we have an obligatioméemnify them or whether we believe our navigaservices and products infringe the
asserted intellectual property rights. Alternatyyele may reject certain of our customers’ indesndigmands, including the outstanding
demands, which may lead to disputes with our custepmegatively impact our relationships with themnesult in litigation against us. Our
customers may also claim that any rejection ofrtimeiemnity demands constitutes a material bredctuoagreements with them, allowing
them to terminate such agreements. If, as a resirllemnity demands, we make substantial paymentsielationships with our customers
negatively impacted, or any of our customer agregsis terminated, our business, operating reanltsfinancial condition could be materie
harmed. As of June 30, 2014 , any costs in cormreetith such indemnity demands which are probabteestimable have been recorded in
our consolidated financial statements.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, officard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain lim
while such persons are or were serving at our Eqaesuch capacity. We may terminate the indercatiibn agreements with these persons
upon the termination of their services with us, teamination will not affect claims for indemnifittan related to events occurring prior to the
effective date of termination. The maximum amoumntatential future indemnification is unlimited. Wiave a director and officer insurance
policy that limits our potential exposure. We bedighe
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fair value of these indemnification agreementsiisimal. We have not recorded any liabilities foesle agreements as of June 30, 2014 .

Off-balance sheet arrangements

During fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , we did noteéhamy relationships with unconsolidated entitiefr@ncial partnerships, such as
structured finance or special purpose entitiesciwiiould have been established for the purposaaifthting off-balance sheet arrangements
or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In June 2013, the FASB ratified Emerging IssuekTasce (EITF) Issue 13-C, “Presentation of an dagnized Tax Benefit When a
Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lassa Tax Credit Carryforward Exi” which concludes an unrecognized tax benefit
should be presented as a reduction of a deferreastset when settlement in this manner is availabdier the tax law. We will adopt this
amendment beginning July 1, 2014. The result optidn may be to reclassify certain long term ligibs for uncertain income tax positions
reduce the carrying value of long term deferredassets. However, the adoption is not expectedstaltrin a material change to the tax
provision. We do not believe that the impact on@ansolidated financial statements will be sigrafit.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standargddadte No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts witht@usrs" (ASU No. 2014-
09), requiring an entity to recognize the amoumeskEnue to which it expects to be entitled fortriaasfer of promised goods or services to
customers. The updated standard will replace mastirg revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAARew it becomes effective and permits
the use of either the retrospective or cumulatiecetransition method. Early adoption is not p#tad. The updated standard becomes
effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal ZWe have not yet selected a transition methodnandre currently evaluating the effect that the
updated standard will have on our consolidatedhfifed statements and related disclosures.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Interest rate sensitivityThe primary objectives of our investment actestare to preserve principal, provide liquidity anaximize
income without significantly increasing risk. Byljpy, we do not enter into investments for tradorgspeculative purposes. Some of the
securities we invest in are subject to market fi$ks means that a change in prevailing intera@ssrmay cause the fair value of the investmen
to fluctuate. To minimize this risk, we invest ivariety of securities, which primarily consistrmbney market funds, commercial paper,
municipal securities and other debt securitiesaphestic corporations. Due to the nature of thegesitments and relatively short duration of
underlying securities, we believe that we do natehany material exposure to changes in the fairevaf our investment portfolio as a result of
changes in interest rates. Declines in interessrdtowever, will reduce future interest incomel08 appreciation or depreciation in interest
rates in fiscal 2014 would not have had a matarighct on our interest income or the fair valu®af marketable securities.

Foreign currency risk A substantial majority of our revenue has beamegsated to date from our end users in the UnitateStand, as
such, our revenue has not been substantially eggostuctuations in currency exchange rates. Hawesome of our contracts with our
customers outside of the United States are dendedrna currencies other than the U.S. dollar aedetfore expose us to foreign currency risk.
Should the revenue generated outside of the USitatks grow in absolute amounts and as a perceotage revenue, we will increasingly be
exposed to foreign currency exchange risks. Intamdia portion of our operating expenses are imclioutside the United States, are
denominated in foreign currencies and are subjechanges in foreign currency exchange rates cpdatly the Chinese Renminbi, or RMB,
and the Romanian Leu. Additionally, changes inifpreeurrency exchange rates may cause us to remgainsaction gains and losses in our
statement of operations. An immediate 10% adveraage in exchange rates on foreign denominatedvedates and payables as of June 30,
2014 would not have resulted in a material loss.

To date, we have not used any foreign currencydadveontracts or similar instruments to attemphitigate our exposure to changes in
foreign currency rates.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The response to this item is submitted as a sepsaeation of this Form 10-K. See Part IV, Item 15.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleeécutive officer and our chief financial officenyaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of June@®@l 2The term “disclosure controls and procedusdefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls dmet @rocedures of a company that are designedsirethat information required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded;ge®ed, summarized and reported, within
the time periods specified in the SEC's rules amthk. Disclosure controls and procedures includtiowt limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it flesubmits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s neaneugt, including its principal executive and prpatifinancial officers, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disciee. Management recognizes that any controls eowég@ures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assuddiraahieving their objectives and management rezaég applies its judgment in evaluat
the cost-benefit relationship of possible conteoidl procedures. Based on the evaluation of oulodisie controls and procedures as of
June 30, 2014our chief executive officer and chief financidficer concluded that, as of such date, our disgi@sontrols and procedures w
effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting

The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sarb@mntsy Act, adopted rules requiring every compémat files reports with the SEC to
include a management report on such company’snateontrol over financial reporting in its annueport. In addition, our independent
registered public accounting firm must attest ®effectiveness of our internal control over finahoeporting.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our finahoégorting and the preparation of financial stagets for external purposes in accordance witt
generally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed our internal control overdiabreporting as of June 30, 2014 . Managemergd#s assessment on criteria
established in the 1998ternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway
Commission. Based on our assessment, managemeeaidsded that our internal control over financggorting was effective as of June 30,
2014 .

Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered pusaticounting firm, has issued a report on our irgtecontrol over financial reporting,
which is included below.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repogtin

There were no changes in our internal control éwamncial reporting that occurred during the thmeenths ended June 30, 20thét have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Control systems, no matter how well conceived goerated, are designed to provide a reasonabl@dbain absolute, level of assurance
that the objectives of the control system are fratther, the design of a control system must reflee fact that there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be consideretivel to their costs. Because of the inherent étiahs in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that attalissues and instances of fraud, if any, haaentdetected. Because of the inherent
limitations in any control system, misstatements ttuerror or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Telemaw,

We have audited Telenav, Ire.internal control over financial reporting as ohd 30, 2014, based on criteria established irrrial
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee olSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissid@@®2lframework) (th
COSO criteria). Telenav, Ins."management is responsible for maintaining effecthternal control over financial reporting, anat fits
assessment of the effectiveness of internal comivel financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagemen$ Report on Intern
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibilg to express an opinion on the Comparipternal control over financial reporting ba
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadw of the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetadadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifecfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigase considered necessary in the circumstancesbéhNeve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is apess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregshe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princig
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdihose policies and procedures that (1) pertathéanaintenance of records tl
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbet transactions and dispositions of the assettseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accoréamdgth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoasizations of management :
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanaslsurance regarding prevention or timely deteatfounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtrver financial reporting may not prevent or dttmisstatements. Also, projections
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaibject to the risk that controls may becomedénaate because of changes in conditior
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Telenav, Inc. maintained, in allteréal respects, effective internal control overaficial reporting as of June 30, 2(
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Telenav, Inc. daré 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consdlidéitements of operations, comprehensiv
income (loss), stockholders’ equity, and cash flievseach of the three years in the period endee 30, 2014 of Telenav, Inc., and our report
dated August 22, 2014, expressed an unqualifieci@pthereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
August 22, 2014
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.

PART III.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 1GHe€, information required by this Iltem 10 relatiogour executive officers is included
under the caption “Executive Officers of the Reagist” in Part | of this Form 10-K.

The other information required by this Item 10risdrporated by reference to our Proxy Statemerthim2014 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdltange Commission within 120 days of our June2B@4fiscal year end) under the headi
“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance, datSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Qdiance.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incargted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 8l2Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities anxdltange Commission within 120 days of our June2B@4fiscal year end) under the headi
“Corporate Governance,” “Executive Compensationdi &Compensation Committee Report.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is incargted by reference to our Proxy Statement for Bet2Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdliange Commission within 120 days of our June28Q4fiscal year end) under the headi
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerslaanagement” and “Equity Compensation Plan Infdroma”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 8et2Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdliange Commission within 120 days of our June28Q4fiscal year end) under the headi
“Corporate Governance” and “Certain Relationshipd Related Party Transactions.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incargted by reference to our Proxy Statement for Bl2Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities anxdltange Commission within 120 days of our June28@4 fiscal year end) under the heading
“Ratification of Appointment of Independent Regisig Public Accounting Firm.”
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PART IV.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) 1. Financial Statements

We have filed the consolidated financial statemésiisd in the Index to Consolidated Financial &atnts of Telenav, Inc. on page F-1
as a part of this Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule [I—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts i$ fegth on page F-31 of this Form X2-All other schedules are omitted because
are not applicable or the required informationhewen in the Consolidated Financial Statements had\btes thereto.

3. Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or aredarporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfigth the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
Number Description From Form Number
2.1 Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreemend, Alptié 16, 2013, by 10-Q 2.1
and between Telenav, Inc. and FleetCor Technold@pyating Company, 5/8/2013
LLC.
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatjmor of TeleNav, Inc. 10-K 3.1 9/24/2010
filed on May 18, 2010.
3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment of Second Amended and &egtCertificate of 8-K 311
: ; 12/3/2012
Incorporation of Telenav, Inc. filed on November 2812.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of TeleNav, Inc. dffeas of May 18, 2010. 10-K 3.2 9/24/2009
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of TeleNav, Inc. S-1/A 4.1 1/5/2010
4.2 Fifth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agrestmdated April 14, S-1 4.2
2009, between TeleNav, Inc. and certain holdefetéNav, Inc.’s capital 10/30/2009
stock named therein.
10.1 Ef(;irg;g Indemnification Agreement between Regigteard its directors and S-1 10.1 10/30/2009
10.2# 1999 Stock Option Plan and forms of agreement thneter. S-1 10.2 10/30/2009
10.3# 2002 Executive Stock Option Plan and forms of ages# thereunder. S-1 10.3 10/30/2009
10.4# 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended. 8-K 10.4.1 12/3/2012
10.4.1# Forms of agreement under the 2009 Equity IncerRiea. S-1 10.4 10/30/2009
10.5# Employment Agreement, dated as of April 20, 20@8ween TeleNav, Inc. S-1 10.5 10/30/2009
and Douglas Miller.
10.5.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefil@stober 28, 200! S-1 10.5.1
. 10/30/2009
between TeleNav, Inc. and Douglas Miller.
10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2009wieen TeleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.6
Loren Hillberg. 10/30/2009
10.6.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefi@stober 28, 200! S-1 10.6.1 10/30/2009

between TeleNav, Inc. and Loren Hillberg.
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Exhibit
Number

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

10.10.1#

10.11

10.11.1

10.12

10.13t

10.13.1%

10.13.2%

10.13.3t

10.13.4t

10.13.5+

10.13.6+

10.13.7+

10.13.8+

Description

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2005, éetwieleNav, Inc. and
Hassan Wabhla.

Employment Agreement, dated October 28, 2009, =tiieleNav, Inc. and
H.P. Jin.

Form of Employment Agreement between TeleNav, &mcl each of Y.C.
Chao, Salman Dhanani, Robert Rennard and HassataWah

Severance Agreement and General Release, datédasuary 29, 2009,
between TeleNav, Inc. and William Bettencourt.

Amendment dated July 8, 2009 to the Severance Aggeeand General
Release, dated as of January 29, 2009, betweeNawlénc. and William
Bettencourt.

Industrial/R&D Lease, dated as of October 9, 2@36and between TeleNav,
Inc. and Roeder Family Trust B.

First Amendment dated October 27, 2006 to the lm#R&D Lease, dated
as of October 9, 2006, by and between TeleNav,dnd.Roeder Family Trust
B

Shanghai Real Estate Lease Agreement, dated gariv®28, 2009, by and
between TeleNav Shanghai Inc. and Shanghai Dongfiégiging Culture
Development Co.

Sprint Master Application and Services Agreemeated as of January 30,
2009, by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint dnitanagement
Company.

Amendment No. 1 effective as of July 1, 2009 toSpeint Master Applicatio
and Services Agreement, dated as of January 3@, B§tand between
TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Management Company.

Amendment No. 2 effective as of December 16, 2008¢ Sprint Master
Application and Services Agreement, dated as afidan30, 2009, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Manager@amhpany.

Addendum effective as of March 12, 2010 to the i8gviaster Application
and Services Agreement, dated as of January 3@, B§tand between
TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Management Company.

Amendment No. 3 effective as of December 16, 2008¢ Sprint Master
Application and Services Agreement, dated as afidan30, 2009, as
amended, by and between TeleNav, Inc. and SpriiietdManagement
Company, effective as of September 1, 2010.

Amendment No. 4 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &nddreTeleNav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as afd¥l 29, 2012.

Amendment No. 5 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &wddreTeleNav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asubf 1, 2012.

Amendment No. 6 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &anddeTelenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asaotidry 18, 2013.

Amendment No. 7 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre Telenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as mfil/8, 2013.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference .
by Reference  From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
st 107 10/30/2009
st 108 10/30/2009
st 10.9 10/30/2009
s 10.10 10/30/2009
S-1 10.10.1
10/30/2009
st 1011 10/30/2009
S-1 10.11.1
10/30/2009
S-1/A 10.12
12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.13
2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.13.1
2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.13.2
1/5/2010
S-1/A 10.13.3
4/26/2010
10-Q 10.13.4
11/15/2010
10-K 10.13.5
9/7/2012
10-K 10.13.6
9/7/2012
10-K 10.13.7
8/30/2013
10-K 10.13.8
8/30/2013




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

10.13.9+

10.14%

10.14.1¢t

10.14.2t

10.14.3t

10.14.4t

10.14.5t

10.14.6t

10.14.7t

10.14.8t

10.14.9+

10.14.10+

10.15t

10.15.1¢t

10.15.2¢t

10.15.3+

10.15.4+

10.15.5+

Description

Amendment No. 8 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre Telenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as@filA5, 2013.

License and Service Agreement, dated as of MarcRA@®8, by and between
TeleNav, Inc. and AT&T Mobility LLC.

First Amendment effective as of November 13, 2@D8he License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 noybeetween TeleNav, In
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Second Amendment effective as of November 20, 20@8e License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 noybeetween TeleNav, In
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Fourth Amendment effective as of June 16, 2008¢d.fcense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Sixth Amendment effective as of October 13, 200theoLicense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Seventh Amendment effective as of October 27, 26@Be License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 noybeetween TeleNav, In
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Eighth Amendment effective as of November 16, 2@0he License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 nioybeetween TeleNav, In
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Ninth Amendment effective as of April 13, 2010 e t_icense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and =tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Tenth Amendment effective as of January 18, 201hed icense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and =tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Eleventh Amendment effective as of December 6, 20%he License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 noybeetween TeleNav, In
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Twelfth Amendment effective as of June 17, 201thtoLicense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

License Agreement effective as of July 1, 2009aig between TeleNav, Inc.
and Tele Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No.1 effective as of March 1, 2010 toltleense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, by and between TeleNwav,dnd Tele Atlas North
America, Inc.

Amendment No. 2 effective as of August 1, 201thlticense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfedeNav, Inc. and Tele
Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 3 effective as of December 14, 201ibé License
Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, as amendeahdypetween TeleNav,
Inc. and Tele Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 4 effective as of November 21, 2@lthé License
Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, as amendeghdypetween TeleNav,
Inc. and TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 5 effective as of March 24, 201lhlticense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betWeeNav, Inc. and
TomTom North America, Inc.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ,
by Reference  From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10-K 10.13.9
8/30/2013
A 10.14 2/2/2010
S-1 10.14.1
10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.2
10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.3
10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.4
10/30/2009
S-1/A 10.14.5
12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.14.6
1/5/2010
10-K 10.14.7
9/24/2010
10-Q 10.14.8
5/10/2011
10-K 10.14.9
8/30/2013
10-K 10.14.10
8/30/2013
SA 10.15 12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.15.1
4/26/2010
10-Q 10.15.2
11/15/2010
10-K 10.15.3
9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.4
9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.5
9/7/2012
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Exhibit
Number

10.15.6+

10.15.7t

10.15.8t

10.16%

10.16.17

10.16.27

10.16.37

10.16.4t

10.16.5

10.16.6t

10.16.77

10.16.87

10.16.9t

10.16.10%

10.16.11t

10.16.12t

10.16.13

10.16.14%

10.16.15%

10.16.16%

Description

Amendment No. 6 effective as of July 1, 2012 toltleense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and befheleNav, Inc. and
TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 7 effective as of November 1, 201théoLicense
Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, as amendeandypetween Telenav,
Inc. and TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 8 effective as of November 1, 201théoLicense
Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, as amendeahdypetween Telenav,
Inc. and TomTom North America, Inc.

Data License Agreement, dated as of December 2, 230and between
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qugtion.

Third Amendment dated December 22, 2004 to the Diatnse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Belgon, Inc. and
NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Fourth Amendment dated May 18, 2007 to the Datarise Agreement, dated
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNavahat NAVTEQ North
America, LLC.

Fifth Amendment dated January 15, 2008 to the Daense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeJdia and NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Seventh Amendment dated December 16, 2008 to ttelheense
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by ans@meleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ Europe B.V. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Eighth Amendment dated December 15, 2008 to tha Diaense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeJéia and NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 1, dated as of December D220@y and between
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qugtion.

Territory License No. 2, dated as of June 30, 20693nd between
Televigation, Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 3, dated as of February D&by and between
TeleNav, Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 5, dated as of March 6, 208§6and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 6, dated as of May 18, 2087and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 7, dated as of May 18, 2087and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Ninth Amendment dated February 25, 2010 to the Datense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002 by and between Te|dhNavand NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Tenth Amendment dated June 1, 2010 to the Datank&dgreement, dated
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNay, MV TEQ North
America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Eleventh Amendment dated September 16, 2010 tD#te License
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by areeeet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Twelfth Amendment dated September 28, 2010 to @ Dicense

Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by arneeeet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Fourteenth Amendment dated September 30, 201ktDala License
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by areeeet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ,
by Reference  From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10-K 10.15.6
9/7/2012
10-Q 10.15.7
2/8/2013
10-Q 10.15.8
2/8/2013
S-UA 10.16 2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.1
4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.2
2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.3
2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.4
4/26/2010
S-1 10.16.5
10/30/2009
S-UA 10.16.6 4/26/2010
SUA 10.16.7 412612010
SUA 10168 412612010
S-UA 10.16.9 4/26/2010
S-UA 10.16.10 4962010
SUA 101611 412612010
S-1/A 10.16.12
4/26/2010
10-Q 10.16.13
5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.14
5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.15
5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.16
5/7/2012
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Number

10.16.17t

10.16.18%

10.16.19%

10.16.20

10.16.21t

10.16.22t

10.16.23+

10.16.24

10.16.25+

10.16.26+

10.16.27+

10.16.28+

10.17#

10.18#

10.19+

10.20#

10.21#
10.22#

Incorporated
by Reference

Description From Form

Incorporated
by Reference
From Exhibit

Number

Date Filed

Territory License No. 8, dated December 1, 2011ahy between TeleNav, 10-Q
Inc., NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ EurofV.

First Amendment dated February 7, 2012 to Territacgnse No. 8, dated as 10-Q
of December 1, 2011, by and between TeleNav, MaVTEQ North
America, LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Second Amendment dated October 18, 2012 to Teyrritimense No. 8, dated 10-Q
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,

2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and

NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Fifteenth Amendment dated October 30, 2012 to thDicense Agreement, 10-Q
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Telama, NAVTEQ North
America, LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Third Amendment dated December 10, 2012 to Teyriticense No. 8, dated 10-Q
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,

2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and

NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Seventeenth Amendment dated June 27, 2013 to tlzelixanse Agreement,  10-Q/A
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HER Mmerica, LLC

(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies

Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

Fourth Amendment dated October 2, 2013 to Territdacgnse No. 8, dated 10-Q
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,

2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., and Navigafeehnologies Corporatic

(“NTC"), which was subsequently assigned by NTE®RE North America,

LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).

Eighteenth Amendment dated January 28, 2014 tbé#te License 10-Q
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by aneeleet HERE North

America, LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (fanerly Navigation
Technologies Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

Territory License No. 9, dated February 1, 2014bg between HERE North 10-Q
America, LLC, HERE Europe B.V., NAVTEQ Korea Cod, tand Telenav,

Inc.

General License Agreement, dated February 10, BQ®hd between HERE 10-Q
North America, LLC, and Telenav, Inc.

Nineteenth Amendment dated May 20, 2014 to the Daense Agreement, Filed
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HERE Mmerica, LLC herewith
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies

Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

First Amendment, dated June 12, 2014, to Territdcgnse No. 9, dated as of Filed
February 1, 2014, by and between Telenav, Inc. HERE North America, herewith
LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).”

Employment Offer Letter executed on June 28, 20ad fTeleNav, Inc. to 10-K
Dariusz Paczuski.

First Year Executive Employment Agreement datece 28y 2010 by and 10-K
between TeleNav, Inc. and Dariusz Paczuski.

Office Lease, dated as of June 28, 2011 and ex¢omdune 30, 2011, by and  10-K
between TeleNav, Inc. and CA-Sunnyvale Businesgetéimited

Partnership.

Employment Offer Letter dated August 10, 2011 frbefeNav, Inc. to Marc 10-Q
Aronson.

Form of First Year Executive Employment Agreement. 10-Q

Retention Letter dated March 28, 2012 from TeleNa®, to Michael W. 10-Q
Strambi.
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10.16.17

10.16.18

10.16.19

10.16.20

10.16.21

10.16.22

10.16.23

10.16.24

10.16.25

10.16.26

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21
10.22

5/7/2012

5/7/2012

2/8/2013

2/8/2013

2/8/2013

2/27/2014

11/8/2013

2/6/2014

5/8/2014

5/8/2014

9/24/2010

9/24/2010

9/9/2011

11/7/2011
11/7/2011
5/7/2012
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Exhibit
Number

10.23#

10.23.1#

10.24

10.25#
10.26+

10.26.1+

10.26.2+

10.26.3+

10.26.4+

10.26.5+

10.26.6+

10.26.7+

10.26.8+

10.26.9+

10.26.10t

10.26.11+

10.26.12+

Description

Employment Agreement dated March 28, 2012 betwexdeNav, Inc. and
Michael W. Strambi.

Amendment No. 1 dated December 20, 2013 to the &m@nt Agreement
dated March 28, 2012 between TeleNav, Inc. and dithV. Strambi.
Consulting Agreement effective June 16, 2012 betwiedeNav, Inc. and
Douglas Miller.

Director Offer Letter dated July 30, 2012 betweeteNav, Inc. and Ken Xie.

SYNC Generation 2 On-Board Navigation Agreemenedactober 12, 2009
by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company

Amendment No. 1 effective August 10, 2010 to theN&€&YGeneration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2008t between
TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 2 effective February 3, 2011 to t&lS Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 3 effective February 3, 2011 to t&lS Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 4 effective March 31, 2011 to the €/Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 5 effective March 31, 2011 to the €/Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 6 effective March 31, 2011 to the €Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 7 effective November 15, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129286 amended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 8 effective January 1, 2012 to th&l&YGeneration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 9 effective May 11, 2012 to the SYG€&heration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 10 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 11 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 12 effective February 28, 2013 toSN&C Generation 2
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129266 amended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference .
by Reference  From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10-Q 1023 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.23.1 0/16/2014
10 10.24 9/7/2012
10-K 10.25 9/7/2012
1o 10.26 9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.1
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.2
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.3
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.4
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.5
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.6
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.7
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.8
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.9
9/7/2012
10-Q 10.26.10
5/8/2013
10-K 10.26.11
8/30/2013
10-K 10.26.12
8/30/2013
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Exhibit
Number

10.26.13+

10.26.14+

10.26.15+

10.26.16+

10.27

10.28#
10.29#
10.30#

10.31#

21.1
23.1

24.1

31.1

31.2

32.1~

32.2~

101.INS*

101.SCH*
101.CAL*
101.DEF*
101.LAB*

Description

Amendment No. 13 effective June 17, 2013 to the 8X®&neration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 14 effective October 1, 2013 to thi&lS Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 15 effective November 18, 2013 toSN&IC Generation 2
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129288 amended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 16 effective April 17, 2014 to theNBY Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company

Consulting Agreement effective August 29, 2012 lestwTeleNav, Inc. and
Marc Aronson.

Summary of Nonemployee Director Compensation.
Amended and Restated Telenav, Inc. 2011 Stock @ptial Grant Plan.

Employment Offer Letter dated April 8, 2014 fromldrmav, Inc. to Vincent
Uttley

Vincent Uttley Employment Agreement dated April 20,14 by and between
Telenav, Inc. and Vincent Uttley

Subsidiaries of the registrant.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Power of Attorney (contained in the signature pagthis Form 10-K).

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCExecutive Officer.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCkinancial Officer.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCExecutive Officer.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCRinancial Officer.

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10-K 10.26.13
8/30/2013
10-Q 10.26.14
11/8/2013
10-Q 10.26.15
2/6/2014
10-Q 10.26.16
5/8/2014
10-K 10.27 9/7/2012
8-K 10.28 12/3/2012
S-8 4.2 10/29/2012

Filed herewitt

Filed herewitt

Filed herewitt

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed
herewith

Filed herewitt

Filed herewitt

Filed herewitt
Filed herewitt
Filed herewitt
Filed herewitt
Filed herewitt
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
Number Description From Form Number
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim Filed
herewith

# Management contracts or compensation plangangements in which directors or executive officaes eligible to participate.
+ Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punst@a request for confidential treatment filedhathe Securities and Exchange

Commission.
t Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punstman order granted by the Securities and Exgh&@ommission for confidential

treatment.

~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-479i8a) Rule: Management’s
Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repgrtamd Certification of Disclosure in Exchange AetiBdic Reports, the
certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 3B&teto are deemed to accompany this Form 10-K dhdat be deemed “filed” for
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Sudifications will not be deemed to be incorporabsdreference into any filings
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, eteethe extent that the registrant specificallgarporates it by reference.

* XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagépimation is furnished and not filed or a part akgistration statement or
prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 oS#wurities Act, is deemed not filed for purposeSextion 18 of the Exchange Act,
and otherwise is not subject to liability undershasections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

TELENAV, INC.

Dated:August 22, 2014 By: s/ Dr. HP JN
Dr. HP Jin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and @ief
Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose sighature appears below constitutes anairgpr. HP Jin
and Michael Strambi, jointly and severally, asdrider true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agentth full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemea place and stead, in any and all capacitiesigtothis Form 10-K, and to file the same, with
all exhibits thereto, and other documents in cotiaerdherewith, with the Securities and Exchangen@uassion, granting unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents full power and authority to dd perform each and every act and thing requisiteeoessary to be done in and about the
premises hereby ratifying and confirming all thaidsattorneys-in-fact and agents, or his or thelisitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or
cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydhowing persons on behalf of t
registrant in the capacities and on the dates atelit

Name and Signature Title Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ah@&fC

/sl Dr.HP JIN Executive Officer August 22, 2014
Dr. HP Jin (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl MICHAEL STRAMBI Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer August 22, 2014
Michael Strambi (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/sl SHAWN CAROLAN Director August 22, 2014

Shawn Carolan

/sl SAMUEL CHEN Director August 22, 2014
Samuel Chen

/sl HON JANE (JASON) CHIU Director August 22, 2014
Hon Jane (Jason) Chiu

/sl KEN XIE Director August 22, 2014
Ken Xie
/sl JOSEPH M. ZAELIT Director August 22, 2014

Joseph M. Zaelit
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Telemaw,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Telenav, Inc. as of June 30, 20142@ah8, and the related consolide
statements of operations, comprehensive incoms)(letockholdersequity, and cash flows for each of the three ya&arthe period ende
June 30, 2014. Our audits also included the firnstiatement schedule listed in the Index at It&fa)l These financial statements
schedule are the responsibility of the Companyanagement. Our responsibility is to expressgnian on these financial statements
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighaiBio(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedi® tonsolidated financial position
Telenav, Inc. at June 30, 2014 and 2013, and theatidated results of its operations and its céslid for each of the three years in the pe
ended June 30, 2014, in conformity with U.S. gelhe@ccepted accounting principles. Also, in ouinpn, the related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the bsémncial statements taken as a whole, presenty faiall material respects the informat
set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@wnited States), Telenav,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting @isJune 30, 2014, based on criteria establishéatémnal Control— Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (1992 framework) andreport dated August 22, 2014,
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
August 22, 2014
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TELENAYV, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1453  $ 25,78
Short-term investments 122,31! 165,89¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $206 %24l at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively 25,76: 28,19:
Deferred income taxes, net 784 867
Restricted cash 5,99¢ 2,66¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 16,42: 11,11
Total current assets 185,81: 234,52¢
Property and equipment, net 8,81« 11,75:
Deferred income taxes, net, non-current 55C 3,771
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 40,73: 18,80¢
Other assets 3,931 4,81«
Total assets $ 239,84, $ 273,66
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 50z % 1,60¢
Accrued compensation 12,87 8,85t
Accrued royalties 3,671 9,83:
Other accrued expenses 12,34: 16,72¢
Deferred revenue 2,381 7,02t
Income taxes payable 804 95
Total current liabilities 32,57t 44,14
Deferred rent, non-current 7,12¢ 8,88¢
Other long-term liabilities 7,732 6,18(
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 50,000 shar#mared; no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 600,000 share®andtl; 39,462 shares and 39,342 shares issur
and outstanding at June 30, 2014 and 2013, resphcti 40 4C
Additional paid-in capital 129,27t 118,19:
Accumulated other comprehensive income 57¢ 373
Retained earnings 62,51 95,85¢
Total stockholders’ equity 192,40! 214,46.
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 23984 $ 273,66

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2014 2013 2012
Revenue:
Product $ 72,74 % 69,16: $  24,18¢
Services 77,56¢ 122,63¢ 181,33¢
Total revenue 150,31: 191,80( 205,52:
Cost of revenue:
Product 36,77* 38,16¢ 13,61¢
Services 24,06¢ 30,94¢ 30,83:
Total cost of revenue 60,84 69,11¢ 44 44¢
Gross profit 89,47 122,68 161,07-
Operating expenses:
Research and development 60,57 60,34¢ 65,76
Sales and marketing 33,13¢ 30,43t 25,34¢
General and administrative 26,17¢ 24,76 26,08
Restructuring costs 4,41 1,671 —
Total operating expenses 124,29¢ 117,22( 117,19¢
Operating income (loss) (34,82) 5,46 43,88:
Other income, net 1,28¢ 1,207 1,48¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforevigion (benefit) for income taxes (33,539 6,67 45,36¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (4,01%) 1,09: 13,55¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta (29,52¢) 5,581 31,80¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — 7,48¢ 602
Net income (loss) $ (29,529 $ 13,060 $  32,40¢
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta $ (0.7¢) % 0.1z % 0.77
Net income (loss) $ (0.7¢) % 03z $ 0.7¢
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta $ (0.7¢p ¢ 0.1: % 0.72
Net income (loss) $ (0.7¢) % 031 % 0.7¢4
Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢toss) per share:
Basic 38,79¢ 40,31( 41,40¢
Diluted 38,79¢ 41,91¢ 43,94+

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2014 2013 2012
Net income (loss) $ (29529 $ 13,067 $  32,40¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax 51 13 (87)
Available for sale securities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale seigs; net of tax 284 74 (80)
Reclassification adjustments for loss on availdbtesale securities recognized, net of
tax (132) (84) —
Net increase (decrease) from available-for-salar#tées, net of tax 152 (10) (80)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax: 20< 3 (167)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (2932) $ 13,07C $  32,24:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financa¢®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Total
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Stockholders’
Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings Equity
Balance at June 30, 2011 41,82 $ 42 $ 11506 $ 537 $ 7282 $ 188,46
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkrmpt 1,017 1 2,107 _ — 2,10¢
Repurchases of common stock (1,487) 6N (4,562 _ (7,980) (12,545
Stock-based compensation expense — — 5,12: _ — 5,12:
Excess tax benefit from employee stock options — _ 1,12¢ _ — 1,12¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net oésax — — — (87) — (87
Unrealized net loss on available-for-sale secwitnet of
taxes — — — (8C) — (8C)
Net income — — — — 32,40¢ 32,40¢
Balance at June 30, 2012 41,35 $ 42 $ 11885 $ 37C  $ 97250 $ 216,51
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmpt
and release of restricted stock units 1,117 1 2,74( — — 2,741
Issuance of restricted common stock in connectiitn w
acquisition 587 1 (0] — — —
Repurchases of common stock (3,715 (4 (11,846 _ (14,460 (26,310
Stock-based compensation expense — _ 8,647 _ — 8,64
Excess tax benefit from employee stock options — — (202) _ — (202)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net oé$ax — — — 13 — 13
Unrealized net loss on available-for-sale secwtiret of
taxes — — — (10 — (10)
Net income — — — — 13,067 13,06°
Balance at June 30, 2013 39,34 $ 40 $ 11819 $ 372 $ 9585t $ 214,46
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmg 217 — 89¢ _ — 89¢
Release of restricted stock units 44C _ (1,570 _ — (1,570
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjarsi 732 1 4,60¢ _ — 4,61(
Repurchases of common stock (1,269 (D (4,075 _ (3,829 (7,899
Stock-based compensation expense — — 11,53¢ _ — 11,53t
Excess tax benefit from employee stock options — — (310) _ — (310
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net oésax — _ _ 51 — 51
Unrealized net gain on available-for-sale secgjtiet of
taxes — — — 152 — 152
Net loss — — — — (29,524 (29,529
Balance at June 30, 2014 39,46: $ 40 $ 129,27¢ $ 57¢ $ 62,51 $ 192,40!

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Operating activities
Net income (loss) $ (29,529 $ 13,060 $  32,40¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rmehcprovided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 6,75¢ 8,40¢ 8,171
Accretion of premium, net on short-term investments 3,50( 4,42¢ 4,59¢
Stock-based compensation expense 11,53t 8,64 5,122
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 7,39¢ — —
Bad debt expense 132 — —
Write-off of long-term investments 25( 33t 25(
Write-off due to impairment of capitalized software — 43¢ —
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 112 17¢ —
Excess tax benefits from employee stock options 31C 30¢ (797)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 2,477 (2,559 5,38¢
Deferred income taxes (4,09%) (1,807 1,024
Restricted cash (3,3279) (2,429 (240
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (5,24%) 2,97¢ (3,86)
Other assets (649) (730 (397
Accounts payable (1,33)) (1,22)) 26¢€
Accrued compensation 3,612 (267) 1,26¢
Accrued royalties (6,167) 5,43¢ (307)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (2,645 10,15: 3,86¢
Income taxes payable 39¢ (1,45¢) 2,42
Deferred rent (1,359 1,29t 9,67¢
Deferred revenue (4,707 (2,290 (39,559
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (22,557 42,91 29,30°
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,059 (2,249 (13,470)
Additions to capitalized software — (94¢) (2,40€)
Purchases of short-term investments (66,35() (124,70) (170,59)
Purchase of long-term investments (600) (950) (1,200
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 79t — —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of short-texasiments 106,58! 146,92. 152,62:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (19,24Y (18,259 (1,769
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 20,13: (185) (36,719
Financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 89¢ 2,792 2,10¢
Repurchase of common stock (7,899 (26,310) (12,54%
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtssiricted stock units (1,570 (52) —
Excess tax benefits from employee stock options (310 (305) 797
Net cash used in financing activities (8,887) (23,879 (9,640
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatents 51 13 (87)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (112,259 18,86 (17,139
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 25,78" 6,92( 24,05

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 1453: % 25,787 $ 6,92(




Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Income taxes paid, net $ 1,00 $ 2,89 $  11,28¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAYV, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of business and significant accounting palies

Description of business

Telenav, Inc., also referred to in this reportag,” “our” or “us,” was incorporated in Septemb@&99 in the State of Delaware. We are &
leader in personalized mobile navigation. We helpghe go people by creating products that (1) pl®@asily-accessed, relevant, and
personalized information for discovery, trafficcéd search, and navigation and (2) are availabigsaanultiple platforms and devices,
including mobile phones, tablets, computers and.d&fe operate in a single segment. Our fiscal gads on June 30 and in this report we r
to the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 , 20128ah# as fiscal 2014 , fiscal 2013 and fiscal 20despectively.

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements and acconipgmptes have been prepared in accordance withdér&rally accepted accounting
principles, or GAAP. The consolidated financiakstaents include the accounts of Telenav, Inc. amdunolly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated in consolidation. Certainmpyaar balances have been reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation.

Our consolidated financial statements also incth@dfinancial results of Shanghai Jitu Software €epment Ltd., or Jitu, located in
China. Based on our contractual arrangements Wwilshareholders of Jitu, we have determined thatsla variable interest entity, or VIE, for
which we are the primary beneficiary and are regfito consolidate in accordance with Accountingi&sads Codification, or ASC, subtopic
810-10, or ASC 810-1@;onsolidation: Overall The results of Jitu did not have a material iniacour overall operating results for fiscal
2014 , fiscal 2013 or fiscal 2012 .

On April 16, 2013, we completed the sale of ouegrise business to FleetCor Technologies Oper&ompany, LLC, or FleetCor.
The results of operations of our enterprise businghich were previously presented as a comporfemiraconsolidated operating results, have
been classified as discontinued operations in onsalidated statements of income for all perio@gsented. All information in the following
notes to the consolidated financial statementsides only results from continuing operations fopaliods presented, unless otherwise noted
See Note 11 Sale of Enterprise Business.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andragsions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statementsaccompanying notes. Significant estimates asdnagtions made by us include the
determination of revenue recognition and deferesgnue, the recoverability of accounts receivahke determination of acquired intangibles
and an assessment of goodwill impairment, thevigite of stock awards issued, the determinatianadme taxes and the recoverability of
deferred tax assets. Actual results could diffenfithose estimates.

Revenue recognition

We generate revenue primarily from service subsorip, including premium offerings, customized ewgiring fees and software
licenses. We also generate revenue from the dglafesearch and display advertising impressions.

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, delivery of the service odpob has occurred, the fee is fixed
or determinable, and collectability is reasonalsisumed. We derive our revenue primarily from moh#wigation services, which are generally
provided through our wireless carrier customers dffer our services to their subscribers or thioagplication stores. Our wireless carrier
customers pay us based on several different revaouakels, including (1) a revenue sharing arrangéien may include a minimum fee per
end user, (2) a monthly or annual subscriptionpfereend user, or (3) based on usage. Our endwhersubscribe to our services through
application stores pay us a monthly or annual it fee.

We recognize monthly fees related to our mobileigtion services in the month we provide the sewidVe defer amounts received or
billed in advance of the service being provided eswbgnize the deferred amounts when the monthigcgehas been provided. We recognize
revenue for fixed fees for any number of subscslveceiving our services as part of bundles morthlg straight-line basis over the term of
the agreement. Our agreements do not contain daighs of refund once the service has been pexlidVe also establish allowances for
estimated credits subsequently issued to end bgerar wireless carrier customers.
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We recognize as services revenue the amount oales# carrier customers report to us as we praddservices, which are net of any
revenue sharing or other fees earned and dedugtedriwireless carrier customers. We are not tivecfal provider when selling access to
mobile navigation services through our wirelessieacustomers as the subscribers directly contwéét our wireless carrier customers. In
addition, we may earn a fixed fee or fixed percgetaf fees charged by our wireless carrier custeraed our wireless carrier customers have
the sole ability to set the price charged to tealyscribers for our service. Our wireless carnisst@mers have direct responsibility for billing
and collecting those fees from their subscribetsvaa and our wireless carrier customers may ofibseribers a free trial for our service. For
end users who purchase our mobile navigation ses\tlrough application stores, we utilize the ayapion store billing process. We provide
tiered pricing to certain of our wireless carriestomers based on the number of paying end useargiiren month, which may result in a
discounted fee per end user depending on the nuofileerd users. Revenue recognized is based ongbeutted fees earned for a given
period.

We also derive services revenue from the delivésearch and display advertising impressions. Wegnize revenue when the related
advertising services are delivered based on thefgpterms of the advertising contract, which aeenmonly based on the number of ad
impressions delivered, or clicks, drives or actibpausers on mobile advertisements.

We derive product revenue from the delivery of onsized software and royalties earned from theibigtion of this customized softwe
in certain automotive navigation applications. Waerally recognize customized software revenuegusia completed contract method of
contract accounting under which revenue is recaghigon delivery to, and acceptance by, the autdenotanufacturer of our on-board
navigation solutions. We generally recognize rgyedtvenue as the software is reproduced for irzdtalt in vehicles, assuming all other
conditions for revenue recognition have been met.

In certain instances, due to the nature and tirafngonthly revenue and reporting from our customers may be required to make
estimates of the amount of revenue to recogniza fi@ustomer for the current period. Estimatesdeenue include our consideration of
certain factors and information, including subseritiata, historical subscription and revenue r@mpttends, end user subscription data from
our internal systems, and data from comparableildigton channels of our other customers. We reemydifferences between estimated
revenue and actual revenue in the reporting pevioeh we determine the actual amounts. To dateabatoounts have not differed materially
from our estimates.

Cost of revenue

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of the afghird party royalty based data, such as map¢g@es, points of interest, traffic, gas
price and weather data, and voice recognition telclgy that we use in providing our personalizedigation services. Our cost of revenue alst
includes the cost of third party exchange displhyn&entory. In addition, our cost of revenue imt#ds expenses associated with data center
operations, ad trafficking, customer support, thegdization of capitalized software, recognitiondeferred development costs on specific
projects, stock-based compensation and amortizafideveloped technology.

In connection with our usage of licensed third padntent, our contracts with certain licensordude minimum guaranteed royalty
payments, which are payable regardless of the alémolume of revenue derived from the number gfrgrend users. These contracts con
obligations for the licensor to provide ongoingvsegs and, accordingly, we record any minimum gogred royalty payments as an asset v
paid and amortize the amount to cost of revenue thneeapplicable period. Any additional royaltiegechased on actual usage are expensed
monthly as incurred.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaii®the local currency. Adjustments resulting frisemslating foreign functional
currency financial statements into U.S. dollarsraorded as part of a separate component of cdvapséve income in stockholders’ equity.
Foreign currency transaction gains and lossesnaheded in our net income for each year. All asaeats liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency are translated into U.S. dollars at theharge rate on the balance sheet date. Revenwexpedses are translated at the average
monthly exchange rates during the year. Equitysaations are translated using historical exchaatgsr Foreign currency transaction gains
(losses) were $ (203,000) , $(251,000) and $51i0@8cal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contirad)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), ofetax

The components of accumulated other comprehensoaarie (loss), net of related taxes, were as foligavthousands):

Unrealized
Foreign Currency  Gains (Losses) on
Translation Available-for-Sale
Adjustments Securities Total
Balance, net of tax as of June 30, 2013 $ 27C % 102 % 373
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclasgifins, net of
tax 51 284 33t
Amount reclassified from accumulated other compnehe& income
(loss), net of tax — (132 (132
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 51 152 203
Balance, net of tax as of June 30, 2014 $ 321 § 258§ 57¢€

The amount reclassified from accumulated other cetmmsive income (loss), net of tax, was determirsidg the specific identification
method and the amount was included in other inc@@xrpense), net, for fiscal 2014 and 2013, respelgtiv

The amount of income tax benefit allocated to eamhponent of accumulated other comprehensive indoss) was not material.

Cash equivalents and short-term investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid fixed-nte investments with original maturities of threenths or less at the time of purchase
including money market funds. Short-term investraensist of readily marketable securities witkemaining maturity of more than three
months from time of purchase. We classify all of cash equivalents and short-term investments \asléble-for-sale,” as these investments
are free of trading restrictions. These marketablaurities are carried at fair value, with the alized gains and losses, net of tax, reported as
accumulated other comprehensive income and incladedseparate component of stockholders’ equéinszand losses are recognized when
realized. When we have determined that an other-tdwporary decline in fair value has occurred,atmount of the decline that is related to a
credit loss is recognized in earnings. Gains asgds are determined using the specific identiboatiethod. Our net realized gains were
$164,000 , $152,000 and $102,000 in fiscal 20181 32and 2012 , respectively.

Concentrations of risk and significant customers

Financial instruments that subject us to significancentrations of credit risk primarily consi$tcash, cash equivalents, short-term
investments and accounts receivable. We maintaicash, cash equivalents and short-term investnvéttisvell-capitalized financial
institutions. Cash equivalents consist primarilymainey-market accounts. Our primary customers &edegs carriers, automobile
manufacturers and original equipment manufactuer®EMs, and we do not require collateral for acte receivable. To manage the credit
risk associated with accounts receivable, we etalinee creditworthiness of our customers. We evaloar accounts receivable on an ongoing
basis to determine those amounts not collectibdeddte, we are not aware of circumstances thatimpgir a specific customer’s ability to
meet its financial obligations to us, other thamsth customers for which an allowance for doubtfgbants has been established.

Revenue related to products and services provitdedigh Ford Motor Company, or Ford, comprised 4&@%% and 13% of revenue for
fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012, respectively. Recdéstue from Ford were 47% and 45% of total accotateivable at June 30, 2014 and
2013, respectively. Revenue related to servicesiged through AT&T Mobility LLC., or AT&T, compried 24% , 28% and 35% of revenue
for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.ddaables due from AT&T were 19% and 23% of totalamts receivable at June 30, 2@
2013, respectively. Revenue related to servicesgiged through Sprint Nextel Corporation, or Spragmprised less than 10% , 16% and 36%
of revenue for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , retbpely. No other customer represented 10% of ouemee or 10% of our receivables for any
period presented.

Our licensed map, points of interest and traffitadeave been provided principally through TomTonmtNémerica, Inc., or TomTom,
and HERE North America, LLC, formerly known as Ngation Technologies Corporation, a Nokia compam{BRE, in fiscal 2014, 2013
and 2012. To date, we are not aware of circumstaiihed may impair either party’s intent or abilibycontinue providing such services to us.
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Restricted cash

As of June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013, we hadatesticash of $6.0 million and $2.7 million, respegly, on our consolidated balance
sheets. As of June 30, 2014, restricted cash iprdeed primarily of a $6.0 million overpayment frarcustomer that will be refunded. In
January 2014, the $2.7 million of restricted cashlin escrow as of June 30, 2013 related to ogmiaition of Thinknear was paid to
Thinknear stockholders.

Fair value of financial instruments

The estimated fair market value of financial instants, including cash, accounts receivable, acequatable and accrued expenses,
approximates the carrying values of those instrumédue to their relatively short maturities.

We measure certain other financial instrumentsiatvilue on a recurring basis. We have establishigidrarchy, which consists of three
levels, for disclosure of the inputs used to deteenthe fair value of our financial instruments.

Level 1 valuations are based on quoted pricestimeamarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are based on inputs that arerebble, either directly or indirectly, other thgumoted prices included within Level 1.
Such inputs used in determining fair value for Ueégaluations include quoted prices in active netgskor similar assets or liabilities, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabdgiin markets that are not active, or other inthatsare observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the &riirt of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 valuations are based on information thamigbservable and significant to the overall failue measurement.
As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, we did not havelawg! 3 financial instruments.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreaiiccomputed using the straidite
method over the estimated useful lives of the retdpmassets. Computers, software, automobilesegngpment have useful lives of three year:
and fixtures and furniture have useful lives okfigears. Leasehold improvements are amortized tisengtraight-line method over the shorter
of the estimated useful lives of the assets otdhma of the related lease.

Long-term investments

Our long-term investments consist of privately-hielestments, and are included in other assetaric@nsolidated balance sheets. As o
June 30, 2014, our investments in privately-heleéégtments were $1.8 million . These investmentseaceunted for as cost-basis investments
as we own less than 20% of the voting securitielsdannot have the ability to exercise significariluience over operating and financial poli
of the entities. Our investments are in entitied dre not publicly traded and, therefore, no distadd market for the securities exists. Our cost
method investments are carried at historical cosur condensed consolidated balance sheets arsliredaat fair value on a nonrecurring b
when indicators of impairment exist. If we belighat the carrying value of the cost basis investsianin excess of estimated fair value, our
policy is to record an impairment charge to adjhstcarrying value to estimated fair value, whemnithpairment is deemed other-than-
temporary. We regularly evaluate the carrying vafithese cost-method investments for impairmere.ré¢ord realized gains or losses on the
sale or impairment of cost method investments lireoincome (expense), net. We recorded impairmeaniges of $250,000 , $335,000 and
$250,000 on certain non-marketable equity investmienfiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Also included in other income (expense), net indl2014 is a $795,000 gain from the sale in Ddagr 2013 of an investment in a
privately-held company.

Long-lived assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets, including intlalegassets, for impairment whenever events or gasun circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverB®aeoverability of these assets is measured bympardson of the carrying amounts to the
future undiscounted cash flows the assets are tgbéx generate. If long-lived assets are consitierde impaired, the impairment to be
recognized equals the amount by which the carryalge of the asset exceeds its fair value.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregathpse price paid over the fair value of the ne¢tasscquired. Goodwill is not
amortized and is tested for impairment at leastialtiyior whenever events or changes in circumstirgcate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. These tests are based on our sipgfating segment and reporting unit structure fiyfgeassess qualitative factors to deterr
whether it is necessary to perform the two-stemtjtzdive goodwill impairment test. We are not reqd to calculate the fair value of our
reporting unit unless we determine, based on dtgtiaé assessment, that it is more-likely-thanhet the fair value is less than our carrying
amount. If we determine it is more likely than tmat the fair value of the reporting unit is lelsan its carrying value, we perform a two-step
guantitative goodwill impairment test. The firs¢tof the impairment test involves comparing thievialue of the reporting unit to its net book
value, including goodwill. If the net book valuecerds its fair value, then we would perform theoadcstep of the goodwill impairment test to
determine the amount of the impairment loss, if. dnyassessing the fair value of our reporting,umé& make assumptions regarding our
estimated future cash flows, including estimatemirgh rates. If our estimates or related assumptitiasge in the future, or if our net book
value were to exceed our market capitalizationnveg be required to record impairment loss relaveour goodwill. We have not recognized
any impairment of goodwill in the three year per@dled June 30, 2014 . As of June 30, 2014 , wgbadwill of $31.3 million.

Leases

We lease our office facilities under operating éeagreements. Office facilities subject to an ofiegdease and the related lease
payments are not recorded on our balance sheetefine of certain lease agreements provide foalgatyments on a graduated basis;
however, we recognize rent expense on a straigatbasis over the lease period in accordance witioatative accounting guidance. Any
lease incentives or contracted sublease incomeeaognized as reductions of rental expense oragyhktrline basis over the term of the lease.
The lease term begins on the date we become legfaityated for the rent payments or when we talssession of the office space, whichever
is earlier. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 , we htadah of $7.5 million and $9.7 million , respealy, in deferred rent related to tenant
improvement lease incentives and graduated remheais recorded as liabilities on our balance sheets

Stock-based compensation

We account for stock-based employee compensatianggments under the fair value recognition methdich requires us to measure
the stock-based compensation costs of share-basggensation arrangements based on the grant-ditalize, and recognize the costs in the
financial statements over the employees’ requssteice period. We recognize compensation expendéd fair value of these awards with
time-based vesting on a straight-line basis overtihployee’s requisite service period of each e§¢hawards, net of estimated forfeitures.

Equity instruments issued to nonemployees are decoat their fair value on the measurement dateaemdubject to periodic adjustment
as the underlying equity instruments vest.

Income taxes

We utilize the liability method of accounting farciome taxes, whereby deferred tax asset or liglaititount balances are calculated a
balance sheet date using current tax laws and iratffect for the year in which the differences axpected to affect taxable income. Valua
allowances are provided when necessary to reddeeree tax assets to the amount that will moreyikiean not be realized.

Research and software development costs

We expense research and development costs asdadcMyvie account for the costs of computer softwaralavelop for internal use by
capitalizing qualifying costs, which are incurragtidg the application development stage, and am®ttiose costs over the application’s
estimated useful life which generally ranges frd®rtd 24 months, depending on the type of applicatibe capitalized none , $948,000 and
$2.4 million of software development costs durirsgdl 2014 , 2013 and 2012espectively. Amortization expense related tes¢heosts, whic
has been recorded in cost of revenue, totaledr$illion , $2.1 million and $1.8 million for fisc&l014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. In
addition, we wrote off none , $112,000 , and noheapitalized software development costs in fi@@il4, fiscal 2013, and fiscal 2012 due to
impairment. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013 , unamexditcapitalized software development costs, whietevincluded in other assets, were
$97,000 and $1.1 million , respectively.

We also account for the costs of computer softwagelevelop for customers requiring significant nficdtion or customization by
deferring qualifying costs under the completed m@mitmethod. All such development costs incurred ar
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deferred until the related revenue is recognized.d&ferred $943,000 , $1.3 million and $2.4 millafrsoftware development costs during
fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Develept costs expensed to cost of revenue totaled, 3922 $4.9 million and $354,000 fiscal
2014 , 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of Jun€6@4 and 2013 , deferred capitalized software ldpweent costs, which were included
primarily in prepaid expenses and other currergtassvere $500,000 and $480,000 , respectively.

Advertising expense

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsirgiexpense was $2.0 million , $3.1 million an@ %900 in fiscal 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In June 2013, the FASB ratified Emerging IssuekFasce (EITF) Issue 13-C, “Presentation of an dagnized Tax Benefit When a
Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lassa Tax Credit Carryforward Exi” which concludes an unrecognized tax benefit
should be presented as a reduction of a deferkeastget when settlement in this manner is availahtier the tax law. We will adopt this
amendment beginning July 1, 2014. The result opidn may be to reclassify certain long term ligies for uncertain income tax positions
reduce the carrying value of long term deferredatssets. However, the adoption is not expectedswltrin a material change to the tax
provision. We do not believe that the impact on@nsolidated financial statements will be sigrafit.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, "Rexefrom Contracts with Customers," requiring atitgto recognize the amount
of revenue to which it expects to be entitled f@ transfer of promised goods or services to custenThe updated standard will replace most
existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GA®ien it becomes effective and permits the usetbéethe retrospective or cumulative
effect transition method. Early adoption is notrpitted. The updated standard becomes effectivadan the first quarter of fiscal 2018. We
have not yet selected a transition method and wewnrently evaluating the effect that the updatatdard will have on our consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures.

2. Netincome (loss) per shai

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculatedilaging net income (loss) by the weighted averagmber of common shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted net income g)aser share is computed by dividing net incomss{ldy the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period, inclugioigntial dilutive common shares assuming thetidéueffect of outstanding stock options,
restricted stock, and restricted stock units usiiregtreasury-stock method.
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The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net income (loss) per share (in samals, except per share amounts):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta $ (29,529 % 5581 $ 31,80¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — 7,48¢ 602
Net income (loss) $ (29,529 % 13,060 $ 32,40¢
Shares used in computing net income (loss) peeshar
Basic:
Weighted average common shares used in computsig het
income (loss) per share 38,79¢ 40,31( 41,40¢
Diluted:
Weighted average common shares used in computsig bet
income (loss) per share 38,79¢ 40,31( 41,40¢
Add weighted average effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options — 1,515 2,53¢
Restricted common stock and restricted stock units — 92 —
Weighted average common shares used in computing
diluted net income (loss) per share 38,79¢ 41,91¢ 43,94
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.7¢) $ 012 $ 0.77
Income from discontinued operations — 0.1¢ 0.01
Net income (loss) $ (0.7¢) $ 03z $ 0.7¢
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.7¢) $ 0.1z $ 0.7z
Income from discontinued operations — 0.1¢ 0.0z
Net income (loss) $ (0.7¢) $ 031 $ 0.74

The following outstanding shares subject to optioestricted common stock and restricted stocksumére excluded from the
computation of diluted net income (loss) per comrabare for the periods presented because incldlderg would have had an antidilutive

effect (in thousands):

Stock options
Restricted common stock and restricted stock units
Total

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
5,69 4,87¢ 1,271
4,791 40¢ —

10,48¢ 5,28 1,271
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3. Cash, cash equivalents and shotierm investments

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmentssted of the following as of June 30, 2014 lfiousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash $ 1291 $ — 3 — 3 12,91:
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds 622 — — 622
Commercial paper 1,00¢ — — 1,00¢
Total cash equivalents 1,622 — — 1,622
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,53¢ — — 14,53¢
Short-term securities:
Municipal securities 96,52: 33C 4) 96,84¢
Commercial paper 997 2 — 99¢
Corporate bonds 24,40: 68 2 24,46¢
Total short-term investments 121,92: 40C (6) 122,31!
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 136,45 $ 40C $ 6) $ 136,84

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmentisted of the following as of June 30, 2013 ffiousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash $ 23,54¢ % — 3 — 3 23,54¢
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds 2,241 — — 2,241
Total cash equivalents 2,241 — — 2,241
Total cash and cash equivalents 25,78’ — — 25,78:
Short-term investments:
Certificates of deposit 1,00(¢ 3 — 1,00:
Municipal securities 148,88t 242 (137) 148,99:
Commercial paper 3,38¢ 2 — 3,391
Corporate bonds 12,46: 58 9 12,51
Total short-term investments 165,73¢ 30t (14¢€) 165,89
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 19152t $ ICTO LI (146) $ 191,68

The following table summarizes the cost and estihé&ir value of short-term fixed income securitiésssified as shoterm investment
based on stated maturities as of June 30, 201hdirsands):

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value
Due within one year $ 62,762 $  62,91¢
Due within two years 37,75¢ 37,90(
Due after two years 21,40: 21,49¢
Total $ 121920 ¢ 122,31

Declines in fair value judged to be other-than-terapy on securities available for sale are include@ component of other income, net.
In order to determine whether a decline in valuatler-than-temporary, we evaluate, among othdoifsicthe duration and extent to which the
fair value has been less than the carrying valdeoam intent and ability to retain the investmeattd period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair market value. As ofidB80, 2014 and 2013 , we did not consider anypfrivestments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired.
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4. Fair value of financial instruments
We measure certain financial instruments at fawe/@n a recurring basis. We have establishedrarietey, which consists of three levt
for disclosure of the inputs used to determineféiirevalue of our financial instruments.

All of our cash equivalents and short-term investtaare classified within Level 1 or Level 2. Tlar fvalues of these financial
instruments were determined using the followinguispat June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2014 Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds $ 62z % 62z % — 3 =
Commercial paper 1,00(¢ — 1,00 —
Total cash equivalents 1,622 622 1,00( —
Short-term investments:
Municipal securities 96,84¢ — 96,84¢ —
Commercial paper 99¢ — 99¢ —
Corporate bonds 24,46¢ — 24,46¢ —
Total short-term investments 122,31! — 122,31! —
Cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 12393 $ 62z $ 12331 % =

The fair values of our financial instruments weetetimined using the following inputs at June 3@,20n thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2013 Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds $ 2,241 % 2241 % — —
Total cash equivalents 2,241 2,241 — —
Short-term investments:
Certificates of deposit 1,00: — 1,00: —
Municipal securities 148,99: — 148,99: —
Commercial paper 3,391 — 3,391 —
Corporate bonds 12,51 — 12,51 —
Total short-term investments 165,89 — 165,89¢ —
Cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 168,13¢ $ 2,241 $ 165,89¢ $ —

Accretion of premium, net of discounts, on shortriégnvestments totaled $3.5 million and $4.4 milio fiscal 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

Where applicable, we use quoted prices in activiketa for identical assets to determine fair valfieevel 2 short-term investments. If
guoted prices in active markets for identical asae¢ not available to determine fair value, wequseted prices for similar assets and liabilities
or inputs that are observable either directly dirigctly. If quoted prices for identical or similassets are not available, we use third-party
valuations utilizing underlying assets assumptions.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Lefiebacial instruments in the fiscal 2014 and 20&3pectively.
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We did not have any financial liabilities measuagdair value on a recurring basis as of June 8042r 2013 .

5. Balance sheet information
Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiausands):

June 30,
2014 2013

Computers and equipment $ 16,77:  $ 17,68«
Computer software 2,11¢ 2,42
Furniture and fixtures 2,51( 2,50t
Automobiles 56€ 43¢
Leasehold improvements 8,28¢ 8,21¢

30,25t 31,30¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (21,44) (19,556
Property and equipment, net $ 881« $ 11,75:

Depreciation and amortization expense relatedapenty and equipment was $4.0 million , $5.6 millemd $6.7 million for fiscal 2014
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Goodwill and intangible assets, net

Intangible assets consist of the following (in thands):

June 30,
2014 2013
Acquired developed technology 13,90: 6,30z
Less accumulated amortization (4,499 (1,919
Intangible assets, net $ 9,40t $ 4,38t

Acquired developed technology is amortized on aigitt-line basis over the expected useful life. Atization expense related to
intangibles was $2.6 million , $1.6 million and $1000 for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respegtivel

As of June 30, 2014, amortization expense for gitale assets by fiscal year is as follows: $3.1iarilin fiscal 2015, $1.5 million in
fiscal 2016, $1.0 million in fiscal 2017, $1.0 ok in fiscal 2018, $1.0 million in fiscal 2019 afd.6 million thereafter.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillasdollows (in thousands):

June 30,
2014 2013
Balance at beginning of period $ 14,42: % 78
Gooduwill acquired 16,907 14,34:
Balance at end of period $ 31,32¢ $ 14,42:
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6. Commitments and contingencies

Our primary facilities located in Sunnyvale and vaulCity, California, Shanghai and Xi'an, Chinada®luj, Romania, as well as certain
other facilities in various locations in the UnitBthtes, Germany and Brazil, are leased under noatable operating lease arrangements. ,
June 30, 2014 , future minimum operating lease @aysy net of sublease income, by fiscal year werfellows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year:

2015 $ 4,76(
2016 5,35¢
2017 5,11¢
2018 4,85¢
2019 and thereafter 6,97¢
Total minimum lease payments $ 27,07

As of June 30, 2014, the total minimum subleasenmeto be received in the next two years was $3lBbm, which is comprised 0$1.4
million to be received in fiscal 2015, and $1.1lioil to be received in fiscal 2016.

Rent expense was $4.1 million , $4.8 million an®$aillion for fiscal 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , redpety. Facility exit costs included in
restructuring costs in fiscal 2014 and 2013 wer® $2llion and $124,000 , respectively.

Purchase obligations

As of June 30, 2014 , in addition to our leasegatlons, we had an aggregate of $6.0 million aifeiminimum noncancelable financial
commitments primarily related to license fees duedrtain of our third party content providers otrex next two fiscal years. The aggregate of
$6.0 million of future minimum commitments is congad of $4.4 million due in fiscal 2015 , $1.2 roili due in fiscal 2016 , $286,000 due in
fiscal 2017 and $125,000 due in fiscal 2018. Thevalcommitment amounts exclude amounts alreadydedmn the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

Contingencies

From time to time, we may become involved in lggaiceedings, claims and litigation arising in tihdimary course of business. When
we believe a loss or a cost of indemnificationrisb@able and can be reasonably estimated, we attwestimated loss or cost of
indemnification in our consolidated financial staents. Where the outcome of these matters is rietrdmable, we do not make a provision in
our financial statements until the loss or coghdeémnification, if any, is probable and can besoably estimated or the outcome becomes
known. We expense legal fees related to these raattethey are incurred.

On December 31, 2009, Vehicle IP, LLC, or Vehidbe filed a patent infringement lawsuit againstrughie U.S. District Court for the
District of Delaware, seeking monetary damages &l expenses and other relief. Verizon WirelasSerizon, was named as a defendan
in the Vehicle IP litigation based on the VZ Nauigaproduct and has demanded that we indemnifydafend Verizon against Vehicle IP. At
this time, we have not agreed to defend or indeyrwérizon. AT&T was also named as a co-defendattiénVehicle IP litigation based on the
AT&T Navigator and Telenav Track products. AT&T Hasdered the defense of the litigation to us aadre defending the case on behalf of
AT&T. After the Court issued its claim constructionling the parties agreed to focus on early surgriuigment motions, and asked the Court
to postpone the rest of the case schedule penlgéngesolution of these potentially case-dispositivgions. The defendants filed motions for
summary judgment of noninfringement. On April 1013 the Court granted AT&T and our motion for sumyrjadgment of noninfringement.
While the Court's ruling appears to be dispositi’plaintiff's claims, plaintiff is appealing thésttict court's claim construction and summary
judgment ruling. The appeal is currently ongoinghie U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circthie oral argument was held on April :
2014. Due to the uncertainties related to litigatiwe are unable to evaluate the likelihood ofegith favorable or unfavorable outcome. We
believe that it is reasonably possible that we intlur a loss; however, we cannot currently estinzatange of any possible losses we may
experience in connection with this case. Accordingle are unable at this time to estimate the &ffetthis lawsuit on our financial condition,
results of operations, or cash flows.

On April 30, 2010, Traffic Information, LLC filed patent infringement lawsuit against us in the IDBtrict Court for the Eastern
District of Texas, seeking monetary damages, fadssapenses, and other relief. The patent at issisesubject to reexamination by the PTO
and the reexamined claims were found invalid. Fifdiappealed this finding and on May 30, 2013,
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the Patent Trial and Appeal Board, or PTAB, conéichthe invalidity of these claims. Plaintiff filedrequest for reconsideration of this deci
with the PTAB, which was denied on January 13, 2014ight of the reexamination and plaintiff's @b of the reexamination findings, the
Court stayed the case and the case will remaigedi@nd administratively closed unless the pldiotitains a favorable decision on appeal
before the PTAB or Federal Circuit Court of Appe&#s March 12, 2014, Traffic Information filed appeeal with the U.S. Appeals Court for
the Federal Circuit. Due to the preliminary staifithe lawsuit and uncertainties related to liigat we are unable to evaluate the likelihood of
either a favorable or unfavorable outcome. We keltbat it is reasonably possible that we will inadoss; however, we cannot currently
estimate a range of any possible losses we mayierpe in connection with this case. Accordingly are unable at this time to estimate the
effects of this complaint on our financial conditjsesults of operations or cash flows.

In addition, we have received, and expect to comtito receive, demands for indemnification from customers, which demands can be
very expensive to settle or defend, and we hatlearpast offered to contribute to settlement ameoant incurred legal fees in connection with
certain of these indemnity demands. A number adglirdemnity demands, including demands relatingetading litigation, remain
outstanding and unresolved as of the date of tis1FA.0-K. Furthermore, in response to these demamrdway be required to assume control
of and bear all costs associated with the defefsaracustomers in compliance with our contract@hmitments. At this time, we are not a
party to the following cases; however our custonhenge requested that we indemnify them in conneatith such cases:

In 2008, Alltel, AT&T, Sprint and T-Mobile USA, or-Mobile, each demanded that we indemnify and ditfbem against patent
infringement lawsuits brought by patent holding pamies EMSAT Advanced Geo-Location Technology LIo@ &ocation Based Services
LLC (collectively, “EMSAT") in the U.S. District Cart for the Northern District of Ohio. After T-Mdlei also sought indemnification and
defense from Google, Inc., Google intervened inTtidobile litigation. After claim construction and edéd motion practice, EMSAT agreec
dismiss all claims against Google in at least tHddbile suit, and in March 2011, EMSAT and AT&T et their claims. By March 2011, all
the EMSAT cases were either dismissed or stayelbulie PTO completed its reexamination of the wglidf the patents at issue. The PTO
concluded its reexamination of two of the patentsuit, confirming the validity of only two of thasserted claims from those patents. At this
time, all patent claims that EMSAT alleged to bieinged by the Telenav GPS Navigator product haaenicancelled during reexamination. In
the suits against Mobile, Alltel and Sprint, EMSAT has amended itieghtions to remove allegations of infringementhaf patent claims th,
were cancelled during reexamination. Accordinghg €ourt has lifted the stays in those suits aadrihtters are ongoing. However, in the T-
Mobile suit, EMSAT and T-Mobile have stipulatedaalismissal of the case. Due to uncertaintiesaeltt litigation, we are unable to evaluate
the likelihood of either a favorable or unfavorablécome. We have arbitrated with and compensatectarrier for our defense obligations,
without a negative effect on our financial conditioesults of operations, or cash flows. We haueyabdetermined the extent of our
indemnification and defense obligations to the othieeless carriers. We believe that it is reasdnpbssible that we will incur additional loss;
however, we cannot currently estimate a rangetwdrgbossible losses we may experience in connegfitbrthis case. Accordingly, we are
unable at this time to estimate the overall effe¢these cases on our financial condition, resafltsperations, or cash flows.

In March 2009, AT&T demanded that we indemnify aledlend them against a patent infringement lawsoght by Tendler Cellular of
Texas LLC, or Tendler, in the U.S. District Cowt the Eastern District of Texas. In June 2010, ATsettled its claims with Tendler and we
came to an agreement with AT&T as to the extemtusfcontribution towards AT&T's settlement and émeount of our contribution was not
material; however, there continues to be a disageet as to whether any additional amounts are dov@d &T for legal fees and expenses
related to the defense of the matter. We belieatittis reasonably possible that we will incur diddal loss; however, we cannot currently
estimate a range of other possible losses we nyagriexce in connection with this case. Accordinglg,are unable at this time to estimate the
overall effects on our financial condition, reswdfsoperations, or cash flows.

7. Guarantees and indemnifications

Our agreements with our customers generally inctgttain provisions for indemnifying them againabllities if our products and
services infringe a third party’s intellectual peoty rights or for other specified matters. We hawvthe past received indemnification requests
or notices of their intent to seek indemnificatiarthe future from our customers with respect tecsfic litigation claims in which our
customers have been named as defendants.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, officard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain lim
while such persons are or were serving at our gqaoesuch capacity. We may terminate the indercatiibn agreements with these persons
upon the termination of their services with us, teminination will not affect claims for indemnifittan related to events occurring prior to the
effective date of termination. The maximum amoumatential future
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indemnification is unlimited. We have a directonsl afficers insurance policy that limits our poftahexposure. We believe that any financial
exposure related to these indemnification agreesriemtot material.

F-20




Table of Contents

8. Stockholders’ equity

Undesignated preferred stock

We are authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares asighted preferred stock, par value $0.001 peesfie undesignated preferred
stock may be issued from time to time at the dismmeof our board of directors. As of June 30, 2@id 2013 , no shares of undesignated
preferred stock were issued or outstanding.

Common stock

We are authorized to issue 600,000,000 shares.00$®ar value stock. The holders of each shacemimon stock have the right to one
vote.

Stock repurchase program

On November 15, 2010, October 27, 2011, OctobeP@B2 and March 18, 2013, our Board of Directothatized repurchase programs
for the repurchase of up to $20.0 million , $20i0iom , $20.0 million and $10.0 million , respeatly, of our shares of common stock through
open market purchases.

Under the November 15, 2010 program, which we cetedlin the quarter ended September 30, 2011, iliz&dt$20.0 million of cash
to repurchase 2,037,743 shares of our common sitoahk average purchase price of $9.79 per shaderihe October 27, 2011 program,
which we completed in the quarter ended Decembg2@112, we utilized $8.8 million of cash to repuash 1,293,755 shares of our common
stock at an average purchase price of $6.82 pee.stader the October 23, 2012 program, which wepleted in the quarter ended March 31,
2013, we utilized $20.0 million of cash to repursb@,625,415 shares of our common stock at angeeuarchase price of $7.62 per share.
Under the March 18, 2013 program, which we compl@tehe quarter ended March 31, 2014, we utilig20.0 million of cash to repurchase
1,674,584 shares of our common stock at an averaighase price of $5.97 per share.

The repurchased shares are retired and desigretaataorized but unissued shares. The timing armlatof repurchase transactions
under our stock repurchase programs depends orehw@rkditions and other considerations. We us@dineralue method of accounting for our
stock repurchases. Under the par value method, constock is first charged with the par value of shares involved. The excess of the cost
of shares acquired over the par value is allocatediditional paid-in capital, or APIC, based oreatimated average sales price per issued
share with the excess amounts charged to retaaraihgs. As a result of our stock repurchases ddistal 2014, we reduced common stock
and APIC by an aggregate of $4.1 million and cheu$@8 million to retained earnings. As a resulbof stock repurchases during fiscal 2013,
we reduced common stock and APIC by an aggregeké B million and charged $14.5 million to retalrearnings. As a result of our stock
repurchases during fiscal 2012, we reduced comnomk &nd APIC by an aggregate of $4.6 million ahdrged $8.0 million to retained
earnings.

Stock plans

Under our 1999 Stock Option Plan, or 1999 Plan2ZBRecutive Stock Option Plan, or 2002 Plan, 20§Qity Incentive Plan, or 2009
Plan, and 2011 Stock Option and Grant Plan, or Z0af, eligible employees, directors, and constdtare able to participate in our future
performance through awards of nonqualified stodioog, incentive stock options and restricted stacits, or RSUs, through the receipt of
such awards as authorized by our board of directiocgntive stock options may be granted only tpleyees to purchase our common stock ¢
prices equal to or greater than the fair marketevaln the date of grant. Nonqualified stock optimngurchase our common stock may be
granted at prices not less than 85% of the faiketaralue on the date of grant. Options generallst wver a four -year period beginning from
the date of grant and generally expire 10 years fitee date of grant. RSUs generally vest annualéy a four -year period beginning from the
date of grant. Prior to our IPO, we granted optioutside of our stock option plans with terms sabsally similar to the terms of options
granted under our plans.

As of June 30, 2014 , we had reserved 7,5983B@2es of common stock for issuance under our sipti&n and equity plans. On the fi
day of each fiscal year, the number of shares availand reserved for issuance under the 2009vRlie annually increased by an amount
equal to the lesser of 1,666,666 shares of comromk;s4% of the outstanding shares of our commoaoksas of the last day of our
immediately preceding fiscal year; or an amounédeined by our board of directors.

The information below regarding stock option andJR&ctivity, stock options and RSUs outstanding stodk compensation expense
includes both continuing and discontinued operation
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A summary of our stock option activity is as folle\iin thousands except per share and contractaariounts):

Weighted
Weighted average
average remaining
Number of exercise price contractual life Aggregate
shares per share (years) intrinsic value

Options outstanding as of June 30, 2013 6,577 $ 5.8
Granted 9 % 6.04
Exercised 217 % 4.12
Canceled (672) % 8.37
Options outstanding as of June 30, 2014 5,691 $ 5.5¢ 510 $ 7,28¢
As of June 30, 2014:
Options vested and expected to vest 561¢ $ 5.57 5.06 $ 7,27¢
Options exercisable 4541 % 5.21 459 $ 7,131

During fiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, the total casieived from the exercise of stock options was ¥886, $2.8 million and $2.1
million , respectively, and the total intrinsic ualof stock options exercised was $467,000 , $3ldmand $7.2 million , respectively.

A summary of our RSU activity is as follows (in tismnds except contractual life amounts):

Weighted
average
remaining
Number of contractual life Aggregate
Shares (years) intrinsic value

RSUs outstanding as of June 30, 2013 2,032
Granted 3,91«
Vested (717)
Canceled (525)
RSUs outstanding as of June 30, 2014 4,71( 1.88 $ 26,79:
As of June 30, 2014:
RSUs expected to vest 4,00( 1.78 $ 22,76

Canceled shares in the table above include appeigign270,000 shares surrendered for tax withhgklinelated to net share settlements
of vested RSUs.

In connection with our acquisition of skobbler Gmla skobbler, in January 2014 (see Note 10 Actiais), included in the table above
are approximately 635,000 RSUs granted as inducegnants to the skobbler founders outside of ocacksbption and equity incentive plans.
During fiscal 2014, we increased the number ofshawailable for grant under our stock option amuaitg incentive plans by approximately
1,574,000 shares. During fiscal 2013, we increéisechumber of shares available for grant understagk option and equity incentive plan by
2,275,000 shares, which included 621,000 shares énar 2011 Plan assumption through the acquisgforhinkNear. As of June 30, 2014 and
2013, there were a total of approximately 605,800 852,000 shares available for grant under aaksiption and equity incentive plans,
respectively.

The following table summarizes the stock-based @raation expense recorded for stock options, R8UJsestricted common stock
issued to employees and nonemployees (in thousands)
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Cost of revenue $ 10C % 14¢ % 91
Research and development 4,48¢ 3,50¢ 2,50¢
Selling and marketing 3,30¢ 2,29( 1,16¢
General and administrative 3,64( 2,69¢ 1,35¢
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 11538 ¢ 8,641 $ 5,12¢

The following table summarizes the stock-based @rsation expense recorded for stock options, R8dsestricted common stock
issued to employees and nonemployees (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Stock option awards $ 393( $ 5837 $ 4,88
RSU awards 5,781 1,491 24(C
Restricted common stock 1,82« 1,31¢ —
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 1153 8,647 $ 5,127

We generally use the Black-Scholes option-priciraglel to determine the fair value of stock optioraeds. The determination of the fair
value of stock option awards on the date of greuaffiected by the stock price as well as assumgtiegarding a number of complex and
subjective variables. These variables include ebgoestock price volatility over the term of the ads actual and projected employee stock
option exercise behaviors, risk-free interest ratas expected dividends. The weighted average g used to value stock options grante:
were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 62% 72% 64%
Expected term (in years) 4.4t 4.7¢ 4.5C
Risk-free interest rate 1.44% 0.67% 0.77%

Dividend yield — — —

Expected volatility Due to the limited historical public market tragidata for our common stock, the expected vdiatised is based on
the historical volatility of our common stock aslhas the common stock of various comparable congsain evaluating similarity, we
considered factors such as industry, stage of gpaagis life cycle, revenue and market capitalizatio

Expected term The expected term represents the period thastouk-based awards are expected to be outstarihiegexpected term
was based on an analysis of our historical exesnisecancellation activity.

Risk-free interest rateThe risk-free rate is based on U.S. Treasury zeupon issues with remaining terms similar todkpected term
on the options.

Dividend yield. We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsur common stock and do not plan to pay cagdetids in the
foreseeable future and, therefore, use an expdotiend yield of zero in the valuation model.

We recognize the estimated stock-based compensaigirof RSUs and restricted common stock, nestifnated forfeitures, over the
vesting term. The estimated stock-based compemsedist is based on the fair value of our commookstm the date of grant.

At June 30, 2014, the total unrecognized stock-dasenpensation cost related to employee optionsp®asmillion , net of estimated
forfeitures, and will be amortized over a weightegrage period of 1.5 years. The total fair valugtack options that vested during fiscal
2014, 2013 and 2012 was $4.1 million , $4.9 millzord $5.0 million , respectively. At June 30, 20th4, total unrecognized stock-based
compensation cost related to RSUs was $21.5 milliwet of estimated forfeitures, and will be ammetl over a weighted average period of 3.1
years. The total fair value of RSUs that vestedndufiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 w$4.1 million , $298,000 and $139,000 , respectivaly
June 30, 2014, the total unrecognized stock-basegbensation cost
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related to restricted common stock issued in cammeevith our acquisition of ThinkNear was $506,00td will be amortized over a weighted
average period of 0.3 years .

Shares reserved for future issuance
Common stock reserved for future issuance wasllasvio (in thousands):

June 30, 2014

Stock options outstanding 5,691
RSUs outstanding 4,71(
Available for future grants 60%
Total common shares reserved for future issuance 11,01

9. Income taxe:

The domestic and foreign components of income Ylbs®re provision (benefit) for income taxes wasgollows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012

United States $ (34,549 $ 4,72¢ % 44,72;
Foreign 1,01C 1,95( 63¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations (33,539 6,67 45,36¢
Income from discontinued operations — 11,71: 94c¢
Total income (loss) before provision (benefit) imcome taxes $ (33,539 % 18,38t $ 46,31«

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consigtde following (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Current income taxes:

Federal $ (7,506) $ 282: % 14,47¢

State (397 17¢ (2,21

Foreign 55¢ 487 214
Total current income taxes (7,34¢ 3,48¢ 12,47¢
Deferred income taxes:

Federal 3,20¢ (2,315 1,04

State 12¢ (79) 38
Total deferred income taxes 3,33¢ (2,399 1,08:
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirpimperations (4,015 1,09: 13,55¢
Provision for income taxes from discontinued operet — 4,22¢ 347
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (4,015 $ 531¢ $ 13,90¢
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes differsrfr the amount computed by applying the statutodeifal income tax rate as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Tax at federal statutory tax rate $ (11,739 $ 6,43t $ 16,21(
State taxes—net of federal benefit (269) 14€ 73¢
Non-deductible expenses 49t 522 17¢
Research and development credits (983) (1,200 (447
Section 199 deduction 42F (5617) (870)
Foreign income taxed at different rates (119 (195 374
Stock-based compensation expense 1,36¢ 1,291 86(
Tax benefit from California tax ruling — — (2,149
Transfer pricing adjustment — (1,002) (222)
Tax exempt income (26%) (369 (337
Change in valuation allowance - federal 6,95¢ — —
Other 112 247 (447
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (4,015 $ 531¢ $ 13,90¢

Our provision (benefit) for income taxes, excluddigcontinued operations, was $(4.0) million ircéis2014 compared to $1.1 million in
fiscal 2013. Our effective tax rate, excluding distinued operations, was 12% in fiscal 2014 conmp&rel 6% in fiscal 2013. Our effective tax
rate in fiscal 2014 was lower than the tax compuatietthe U.S. federal statutory income tax ratehiraarily to the increase in the valuation
allowance which resulted in additional federal ¢gagpense of $7.0 million . Our effective tax rateclading discontinued operations, was 30%
in fiscal 2012.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettermporary differences between the carrying anmohassets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts ugethfome tax purposes. Significant componentsuofnet deferred tax assets were as
follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets:

Federal, state and foreign net operating losses $ 4,322 % 2,23

Federal and state tax credits 2,32 1,47t

Stock-based compensation 3,86 3,101

Accrued expenses and reserves 5,82¢ 6,30¢

Foreign tax credits 32C —

Capitalized expense 413 49(

Unrealized losses on investments 54 —
Total deferred tax assets: 17,13: 13,61¢
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment (1,809 (2,527%)

Capitalized software (284 (1,606

Acquired intangible assets (73€) (1,590

Unrealized gains on investments — (349
Total deferred tax liabilities: (2,82%) (6,067)
Deferred tax assets, net of liabilities: 14,30: 7,551
Valuation allowance - worldwide (22,969 (2,919
Net deferred tax assets: $ 1,33  §% 4,63¢
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In fiscal 2014, we recorded a valuation allowaneeh® majority of our deferred tax assets, netadiilities, since the assets are not more
likely than not to be realized based upon our assest of all positive and negative evidence. Ratibn of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon future taxable earnings and losses, the timinghich is uncertain. Due to losses in fiscal 2@hd expected losses in fiscal 2015 and
potentially future years in the U.S., we establishefiscal 2014 a valuation allowance on defetgedassets in the U.S. that we believe will no
be realized by the carryback provisions of U.S.léax U.S. tax law allows for the two-year carrybad losses and one-year carryback of
credits to previous tax years which can generg aefund to the extent taxes were paid. Due tteidm operating losses in previous years anc
continued foreign earnings volatility, we continuednaintain a full valuation allowance for ouréggn deferred tax assets. Our valuation
allowance increased from the prior year by appraxaty $10.1 million , $699,000 , and $264,000 §tél 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We provide for U.S. income taxes on the earningsm@ign subsidiaries unless the subsidiaries'iegsmare permanently reinvested
outside the U.S. To the extent that the foreigmiegs previously treated as permanently reinveatedepatriated, the related U.S. liability r
be reduced by any foreign income taxes paid oreteasiings. As of June 30, 2014, the cumulativewsrnof earnings upon which U.S.
income taxes have not been provided was approxiyn®3e6 million . The net unrecognized deferred ltakility for these earnings was
approximately $480,000 .

As of June 30, 2014, we had federal and Califoneigoperating loss carryforwards for income taxppses of $2.3 million and $26.5
million , respectively. These loss carryforwardd twegin to expire in fiscal 2020 for federal puges and fiscal 2016 for California purposes.
In addition, we had federal and California reseancti development tax credit carryforwards of $383,8nd $3.4 million , respectively, as of
June 30, 2014. The federal research credits wijirb® expire in fiscal 2023 and the Californiagasch credits can be carried forward
indefinitely. The loss carryforwards and certaiadits are subject to annual limitation under Ind¢fRevenue Code Section 382.

As of June 30, 2014, we also had foreign net opeyddss carryforwards of $9.0 million , which bedo expire in fiscal 2019. Due to
uncertainty regarding our ability to utilize thedggn net operating loss carryforwards, we haveiooad to maintain a full valuation allowance
for these deferred tax assets.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of thedbamounts of unrecognized tax benefits (in thads

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
Unrecognized tax benefit—beginning of period $ 6,34C $ 4,431 % 4,52(
Increase in tax positions taken during the curpeniod 623 2,157 1,20(
Increase in tax positions taken during the priaiqoe 55k 21¢ 101
Decrease in tax positions taken during the prioiople (261) (467) (1,390
Lapse of statute of limitations (32€) — —
Unrecognized tax benefit—end of period $ 6,931 $ 6,34C $ 4,431

At June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, there were $3Ibmj $4.8 million and $3.6 million of unrecogmrid tax benefits that if recognized
would affect the annual effective tax rate.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federalgdittion, California, various states, and foreigx jurisdictions in which we have
subsidiaries. During fiscal 2012, the IRS concluidgdudit of our fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2088 teturns, which resulted in no adjustments
having a material impact on our financial stateraehhe statute of limitations remains open fordis2011 through fiscal 2013 in the U.S., for
fiscal 2010 through fiscal 2013 in state jurisdios, and for fiscal 2009 through 2013 in foreigrisdictions. Fiscal years outside the normal
statute of limitation remain open to audit by tarerities due to tax attributes generated in thezsty years which have been carried forward
and may be audited in subsequent years when dtilize

We believe it is reasonably possible that, as n€R0, 2014, the gross unrecognized tax benefitkl @ecrease (whether by payment,
release, or a combination of both) by approxima#dly million in the next 12 months. We recognizeeiest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax positions as part of our provisarfederal, state and foreign income taxes. Oyfiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recogn
approximately $278,000 , $159,000 and $101,00aterést and penalties. We had accrued $603,0082%000 for the payment of interest
and penalties at June 30, 2014 and 2013, resphctive
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On December 31, 2013, the research and develomresit expired for federal tax purposes. The 20a2phyer Relief Act extended the
research and development credit for two years D@dember 31, 2013. Although the research and dprrednt credit has been extended every
year since enactment, a tax benefit cannot be deddor the expired period until the extendershrlé been passed and signed by the Pres
If and when the extenders bill is passed and sigvitdretroactive effect, a retroactive tax benefill be recorded in the period the extenders
bill is passed and signed. We have recorded agagfl for the federal research and developmemditctterough December 31, 2013.

10. Acquisitions

skobbler GmbH

On January 29, 2014, we completed our acquisitiail @f the shares of privately held skobbler Gmlokiskobbler, a navigation
company based in Germany. We acquired skobblerdiosideration of approximately $23.8 million , cisting of approximately $19.2 million
in cash and $4.6 million in shares of our restdatemmon stock. We believe the acquisition of skebwill enable us to combine its OSM-
based GPS navigation technology with our existimipiie navigation solutions. The transaction hastsounted for under the acquisition
method of accounting. We recorded the assets azhaird liabilities assumed at their estimatedviaiue, with the difference between the fair
value of the net assets acquired and the purclensgderation reflected as goodwill.

The total fair value of acquisition consideratidr$83.8 million was comprised of $19.2 million iagh and 731,623 shares of our
common stock valued at $4.6 million . The 731,6@8res of our common stock are held in escrow alidbwireleased at the rate of 50% per
year on each anniversary date of closing. Theseslae released from escrow solely with the pasehtime and do not contain a service
performance requirement. In addition to the totathase consideration, we issued 634,920 induceR®bt to the founders of skobbler. The
fair value of the 634,920 RSUs issued in conneatiith the acquisition was $4.0 million , which Haeen accounted for as post-combination
stock-based compensation and is being amortizedeoweighted average period of 2.0 years .

The fair value of our common stock issued in cotinaavith the acquisition was determined to be 3G 8r share, the closing price of
common stock on the acquisition measurement ddtiehws the date the acquisition closed.

The following table reflects the values of the éssequired and liabilities assumed as of the atipn date (in thousands):

Cash $ 10C
Accounts receivable 177
Other assets 20¢
Customer relationships 40C
Developed technology 7,10(C
Goodwill 16,90°
Liabilities assumed (1,139

Total value of assets acquired and liabiliiesumed $ 23,75t

We determined the fair value of developed technokngd customer relationships to be $7.1 million &@dl million , respectively. The
fair value of the developed technology and customl@tionships is being amortized using the strigligie method over the estimated lifead
yearsand 18 months, respectively. Developed technologlycaistomer relationships are included in goodawill intangible assets, net of
amortization on the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill of $16.9 million was recorded as the excekthe fair value of the acquisition considenatover the fair value of the net assets
acquired. This asset is attributed to buyer-spewtiue resulting from synergies that are not idetliin the fair value of assets. No goodwill
was deemed to be deductible for income tax purposes

Included in the acquisition consideration is $3illiom in cash that was paid by us and deposited third party escrow account to satisfy
potential indemnification claims.

For fiscal 2014, we recognized $1.1 million in aisition related costs that were included in genaral administrative expenses. The
amounts of revenue and income from skobbler f@afi2014 were not material.
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Thinknear

On October 10, 2012, we completed our acquisitigoriwately held Local Merchant Services, Inc.,TdninkNear, a California-based
hyper-local mobile advertising company. We acqut8@% of the outstanding stock of ThinkNear forgidaration of approximately $22.5
million , consisting of approximately $18.4 milliom cash, plus restricted shares of our commorksiad assumed stock options. The
acquisition of ThinkNear enabled us to combinddtation ad targeting technology with our existadyertising solution to create a new mo
local advertising platform. The transaction hasib@ecounted for under the acquisition method obanting.

We recorded the assets acquired and liabilitiesnasd at their estimated fair value, with the diéfece between the fair value of the net
assets acquired and the purchase considerati@tted| as goodwill.

The fair value of total acquisition consideratidr$®8.4 million was comprised of cash. In addittorcash, we issued 586,580 shares of
restricted common stock, and assumed options toirec@4,491 shares (on an as-converted basis)rafauamon stock. The fair value of the
restricted shares and assumed options issued irecton with the acquisition was $4.1 million , whihas been accounted for as post-
combination stock-based compensation. The $3.6omifhir value of the restricted shares and the7$3@ fair value of the assumed options
will be amortized over a weighted average periodl.@8 years and 2.82 years, respectively.

The fair value of our common stock issued in cotinaavith the acquisition was determined to be 3Ge&r share, the closing price of
common stock on the acquisition measurement ddtiehws the date the acquisition closed. The wedlaverage fair value of the assumed
stock options to purchase 74,491 shares of our aimstock was $6.13 per share based on the Blackk&cfair value on the acquisition
measurement date.

The following table reflects the values of the éssequired and liabilities assumed as of the adipn date (in thousands):

Cash $ 181
Accounts receivable 41C
Other assets 25¢
Developed technology 5,10(
Goodwill 14,34:
Liabilities assumed (1,85%)

Total value of assets acquired and liabiliissumed $ 18,43t

We determined the fair value of developed technotoge $5.1 million , which is being amortizedngthe straightine method over th
estimated life of three years . Developed technolsgncluded in goodwill and intangible assetd, afeamortization on the consolidated
balance sheet. Goodwill of $14.3 million was reeaf@s the excess of the fair value of the purcbassideration over the fair value of the net
assets acquired. This asset is attributed to bspecific value resulting from synergies that areinduded in the fair value of assets. No
goodwill was deemed to be deductible for incomeptasposes.

Included in the purchase consideration of $18.4ianilvas $2.7 million in cash that was withheld afgposited in escrow to satisfy
potential indemnification claims. As of June 3012Q $2.7 million was recorded in prepaid expemsasother current assets with an offsetting
liability in other accrued expenses in our balasiceet.

11. Sale of enterprise business

On April 16, 2013, we completed the sale of ouegmise business to FleetCor for $10.0 millionastt. In connection with the
completion of the transaction, 50 of our employleesame employees of FleetCor.

We entered an asset purchase agreement with FleetQdarch 12, 2013, which was amended and restatepril 16, 2013. The
amended and restated asset purchase agreemdm,Agreement, included customary representatioaganties and covenants, including a
license permitting FleetCor to utilize certain air antellectual property. Upon closing, $1.3 mitliof the purchase price was held back by
FleetCor and was maintained for a period of twehanths to satisfy any amounts owed by us to Flegp@suant to our obligations under the
Agreement, including indemnification provisions. éfsJune 30, 2013, $1.3 milliomas recorded in prepaid expenses and other classsts il
our balance sheet. We received payment of ther§illidn in May 2014.
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In connection with the sale, we entered into aditaon services agreement, pursuant to which weimoed to support certain aspects of
the enterprise business while that business wasitianed to FleetCor, and a noncompetition agrednpairsuant to which we agreed not to
compete with FleetCor in certain business areasawlto the enterprise business for three years .

Our continuing involvement through the transiti@mgces agreement with FleetCor was determinec tim&ignificant. Accordingly, the
results of operations of our enterprise business baen classified as discontinued operations iirstaiement of operations for all periods
presented.

We recorded a gain of $6.5 million on the salewfenterprise business, net of tax, in fiscal 201®& gain is included in discontinued
operations in our statement of operations.

12. Restructuring costs

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014 , in ordeffticther align our resources and consolidate faedjtwe initiated a restructuring plan
consisting of the elimination of 108 full-time ptishs in the U.S. and China and we recorded restring charges of $2.4 million related to
severance and benefits for the positions elimindEedlier in fiscal 2014, we commenced our consiah of our Sunnyvale, California
headquarters facilities from two buildings into grad during the fourth quarter we closed our 8oskMassachusetts office. As a result, we
recorded restructuring charges of $2.0 milliontedao the impairment of the facility leases.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, in order tetter align and focus our resources around outegfiagrowth areas, we initiated a
restructuring plan consisting of the eliminatior88ffull-time positions in the U.S. and China arelmecorded restructuring charges of $1.5
million related to severance and benefits for thsitions eliminated. In addition, we consolidatenl 8hanghai office facilities and recorded
restructuring charges of $124,000 related to tineitore of our lease deposit. We also recordetfuetiring charges of $99,000 related to the
write-off of certain assets that were no longer usefuistdased upon the changes in our business. Estalicturing charges related to this
were $1.7 million .

The activity related to the restructuring liab#siestablished during fiscal 2013 and 2014 is pteddn the following table (in thousanc

Facility Exit Costs and

Severance and Benefit Asset Impairment Total
Balance at June 30, 2012 $ —  $ —  $ —
Restructuring expenses 1,447 224 1,671
Cash payments (830) — (830)
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 617 % 224 % 841
Restructuring expenses 2,452 1,95¢ 4,412
Cash payments (94%) (729 (1,679
Other — 1,29( 1,29(
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 2,12¢  $ 2,74 § 4,86¢

Substantially all of the remaining accrued restitiog balance related to severance and benefispiscted to be paid out by September
30, 2014.

13. Segment information

Operating segments are defined as componentsaitarprise about which separate financial inforarais available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision makergdecision making group, in deciding how to allocagsources and in assessing performance
Our chief operating decision maker is our chiefoentive officer. Our chief executive officer reviefilsancial information presented on a
consolidated basis, accompanied by information aieuenue by geographic region for purposes otating resources and evaluating
financial performance. We have one principal bussrectivity, the provision of location-based platicservices, and there are no segment
managers who are held accountable for operatigresating results and plans for levels or componeelsw the consolidated unit level.
Accordingly, we operate in a single reporting segtand operating unit structure.

Revenue by geographic region is based on the dpidlioidress of our customers. The following table &&th revenue and property and
equipment by geographic region (in thousands):
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Revenue
United States
International
Total revenue
Property and equipment, net
United States
International
Total property and equipment, net

14. Employee savings and retirement plan

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2014 2013 2012
141,13! $ 177,390 $ 193,35¢
9,17¢ 14,41( 12,16«
150,311 $ 191,80( $ 205,52;
8,12¢ $ 10,94¢ $ 14,04
68€ 804 1,391
8,81ls $ 11,75:  $ 15,44

We sponsor a defined contribution plan under IrsteRevenue Code Section 401(k), or the 401(k) Mot of our U.S. employees are
eligible to participate following the start of the@mployment. Employees may contribute up to teede of 100% of their current compensation
to the 401(k) Plan or an amount up to a statutgrigscribed annual limit. We pay the direct expsrafehe 401(k) Plan and beginning in July
2006, we began to match employee contribution®u®4 of an employee’s salary. Contributions madesgre subject to certain vesting
provisions. We made matching contributions and neet expense of $1.6 million , $1.3 million andSdnillion for fiscal 2014, 2013 and

2012, respectively.

15. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial information for 862014 and 2013 is as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended

Consolidated statements of Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30,
income data (in thousands) 2012 2012 2013 2013 2013 2013 2014 2014
(unaudited)
Revenue $42,52; $47,22¢ $54,98° $47,06: $44,29¢ $37,16. $34,47. $ 34,38t
Gross profit 30,82¢ 29,94¢ 33,31( 28,60( 28,241 21,987 20,23: 19,00¢
Income (loss) from continuing operatior
net of tax 2,221 41¢ 3,821 (879) 9 (3,997) (7,555 (17,98
Income from discontinued operations, net
of tax 48C 48€ 33 6,487 — — — —
Net income (loss) $ 2700 $ 904 $ 3,85« $ 560 9 9 $(3,997) $(7,555) $(17,98)
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing
operations $ 006 $ 001 $ 01C $ (002 $ O00OC $ (010 $ (019 $ (0.49
Income from discontinued operations $ 001 $ 001 $ o00OC $ 01€ $ — $ — $ — 3 —
Net income (loss) $ 007 $ 00z $ 01C $ 014 $ 00C $ (0.1) $ (019 $ (0.4¢
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing
operations $ 00 $ 001 $ 00 $ (002 $ 00OC $ (0.1) $ (019 $ (0.4¢
Income from discontinued operations $ 0.01 $ 001 $ oOC $ 01€ $ — $ — $ — § —
Net income (loss) $ 006 $ 00z $ 00 $ 014 $ 00OC $ (020 $ (019 $ (049
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Trade Receivable Allowances:
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Year Ended June 30, 2014

SCHEDULE Il

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Beginning Chargeback Chargeback Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
$ 35¢ $ 3,941 $ (3,989 $ 314
$ 314 $ 2,93 % (3,009 $ 241
$ 241 $ 1,81: $ (1,847 $ 20€
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Third Amendment dated December 22, 2004 to the Diatnse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Belgon, Inc. and
NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Fourth Amendment dated May 18, 2007 to the Datarnse Agreement, dated
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNavahat NAVTEQ North
America, LLC.

Fifth Amendment dated January 15, 2008 to the Datense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeJéia and NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Seventh Amendment dated December 16, 2008 to ttell@ense
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by anch@mMeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ Europe B.V. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Eighth Amendment dated December 15, 2008 to tha Diatnse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeJéia and NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 1, dated as of December D220y and between
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qwgpion.

Territory License No. 2, dated as of June 30, 20693nd between
Televigation, Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 3, dated as of February D&®y and between
TeleNav, Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 5, dated as of March 6, 20§6and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 6, dated as of May 18, 2087and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 7, dated as of May 18, 2087and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Ninth Amendment dated February 25, 2010 to the Diatanse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002 by and between Te|dhNavand NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Tenth Amendment dated June 1, 2010 to the Datank&dgreement, dated
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNay, M&VTEQ North
America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Eleventh Amendment dated September 16, 2010 tDalte License
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by arneeeet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Twelfth Amendment dated September 28, 2010 to @ Dicense
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by aneleet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Fourteenth Amendment dated September 30, 201ktDdla License
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by aneeleet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Territory License No. 8, dated December 1, 2011ay between TeleNav,
Inc., NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ EurofeV.

First Amendment dated February 7, 2012 to Territacgnse No. 8, dated as
of December 1, 2011, by and between TeleNav, M&VTEQ North
America, LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Second Amendment dated October 18, 2012 to Teyrritimense No. 8, dated
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and
NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Incorporated

Incorporated by Reference

by Reference From Exhibit

From Form Number Date Filed
S-1/A 10.16.1 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.2 2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.3 2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.4 4/26/2010

S-1 10.16.5 10/30/2009

S-1/A 10.16.6 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.7 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.8 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.9 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.10 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.11 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.12 4/26/2010
10-Q 10.16.13 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.14 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.15 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.16 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.17 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.18 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.19 2/8/2013
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Exhibit
Number

10.16.20

10.16.21%

10.16.22%

10.16.23+

10.16.24

10.16.25+

10.16.26+

10.16.27+

10.16.28+

10.17#

10.18#

10.19+

10.20#

10.21#
10.22#

10.23#

10.23.1#

Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
by Reference From Exhibit
Description From Form Number Date Filed

Fifteenth Amendment dated October 30, 2012 to thDicense Agreement, 10-Q 10.16.20 2/8/2013
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Twelama, NAVTEQ North
America, LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
Third Amendment dated December 10, 2012 to Teyriticense No. 8, dated 10-Q 10.16.21 2/8/2013
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddat of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and
NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
Seventeenth Amendment dated June 27, 2013 to tlzelliteense Agreement,  10-Q/A 10.16.22 2/27/2014
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HERE Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.
Fourth Amendment dated October 2, 2013 to Territocgnse No. 8, dated 10-Q 10.16.23 11/8/2013
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddat of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., and Navigakechnologies Corporatic
(“NTC"), which was subsequently assigned by NTE®RE North America,
LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).
Eighteenth Amendment dated January 28, 2014 tbé#te License 10-Q 10.16.24 2/6/2014
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by amneeleet HERE North
America, LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (fanerly Navigation
Technologies Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.
Territory License No. 9, dated February 1, 2014bg between HERE North 10-Q 10.16.25 5/8/2014
America, LLC, HERE Europe B.V., NAVTEQ Korea Cod,tand Telenav,
Inc.
General License Agreement, dated February 10, BQ®hd between HERE 10-Q 10.16.26 5/8/2014
North America, LLC, and Telenav, Inc.
Nineteenth Amendment dated May 20, 2014 to the Datnse Agreement, Filed
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HER Mmerica, LLC herewith
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.
First Amendment, dated June 12, 2014, to Territdcgnse No. 9, dated as of Filed
February 1, 2014, by and between Telenav, Inc. HEERE North America, herewith
LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).”
Employment Offer Letter executed on June 28, 204t fTeleNav, Inc. to 10-K 10.17 9/24/2010
Dariusz Paczuski.
First Year Executive Employment Agreement datece B8y 2010 by and 10-K 10.18 9/24/2010
between TeleNav, Inc. and Dariusz Paczuski.
Office Lease, dated as of June 28, 2011 and ex¢tomdune 30, 2011, by and  10-K 10.19 9/9/2011
between TeleNav, Inc. and CA-Sunnyvale BusinesseCdimited
Partnership.
Employment Offer Letter dated August 10, 2011 frbefeNav, Inc. to Marc 10-Q 10.20 11/7/2011
Aronson.
Form of First Year Executive Employment Agreement. 10-Q 10.21 11/7/2011
Retention Letter dated March 28, 2012 from TeleNaw, to Michael W. 10-Q 10.22 5/7/2012
Strambi.
Employment Agreement dated March 28, 2012 betwedeNav, Inc. and 10-Q 10.23 5/7/2012
Michael W. Strambi.
Amendment No. 1 dated December 20, 2013 to the &mpnt Agreement 10-Q 10.23.1 2/6/2014

dated March 28, 2012 between TeleNav, Inc. and d&tkV. Strambi.

5
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Exhibit
Number

10.24

10.25#
10.26+

10.26.1+

10.26.2+

10.26.3+

10.26.4+

10.26.5+

10.26.6+

10.26.7+

10.26.8+

10.26.9+

10.26.10%

10.26.11+

10.26.12+

10.26.13+

10.26.14+

Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
by Reference From Exhibit
Description From Form Number Date Filed

Consulting Agreement effective June 16, 2012 betwiegdeNav, Inc. and 10-K 10.24 9/7/2012
Douglas Miller.
Director Offer Letter dated July 30, 2012 betweeteNav, Inc. and Ken Xie. 10-K 10.25 9/7/2012
SYNC Generation 2 On-Board Navigation Agreemented®ctober 12, 10-K 10.26 9/7/2012
2009, by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motmanmg@any.
Amendment No. 1 effective August 10, 2010 to theN€YGeneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.1 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2008rtd between
TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 2 effective February 3, 2011 to thi&l6 Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.2 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 3 effective February 3, 2011 to t&l6 Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.3 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 4 effective March 31, 2011 to the &G@eneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.4 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 5 effective March 31, 2011 to the &G@eneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.5 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 6 effective March 31, 2011 to the £/@eneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.6 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 7 effective November 15, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 10-K 10.26.7 9/7/2012
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129266 amended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 8 effective January 1, 2012 to th&i&YGeneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.8 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 9 effective May 11, 2012 to the SYG€heration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.9 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 10 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.10 5/8/2013
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 11 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.11 8/30/2013
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 12 effective February 28, 2013 toSN&C Generation 2 10-K 10.26.12 8/30/2013
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129288 amended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 13 effective June 17, 2013 to the SY®éneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.13 8/30/2013
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 14 effective October 1, 2013 to thi&lS Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.14 11/8/2013

Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit
Number Description From Form Number Date Filed
10.26.15+ Amendment No. 15 effective November 18, 2013 toSW&C Generation 2 10-Q 10.26.15 2/6/2014
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129266 amended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.16+ Amendment No. 16 effective April 17, 2014 to theNBY Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.16 5/8/2014
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company
10.27 Consulting Agreement effective August 29, 2012 e TeleNav, Inc. and 10-K 10.27 9/7/2012
Marc Aronson.
10.28# Summary of Nonemployee Director Compensation. 8-K 10.28 12/3/2012
10.29# Amended and Restated Telenav, Inc. 2011 Stock ®ptial Grant Plan. S-8 4.2 10/29/2012
10.30# Employment Offer Letter dated April 8, 2014 fromldmav, Inc. to Vincent  Filed herewitt
Uttley
10.31# Vincent Uttley Employment Agreement dated April 20,14 by and between Filed herewitt
Telenav, Inc. and Vincent Uttley
21.1 Subsidiaries of the registrant. Filed herewitt
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking. Filed
herewith
24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature pagihis Form 10-K). Filed
herewith
31.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCxecutive Officer. herewith
31.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCRinancial Officer. herewith
32.1~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed herewitt
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 akCExecutive Officer.
32.2~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed herewitt
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCkinancial Officer.
101.INS* XBRL Instance Document Filed herewitt
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document Filed herewitt
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document Filed herewitt
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document Filed herewitt
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document Filed herewitt
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim Filed herewitt
# Management contracts or compensation plansangements in which directors or executive offices eligible to participate.
+ Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punstaa request for confidential treatment filedhathe Securities and Exchange
Commission.
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t Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punstman order granted by the Securities and Exgh&ommission for confidential
treatment.

~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47986) Rule: Management's
Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repgrtamd Certification of Disclosure in Exchange AetiBdic Reports, the
certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 3B&reto are deemed to accompany this Form 10-K dhdat be deemed “filed” for
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Sudifications will not be deemed to be incorporabsdreference into any filings
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, exteethe extent that the registrant specificallgarporates it by reference.

XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagédimation is furnished and not filed or a part akgistration statement or
prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 o$twmurities Act, is deemed not filed for purposeSextion 18 of the Exchange Act,
and otherwise is not subject to liability undershasections.



Exhibit 10.16.27:
HERE CONFIDENTIAL

NINETEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE DATA LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Nineteenth Amendment (“Nineteenth Amendmetud)he Data License Agreement (“Agreementigted December 1, 20I
as amended, and Territory License No. 8, effecbhezember 1, 2011 (“TL 8"between HERE North America, LLC (f/}
NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigation Thoologies Corporation) (collectivel'HERE") and Telenav, In
(referred to herein as “Client” or “LICENSEE)s made and entered into between Client, on thehamel, and HERE as of 1
date of last signature below (“Nineteenth Amendnigffective Date”).Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in the boflhis
Nineteenth Amendment shall have the meanings sigtifothe Agreement or TL ¢

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to amend thastemd conditions of the Agreement with this Nieath Amendment
follows:

1. Amendment TermThe term of this Nineteenth Amendment (“Ninetbéefstnendment Term”) shall continue for a period
of nine (9) months.

2. [®**] and [***] Rights . Section VIl of TL 8 is hereby amended to addftiwing Section VII(E)

E. r*****] and [*****" RithS

For purposes of this Nineteenth Amendment andiieduration of the Nineteenth Amendment Term, HEREDby
grants Client a non-exclusive, non-transferabl@-sublicensable (except as provided herein), ststtiright to (i)
[*****] (as defined below) and related [*****] soldy in its [*****] for possible [*****] from HERE; ( ii) [*****] that
use [*****] for [*****] (the “[*****]"); (iii) dist  ribute such [*****] to [*****] solely for [*****] p urposes of such
[¥*¥***]; (iv) [*****] the [*****] to [*****] t0 ena ble [*****] to use such [*****] for [*****] purpose s of the
[*****]; and (V) [*****] the [*****] to [*****]; pr ovided that Client shall (1) [*****] in writing ofall [*****] to
whom Client distributes the [*****] that uses th&**] and [*****]; and (2) Client shall have a written agreement i
place with each [*****] setting forth terms and cditions no less restrictive than those set fortteime(“[*****]"). As
used herein, “[*****]” means [*****] (“[*****]") an d related [*****] used solely for the [*****] of the [*****]. For
sake of clarity, [*****] shall be restricted from)(using the [*****] and [*****] for any purpose other than as
permitted herein, including any [*****], and (ii)Urther [*****] the rights granted herein. Client ah be fully
responsible for compliance by [*****] with [*****].

“[*****]” means the following [*****] not [*****] t o Client under the Agreement:

. [*****]
. [*****]
. [*****]
. [*****]
. [*****]
. [*****]

. [*****]

Except as otherwise provided herein, Client agne¢so (and shall not permit any third party to) @isclose or
distribute such [*****] and/or [*****] to any third parties other than as specified herein, or (Bj{*f'the [*****] or
any products utilizing such [*****] without first ppcuring

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested withegp the omitted portions.

19th Amendment to the DLA [5-1-14 lee]  Page 1 of 2
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Exhibit 10.16.27:

appropriate rights for such [*****] by entering iota definitive written agreement with HERE for thee of such
[*****] in such products. For sake of clarity, tHeense rights granted under [*****] of [*****] donot apply to the

rights under this Section VII(E).

3. The terms and conditions of the Agreement remafunliforce and effect except as modified hereur

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thigeidienth Amendment to be executed by their augdrzpresentatives.

HERE NORTH AMERICA, LLC
By: /s/ Stephen W. Kelley

Name: Stephen W. Kelley

Title: Director, Legal and Intellectual Property
Date: 5/20/2014

HERE NORTH AMERICA, LLC

By: /s/ Gregory Drescher

Name: Gregory Drescher

Title:  Senior Counsel, Legal and IP

Date: 5/20/2014

TELENAYV, INC.
By: /s/ Michael Strambi

Name: Michael Strambi
Title: CFO

Date: 5/1/2014

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheegp the omitted portions.

19th Amendment to the DLA [5-1-14 lee]  Page 2 of 2



Exhibit 10.16.28
HERE CONFIDENTIAL

FIRST AMENDMENT TO TERRITORY LICENSE NO. 9

This First Amendment (“First Amendment”) to the firy License No. 9, effective February 1, 20141(*9”), to the Dat
License Agreement (“Agreement”), dated Decemb@002, by and between Telenav, Inc. (“Clieraf)d Navigation Technologi
Corporation, which was subsequently assigned to EHHERrth America, LLC (f/k/a NAVTEQ North America,UC) (collectively
“HERE"), is made and entered into as of the datkatefst signature below (“Amendment Effective Dat@he Agreement and 7
9 is hereby referred to herein as the “Agreeme@apitalized terms not otherwise defined in the botlyhis First Amendme
shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend certain tefritise Agreement;
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree to amend certaiwigions of the Agreement with this First Amendmas follows:

1. Licensed Use The last sentence under Section IV(C) of TL Bdtwithstanding the foregoing, the Data may nc
distributed to any [*****], including [*****]") is hereby amended to add the following:

“For sake of clarity, the foregoing restriction $malt restrict [*****] of a [*****], including [*** **], from using the Dat
in permitted Applications [*****] for [*****] use.”

2. HERE Marks and Legend$ection VIl of TL 9 is hereby amended to addfti®wing new section VII(E

“E. HERE Marks and LegendsClient shall include HERE Marks and the applieablERE copyright notice (
specified in the HERE 3rd Party Brand Guidelines] ¢hird party copyright and similar notices angeeds (as specifi
in the Agreement, the HERE 3rd Party Brand Gui@sliand/or otherwise HERE) in the Portable ConsubeeiceBase(
Map and Route Application and/or owrgernanual, or such other placement of the HERE Mé&rkegends as may
mutually agreed by the parties, but in all casdgest to [*****] requirements.”

3. Exhibit A (Definitions). The following definitions under Exhibit A of TL &e amended as follov

A. The definition of "Destination/Waypoint Deliweris hereby amended to include [*****] in additioio
latitude/longitude coordinates for delivery of sudéstination/Waypoint as defined therein.

B. Subsection (iv) of the definition of “Excludégpplications” is hereby amended to adektept for personal use by
End User in a rental vehicle” after “other renitliations”.

C. Subsection (iv) of the definition of “Map & RmuOnly Functionality’is hereby deleted in its entirety and reple
with the following: “(v) display of [*****] (including [*****] and other [*****] data and information) and [*****] on
a HERE map or along any portion of the Route;".

D. The reference to “POIs” under subsection (w@fi)the definition of “Map & Route Only Functionalit is hereb
amended to state “[*****].” In addition, subsectidwii) is amended to include “[*****]" to the list of third party da
layers.

E. The definition of “Map & Route Only Functionigfi is hereby amended to add the following restricti
* Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereinthwiespect to Destination/Waypoint Delivery, Clienay

not send a Destination/Waypoint and any other Dastin/Waypoint details (other than latitude/longdd
coordinates and [*****]) to other [*****] that do rot use [*****] data.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.

Amendment 1 to TL gTelenav, Inc.][INA VEH PR-010645][ 5-13-14 lee] Page 1 of 2
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HERE CONFIDENTIAL

* Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hereinthwiespect to Destination/Waypoint Delivery, Clienay
not send the [*****] of a Destination/Waypoint t¢*f**] applications that do not use [*****] data.

4, Exhibit B (End User Terms)The “Restrictions’provision under Exhibit B of TL 9 is hereby deletiedits entirety an
replaced with the following:

“ Restrictions. Except where you have been specifically licertsedo so by Telenav, and without limiting the priog
paragraph, you may not use this Data (a) with angyrcts, systems, or applications installed or mtfse connected to
in communication withvehicles, capable of vehicle navigation, positigninlispatch, real time route guidance, f
management or similar applications; or (b) withimrcommunication with any positioning devices oly anobile o
wirelesseonnected electronic or computer devices, includintpout limitation cellular phones, palmtop andntibelc
computers, pagers, and personal digital assistai®AS.”

5. “EXHIBIT E — SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR HERE RAFFIC (ML)" is hereby renamed “EXHIBIT F
SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT FOR HERE TRAFFIC (ML)".

6. Except as modified hereunder, all other terms amdlitions of the Agreement shall stay in full foared effec

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thist imendment to be executed by their authorizedesentatives as
the Amendment Effective Date.

HERE NORTH AMERICA, LLC TELENAYV, INC.
By: /s/ Stephen W. Kelley By: /s/ Michael Strambi
Name: Stephen W. Kelley Name: Michael Strambi

Title: Director, Legal and Intellectual Property Title: CFO
Date: 6/12/2014 Date: 3/14/2014
HERE NORTH AMERICA, LLC

By: /s/ Gregory Drescher

Name: Gregory Drescher

Title:  Senior Counsel, Legal and IP

Date: 6/12/2014

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested withegp the omitted portions.

Amendment 1 to TL gTelenav, Inc.][INA VEH PR-010645][ 5-13-14 lee] Page 2 of 2



Exhibit 10.30;

Telenav, Inc.
950 De Guigne
Sunnyvale, CA 94085
Tel: (408) 245-3800 / Fax: (408) 245-0238

Date: April 3, 2014
Re: Offer of Employment

Dear Vincent:

Telenav, Inc. (“The Company” of “Telenavi} very pleased to offer you the position of Serice President ¢
Engineering, reporting to HP Jin, on the followtegms.

Your base salary compensation shall be $29,16G&6¥Wpnth, less payroll deductions and all requivétiholdings.
You will be paid semi-monthly and you will be elig for the following Company benefits per our star plans and
policies: medical insurance, dental and vision iasae, FSA account participation, 401K participatidath Company
match, vacation, sick leave, and holidays. Detgisut these benefit plans are available for youeve

You will be eligible for an annual bonus of up @% of your base salary as part of our 2013 Teléneentive Plan.
This bonus is based on successful execution aflgettives. Details of the 2013 Telenav IncenBNan will be
provided by your Manager

In addition, we will recommend that the Telenavrooaf directors grant you a Restricted Stock URIBU) equivalent
to 250,000 shares of Telenav Stock, which will wiedbur equal amounts annually over the next fgears. We
anticipate that you will enter into an irrevocablection relating to the units to permit the paytr@mrequired taxes
upon vesting of the Units.

We are also pleased to offer you a sign-on bondi00,000.00 to be paid in two separate paymeiis fifst payment
will be made six months after your start date (pies that you are still employed by Telenav), dreldecond payment
will be made on your first anniversary with the quany, provided that you continue to be employed é&gnav.

As a Telenav employee, you will be expected to elngd Company rules and regulations, acknowledgeriting tha
you have read the CompasyEmployee Handbook, and sign and comply with g@fetary Information and Inventio
Agreement, which prohibit unauthorized use or disate of Telenav proprietary information. A coptludt Agreemel
is included with this letter.
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As an exempt salaried employee, you will be exmbedte work hours as required by the nature of youwrk
assignments. During the period of your employmgaod, will not, without the express written consehttee Compan
engage in any other employment or business activigyuding, without limitation, consulting of arkind, which ma
interfere with your work for the company. Notwithstling anything to the contrary, employee may perfservices fc
friends, family, etc. on a limited basis outsidewadrk hours. Employee warrants that such activitids be minor ir
nature and will not interfere with or compromisepoyee’s duties of good faith, loyalty or fair die.

As part of the interview process, we perform a lgagknd check consisting of credit, criminal and &pment history.
This offer is contingent upon a favorable reviewréferences.

You may terminate your employment with Telenavrat 8ime for any reason by notifying the Companykedwise,
Telenav may terminate your employment at any tianeafiy reason, with or without cause or advance@ot elenav
also retains the sole discretion to make all ottegisions regarding your employment (e.g., tragsfdemotions, job
assignments, compensation and the like) with dnout cause. The at will relationship cannot be gedrexcept in
writing signed by the Company CEO.

Please note that, in compliance with the Immigraieform Act of 1986, all new employees are reglicesubmit
proof of U.S. Citizenship or legal alien statushiitthree business days of employment. Enclosad is9 form that
lists the document that you may present to fulfiis requirement. Please bring your documentaatong with the
completed I-9 Form, on your first day of employment

(remainder of page left blank intentionally)
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If you wish to accept employment at Telenav untlerterms described above, please sign and datiettieis and retu
it to the Company by the close of business, Mondawyil 7, 2014. Your first day of employment witrelEnav will be
determined upon acceptance of this offer.

We look forward to your favorable reply and to adctive and enjoyable work relationship.

Sincerely,

By: /s/ Peg Wynn

Peg Wynn

Vice President, Human Resources
Telenav, Inc.

Accepted. /s/ Vincent Uttley

Date: 4/8/14
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TELENAYV, INC.
PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AGREEMENT

The following confirms an agreement between meTldnav, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
"Company,'which term includes the Company's affiliates, sasoes and assigns), which is a material part of the
consideration for my employment or continued emplegt by the Company:

1. “Proprietary Information” is information that was or is developed by, becamieecomes known
by, or was or is assigned or otherwise conveyadaie known to, the Company, and which has comnexsaiiae in
the Company's business. Proprietary Informatiotluaes, without limitation, trade secrets; finanerdbrmation;
product plans; lists, databases and other infoomatoncerning vendors, licensees and custometsiding informatior
which discloses the identity of such parties) drel@ompany’s relationship with those parties; pganformation and
policies; employee compensation records; businedsrarketing plans and strategies; forecasts apdiwer business
information; inventions; discoveries; formulas; gt and other ideas; works of authorship; procegssehnology;
computer programs; source and object codes; tegbsjgrocesses; prototypes; algorithms; schemagissarch; know-
how and data, disclosed to me by the Company,raiihectly or indirectly, in writing, orally or bgrawings or
inspection of materials. | understand that my emplent creates a relationship of confidence and betsveen me and
the Company with respect to Proprietary Informatibthe Company and its customers, vendors and pHres
contracting with the Company, which may be leargdne during my employment.

2. Asused in this Agreement, any referencemoployment”by the Company includes any time
during which | may be retained by the Company esresultant, in addition to any time during whicanh an employee
of the Company.

3. In consideration of my employment or contiaheenployment and the compensation received by
from the Company from time to time, | hereby agasdollows:

(@) All Proprietary Information and all patentspyrights, trade dress, mask work and other
intellectual property rights, including, withoutritation, any extensions, renewals, continuatiandivsions of any of
the foregoing (collectively, thd_egal Rights") associated with Proprietary Information shalkie sole property of the
Company. | hereby assign to the Company any righmagy have or acquire in any Proprietary Informatamd any
Legal Rights associated therewith. At all timeghlauring my employment and after its terminatilowjll keep in
confidence and trust and will not use or disclasg Rroprietary Information or anything relatingitavithout the
written consent of the Company, except that | magldse such Proprietary Information to employe®s @nsultants
of the Company as necessary in the ordinary cafrperforming my duties on behalf of the Compahggree to
notify the Company in writing immediately upon disery of any unauthorized use or disclosure of
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any Proprietary Information received hereundegror other breach of the Agreement, and to assistaoperate with
the Company in every reasonable way to regain gegseof such Proprietary Information and/or preévenfurther
unauthorized disclosure and/or use. Notwithstanthegoregoing, | have no obligation under this égment to
maintain in confidence any information that: (iynshe public domain at the time of disclosur@;ttiough originally
Proprietary Information, subsequently enters thadipulomain other than by breach of my confidemnabbligation, as
of the date of its entering the public domain o) {hat | can show | knew of prior to disclosucerhe by the Company.

(b) In the event of the termination of my empi@nt by me or by the Company for any reasor
or upon the Company’s request at any time, | shatfiediately return all documents, records, apparatomputer files,
equipment and other physical property, or any régpction of such property, whether or not pertaintiméroprietary
Information furnished to me by the Company or ptlby myself or others in connection with my empient, to th
Company.

(c) I'will promptly disclose to the Company,ay persons designated by it,"@tlventions,”
which include all improvements, inventions, disacoe®, formulas, ideas, circuits, mask works, warkauthorship,
processes, computer programs, algorithms, techsjgeematics, knovhow and data, whether or not patentable,
made or conceived or reduced to practice or deeeldyy me, either alone or jointly with others, dgrthe term of my
employment. To the extent the Company does not hights therein hereunder, such disclosure shalebeived by th
Company in confidence and does not extend therassigt made in paragraph (e) of this Section 3.

(d) During the term of my employment and for ¢hgyear thereafter, | will not encourage or
solicit any employee of the Company to leave then@any for any reason or to devote less than dlafemployee's
efforts to the affairs of the Company, provided tih@ foregoing shall not affect any responsibilitpay have as an
employee of the Company with respect to the bateliiring and firing of Company personnel. Durihg term of my
employment and thereafter, | will not solicit buesss for myself or for the benefit of any third gdrased upon
information regarding the Company’s customers beoparties doing business with the Company whecbime aware
of during, and in connection with, my employmenthwthe Company, to the extent that information titutes the trad
secrets of the Company.

(e) I agree that all Inventions which | makenoeive, reduce to practice or develop (in whol
in part, either alone or jointly with others) dugimy employment shall be the sole property of tbenffany to the
maximum extent permitted by Section 2870 of thef@alia Labor Code, a copy of which is attachethis Agreemen
asExhibit A, and to the extent permitted by law shall be "vgarlade for hire." The Company shall be the soleevwf
all Legal Rights associated with the Inventionseteby assign to the Company any Legal Rights | haag or acquire
in the Inventions. | agree to perform, during aftdrany employment, all acts deemed
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necessary or desirable by the Company to permitasit it, at the Company's expense, in obtaianthenforcing any
Legal Rights for the foregoing Inventions and/oy ather Inventions | have or may at any time assigime Company
in any and all countries. These acts may includeake not limited to, execution of documents asglstance or
cooperation in legal proceedings. | hereby irrebbcdesignate and appoint the Company and its dutliorized
officers and agents as my agents and attormeyfact to act for and on my behalf and instead of tmexecute and fil
any applications or related filings and to do #fley lawfully permitted acts to further the prosemu and issuance of
Legal Rights associated with any Inventions with shme legal force and effect as if executed by me.

() A complete list of all Inventions to whiclclaim ownership and that | desire to remove fror
the operation of this Agreement is attache&asibit B, and | covenant that this list is complete. Iflisbis attached to
this Agreement, | represent that | have no Inveastim which | claim ownership and that | desiregimove from the
operation of this Agreement at the time of sigrtimg Agreement.

() I represent that my performance of all #rents of this Agreement will not breach any
agreement or obligation to keep in confidence pedary information acquired by me in confidencdrast prior to my
employment with the Company. | have not entereal, iahd | agree | will not enter into, any agreenestiiter written or
oral in conflict with this Agreement or in confliatith my employment with the Company.

4. | acknowledge and agree that a breach ob&nyy promises or covenants contained herein will
result in irreparable and continuing damage toQbmpany for which there will be no adequate renmetdgw, and in
the event of such breach the Company shall bdehtih injunctive relief and/or a decree for spegierformance, and
such other and further relief as may be propeiydiog monetary damages, if appropriate).

5. This Agreement shall be effective as of & tay of my employment, and shall be bindingrupo
me, my heirs, executors, assigns and administratatshall inure to the benefit of the Companysitissidiaries,
successors and assigns.

6. This Agreement may not be modified exceptvbyten agreement signed by me and the Company
This Agreement shall be governed by and constnuedcordance with the laws of the State of Califgrexcluding
that body of law relating to choice of law.

Dated: 5/5/14

Employee /s/ Vincent Uttley
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Exhibit A

§ 2870. Application of provision that employee shhissign or offer to assign rights in invention temployer

(@) Any provision in an employment agreementolitprovides that an employee shall assign, or adf@ssign, any
his or her rights in an invention to his or her éogpr shall not apply to an invention that the eoyple developed
entirely on his or her own time without using tmeptoyer’s equipment, supplies, facilities, or tragderet information
except for those invention that either:

(1) Relate at the time of conception or reductmpractice of the invention to the employer’'sibess, or actual or
demonstrably anticipated research or developmethieoémployer; or

(2) Result from any work performed by the empleyor the employer.

(b) To the extent a provision in an employmegreament purports to require an employee to assignvention
otherwise excluded from being required to be agslgmder subdivision (a), the provision is agatihstpublic policy ¢
this state and is unenforceable.




Exhibit 10.30;

Exhibit B

Telenav, Inc.
950 DeGuine Drive
Sunnyvale, CA. 94085

Ladies and Gentlemen:

1. The following is a complete list of all Inens relevant to the subject matter of my employiiey
the Company that have been made or conceivedsbrdéiduced to practice by me alone or jointly vaithers prior to
my employment by the Company and that | desiremoave from the operation of the Company’s Propryeta
Information and Inventions Agreement.

__X__ Noinventions or improvements.

See belov

Additional sheets attach

/sl Vincent Uttley 5/5/14
Employee Date
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TELENAYV, INC.

Vincent G. Uttley EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is madd entered into by and between
Vincent G. Uttley (“Executive”) and Telenav, Inthé “Company”), effective as of April 11, 2014 (tteffective Date”).

1. Duties and Scope of Employme

(a) Position and DutiesExecutive will serve as the Company's Senior \Reesident of Engineeringexecutiv
will render such business and professional servitéise performance of Executive's duties, constsiath Executive's positic
within the Company, as will reasonably be assigimetdim by the Company's Board of Directors (the 4B). The Board c
CEO may modify Executive's job title and dutiesitadeems necessary and appropriate in light ofGbenpany's needs a
interests from time to time. The period of Execeivemployment under this Agreement is referrduetein as theEmploymen
Term.”

(b) ObligationsDuring the Employment Term, Executive will perfoErecutive's duties faithfully and to the t
of Executive's ability and will devote Executivéldl business efforts and time to the Company. B duration of tr
Employment Term, Executive agrees not to activelyage in any other employment, occupation or ceingubctivity for an
direct or indirect remuneration without the prigpeoval of the Board.

2. At-Will Employment.The parties agree that Executive's employment thighCompany will be “at-will’employmer
and may be terminated at any time with or withauise or notice. Executive understands and agraeséither Executive's ji
performance nor promotions, commendations, bonoist#® like from the Company give rise to or in avgy serve as the ba
for modification, amendment, or extension, by irogtion or otherwise, of Executive's employment with Company. Howeve
as described in this Agreement, Executive may lidlexhto severance benefits depending on tlleunistances of Executiv
termination of employment with the Company.

3. Term of Agreement This Agreement will have an initial term of thré®& years from the Effective Date, unl
terminated earlier under this Agreement's provsio@n the third anniversary of the Effective Daleis Agreement wi
automatically renew for additional one (1) yeamsrunless either party provides the other party wutitten notice of non-
renewal at least sixty (60) days prior to the adtautomatic renewal, provided that Employee sbelkentitled to the benefits
Section 8(a) of this Agreement for a period of gmar from the expiration of this agreement so lasghe continues t
employment with the Company. Notwithstanding theefing provisions of this paragraph, in the ewsdra Change of Contr
the term of this Agreement will automatically exdethrough the eighteemonth anniversary of such Change of Cor
Additionally, on the eighteemonth anniversary of such Change of Control andheatnual anniversary thereafter,
Agreement will automatically renew for additionalen(1) year terms unless either party providesother party with writte
notice of non-renewal at least sixty (60) daysmpmosuch anniversary.

If Executive becomes entitled to severance bengditsuant to Section 8 hereof, this Agreementnati terminate until all of the
obligations under this Agreement have been satisfie

4. Compensation.
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(a) Base Salary During the Employment Term, the Company will fayecutive an annual salary of Th
Hundred fifty thousand dollars ($350,000.00) as pensation for Executive's services (the “Base $glafhe Base Salary w
be paid periodically in accordance with the Companyormal payroll practices and be subject to tlsealy require
withholdings. Executive's salary will be subjectreview and adjustments will be made based uponCii@pany's norm
performance review practices.

(b) Target Bonus. Executive will be eligible to figipate in any bonus plans or programs maintafnaa time tc
time by the Company on such terms and conditiortetermined by the Board or the Compensation Cotaendf the Board (tt
“Committee”). Any bonus, or any portion thereof, will be paidsm®on as practicable after the Committee deterntimaisthe
bonus has been earned, but in no event shall theskze paid after the later of (i) the fifteentb {3 day of the third (3rd) mon
following the close of the Company's fiscal yeamihich the bonus is earned or (ii) March 15 follogithe calendar year
which the bonus is earned.

(c) Equity Awards.Executive will continue to be eligible to receiveaads of stock options, restricted stc
restricted stock units, stock appreciation rightsformance units and performance shares or othétyeawards pursuant to ¢
plans or arrangements the Company may have intdfi@m time to time. The Board or the Committeelwlétermine in it
discretion whether Executive will be granted anghsaquity awards and its terms in accordance \wethtérms of any applicat
plan or arrangement that may be in effect from tilméme.

5. Employee Benefitd=xecutive will continue to be entitled to partidipdan the employee benefit plans currently
hereafter maintained by the Company of generaliegdylity to other senior executives of the Compahlye Company resen
the right to cancel or change the benefit planspandrams it offers to its employees at any time.

6. Vacation. Executive will continue to be entitled to paiccation, in accordance with the Company's vacataity for
senior executive officers, with the timing and dima of specific vacations mutually and reasonaddyeed to by the part
hereto. Upon Executive's termination of employmdinecutive will be entitled to receive Executivelscrued but unpa
vacation through the date of Executive's termimatio

7. ExpensesThe Company will reimburse Executive for reasondldeel, entertainment or other expenses incure
Executive in the furtherance of or in connectiothwthe performance of Executive's duties hereurideaccordance with tl
Company's expense reimbursement policy as in dffect time to time.

8. Severance.

(@) Termination for other than Cause, Death or Disgbflipart from a Chaige of
Control. During the Employment Term, if earlier than tv&) (honths prior to a Change of Control or afterlse€12) months
following a Change of Control, the Company (or @ayent or subsidiary or successor of the Companmg)ihates Executive's
employment other than for Cause, death or disgpilien, subject to Section 9 below, Executive vétieive the following
severance from the Company which will be paid onjrothe case of installments, will commence aafifth (5") day after the
Release becomes effective and irrevocable:

(i) Severance Paymertixecutive will receive: (A) a lump-sum

2
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severance payment in an amount equal to twelve rfi@)ths of Executive's Base Salary (as in effechédiately prior t
Executive's termination), and (B) a lump-sum pated amount of Executive's bonus for the yearhrcvthe termination occt
(adjusted as appropriate based on the extent tohwdmy applicable performance objectives have tiesn achieved and i
relative weightings thereof, each as determinethénsole and absolute discretion of the Board an@ittee acting in goc
faith).

(i) Continued Employee Benefits. Executive willcedve Companyaid coverage for the cost
continuation coverage for Executive and Executigitfble dependents under the Company's Benedit$lintil the earlier of
a period of twelve (12) months from the date of &tve's termination of employment with the Compamy(ii) the date upc
which Executive and/or Executive's eligible depensdecomes covered under similar plans.

(b) Termination for other than Cause, Death or Bilgg or Resignation for Goo®&Reason upon or within Tv
Months Prior to, or Twelve Months Following, a Chyanof Control.During the Employment Term, if upon or within tw®)
months prior to, or twelve (12) months followingCaange of Control, (i) the Company (or any pacergubsidiary or succes:
of the Company) terminates Executive's employmémrahan for Cause, death or disability, or (jpo Executive's resignati
with the Company (or any parent or subsidiary @cessor of the Company) for Good Reason, thenesuty Section 9 belo
Executive will receive the following severance frahe Companywhich will be paid on, or, in the case of instalirtse will
commence on the fifth (%) day after the Release becomes effective andacable:

(i) Severance Paymeriixecutive will receive: (A) a lumpum severance payment in an amount eq|
twelve (12) months of Executive's Base Salary ffasfiect immediately prior to Executive's terminafi, and (B) a lumun
pro+ated amount of Executive's bonus for the yearhictkvthe termination occurs (adjusted as appraphbased on the exten
which any applicable performance objectives haea theen achieved and the relative weightings thieeach as determined
the sole and absolute discretion of the Board anf@itee acting in good faith).

(i) Continued Employee BenefitEExecutive will receive Compangaid coverage for the cost
continuation coverage for Executive and Executiedigible dependents under the Company's Benedindlntil the earlier
(A) a period of twelve (12) months from the dateEsdecutive's termination of employment with the Qamy, or (B) the da
upon which Executive and/or Executive's eligiblpeledents becomes covered under similar plans.

(iif) Accelerated Vesting. One hundred percent @A)®mf Executive's outstanding equity awards
immediately vest prior to Executive's terminatiamdabecome exercisable. The equity awards will ranedercisable, to tl
extent applicable, following the date of terminatfor the period prescribed in the stock or egpian and award agreement.

(c) Termination for Cause, Death or Disability; R@stion without GoodRreason. If Executive's employme
with the Company (or any parent or subsidiary arcessor of the Company) terminates voluntarily kedttive (except upc
resignation for Good Reason upon or within twor{@nths prior to, or twelve (12) months followingCaange of Control), fi
Cause by the Company or due to Executive's deatlisability, then (i) all vesting will terminate imediately with respect
Executive's outstanding equity awards, (i) all payts of compensation by the Company to Executareunder will termina
immediately (except as to amounts already earred),(iii) Executive will only be eligible for sewarce benefits in accordal
with the Company's established policies, if anythas in effect.

3
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(d) Exclusive RemedyIn the event of a termination of Executive's emgptent with the Company (or any pal
or subsidiary or successor of the Company), theigians of this Section 8 are intended to be aedeaclusive and in lieu of a
other rights or remedies to which Executive or@wenpany may otherwise be entitled, whether at tav,or contract, in equit
or under this Agreement. Executive will be entiti®dno severance or other benefits upon terminasioemployment wit
respect to acceleration of award vesting or seeergay other than those benefits expressly sdt fiotthis Section 8.

9. Conditions to Receipt of Severance; No Duty to ddite.

(a) Separation Agreement and Release of Clalins.receipt of any severance pursuant to Sectiands((b) wil
be subject to Executive signing and not revokirsggaration agreement and release of claims imarfeasonably satisfactory
the Company (the “Releasednd provided that such Release becomes effectigdaregvocable no later than sixty (60) d
following the termination date (such deadline, tRelease Deadline”)f the Release does not become effective and icave
by the Release Deadline, Executive will forfeit atights to severance or benefits under this Agregmi@ no event wi
severance payments or benefits be paid or providétthe Release becomes effective and irrevocable

(b) NonSolicitation. The receipt of any severance benefits pursuantewich 8(a) or (b) will be subject
Executive not violating the provisions of Sectidgh In the event Executive breaches the provisidr$eation 16, all continuir
payments and benefits to which Executive may ottsenlse entitled pursuant to Section 8(a) or (b) ivimediately cease a
the Company will be entitled to any other rightsl aemedies and may take any other action legaliynizsible as a result
breaching the provisions of Section 16.

(c) Confidential Information AgreemenExecutive's receipt of any payments or benefitden Section 8 will k
subject to Executive continuing to comply with teems of the Confidential Information Agreement dagined in Section 15).

(d) Section 409A.

(i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisrAgment, no severance pay or benefits to be p
provided to Executive, if any, pursuant to this dgment that, when considered together with anyr aieerance payments
separation benefits, are considered deferred casagien under Code Section 409A, and the final e#gns and any guidar
promulgated thereunder (“Section 409A") (togethiee, “Deferred PaymentsWill be paid or otherwise provided until Execut
has a “separation from service” within the meanifigSection 409A. Similarly, no severance payable to Executive, ¥,
pursuant to this Agreement that otherwise wouléxempt from Section 409A pursuant to Treasury Raud Section 1.409A-1
(b)(9) will be payable until Executive has a “seggem from service” within the meaning of SectidibA.

(i) Any severance payments or benefits under thigeement that would be considered Defe
Payments will be paid on, or, in the case of itsm@hts, will not commence until, the sixtieth (60thay following Executive
separation from service, or, if later, such timeraguired by Section 9(d)(iii). Except as requited Section 9(d)(iii), an
installment payments that would have been madeéautive during the sixty (60) day period immediatellowing Executive'
separation from service but for the preceding sex@evill be paid to Executive on the sixtieth (§0day following Executive
separation from service and the remaining paynsrda be made as provided in this Agreement.

4
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(i) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary ihi¢ Agreement, if Executive is a “specified empleye
within the meaning of Section 409A at the time akE&utive's termination (other than due to deatigntthe Deferred Payme
that are payable within the first six (6) monthidwing Executive's separation from service, widdome payable on the fi
payroll date that occurs on or after the date 8)xnjonths and one (Hay following the date of Executive's separatiaom
service. All subsequent Deferred Payments, if avilf,be payable in accordance with the payment daleapplicable to ea
payment or benefit. Notwithstanding anything herinthe contrary, if Executive dies following Ex¢ige's separation fro
service, but prior to the six (6) month anniversafyhe separation from service, then any paymdeksyed in accordance w
this paragraph will be payable in a lump sum asisa® administratively practicable after the daté&récutive's death and
other Deferred Payments will be payable in accardamith the payment schedule applicable to eacimpay or benefit. Eau
payment and benefit payable under this Agreementesnded to constitute a separate payment forqeep of Section 1.409A-2
(b)(2) of the Treasury Regulations.

(iv) Any amount paid under this Agreement thatsdas the requirements of the “short-term defemalé
set forth in Section 1.409Kb)(4) of the Treasury Regulations will not consti® Deferred Payments for purposes of clau:
above.

(v) Any amount paid under this Agreement that digsias a payment made as a result of an involy
separation from service pursuant to Section 1.4QBA9)(iii) of the Treasury Regulations that doest exceed the Section 40
Limit (as defined below) will not constitute Defed Payments for purposes of clause (i) above.

(vi) The foregoing provisions are intended to coymplth the requirements of Section 409A so thate
of the severance payments and benefits to be pradvidreunder will be subject to the additionalitagosed under Section 40¢
and any ambiguities herein will be interpreteddacemply. The Company and Executive agree to wogkther in good faith
consider amendments to this Agreement and to tadte easonable actions which are necessary, apgi@pr desirable to avc
imposition of any additional tax or income recogmitprior to actual payment to Executive under acd09A.

(e) No Duty to Mitigate Executive will not be required to mitigate theamt of any payment contemplatec
this Agreement, nor will any earnings that Exeaitivay receive from any other source reduce any [gaigiment.

10. Limitation on Payments. In the event that inesance and other benefits provided for in thise&gent or otherwi:
payable to Executive (i) constitute “parachute pegts”within the meaning of Section 2800 of the Code éndut for this
Section 10, would be subject to the excise tax seddoy Section 4999 of the Code, then Executie¥srance benefits will |
either:

(@) delivered in full, or

(b) delivered as to such lesser extent which woeddilt in no portion of such severance benefitadsubject t
the excise tax under Section 4999 of the Code,

whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking intocact the applicable federal, state and local inctamxes and the excise
imposed by Section 4999, results in the receipEkgcutive on an aftelax basis, of the greatest amount of severancefitse
notwithstanding that all or some portion of suchesance benefits may be taxable under Section 488% Code. If a reducti
in the severance and other benefits
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constituting “parachute payments’ necessary so that no portion of such severaanefits is subject to the excise tax ul
Section 4999 of the Code, the reduction shall ogtthe following order: (1jeduction of the severance payments under Se
8(a)(i) or 8(b)(i); (2) cancellation of accelerateskting of equity awards; and (3) reduction oftoared employee benefits. In-
event that acceleration of vesting of equity aw@rthpensation is to be reduced, such accelerativasting shall be cancellec
the reverse order of the date of grant of Execlgtiequity awards.

Unless the Company and Executive otherwise agre@itmg, any determination required under this tier 1C
will be made in writing by an independent firm inaiegely prior to Change of Control (the “Firm¥yhose determination will |
conclusive and binding upon Executive and the Caomgdar all purposes. For purposes of making theuwations required t
this Section 10, the Firm may make reasonable gssoms and approximations concerning applicablesaand may rely «
reasonable, good faith interpretations concernimg application of Sections 280G and 4999 of theeCdde Company al
Executive will furnish to the Firm such informatiand documents as the Firm may reasonably requnestder to make
determination under this Section 10. The Compary beiar all costs the Firm may reasonably incucémnection with ar
calculations contemplated by this Section 10.

11. Definition of Terms The following terms referred to in this Agreemuiiit have the following meanings:

(a) Benefit Plans For purposes of this Agreement, “Benefit Plam&ans plans, policies or arrangements th:
Company sponsors (or participates in) and that idiately prior to Executive's termination of emplogmb provide Executiy
and/or Executive's eligible dependents with medidahtal, and/or vision benefits. Benefit Plansndbinclude any other type
benefit (including, but not by way of limitationisdbility, life insurance or retirement benefit8)requirement that the Compe
provide Executive and Executive's eligible depetslevith coverage under the Benefit Plans will net datisfied unless t
coverage is no less favorable than that providesetuor executives of the Company at any applicéible during the peric
Executive is entitled to receive severance purst@anSection 8(a) or 8(b). The Company may, at péiom, satisfy an
requirement that the Company provide coverage uagBenefit Plan by (i) reimbursing Executive'smpiums under Title X «
the Consolidated Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985,amended (“COBRA"after Executive has properly elected continu
coverage under COBRA (in which case Executive bédlsolely responsible for electing such coverageEfacutive's eligibl
dependents), or (ii) providing coverage under assp plan or plans providing coverage that isess favorable.

(b) Cause For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” is defiag:

(i) any material act of personal dishonesty made Hxecutive m connection with Executi
responsibilities as an employee;

(i) Executive's conviction of, or plea of nolo dendereto, a felony or any crime involving frat
embezzlement or any other act of moral turpitude;

(i)  Executive's gross misconduct;

(iv) Executive's unauthorized use or disclosureany proprietary information or trade secrets of
Company or any other party to whom Executive oweslaigation of nondisclosure as a result of Ex@els relationship wit
the Company;

(v) Executive's willful breach of any obligationsder any written
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agreement or covenant with the Company; or

(vi) Executive's continued failure to perform Exgee's employment duties after Executive has rexgbe
written demand of performance from the Company Wispecifically sets forth the factual basis for @empany's belief th
Executive has not substantially performed his ar dwaties and has failed to cure such mpemformance to the Compar
satisfaction within teril 0) business days after receiving such notice.

(c) Change of ControFor purposes of this Agreement, “Change of Contno#ans the occurrence of any of
the following events:

(i) the acquisition by any one person, or more tbam person acting as a group (for these pury
persons will be considered to be acting as a gibtlgey are owners of a corporation that enters mtmerger, consolidatic
purchase or acquisition of stock, or similar bussgansaction with the Company), (“Persahgt becomes the owner, directh
indirectly, of securities of the Company represantinore than fifty percent (50%) of the total vgtipower represented by -
Company's then outstanding securities; providegelver, that for purposes of this subsection (i¢ #tquisition of addition
securities by any one Person, who is consideresvtomore than fifty percent (50%) of the total wgtipower of the securities
the Company shall not be considered a Change afr@pn

(i) a change in the ownership of a substantiatiporof the Company's assets which occurs on tie
that any Person acquires (or has acquired durimgmtblve (12) month period ending on the date efrttost recent acquisition
such person or persons) assets from the Companhydira a total gross fair market value equal tonore than fifty perce
(50%) of the total gross fair market value of dlthee assets of the Company immediately prior hsacquisition or acquisitior
provided, however, that for purposes of this Sectio(c)(ii) the following shall not constitute énange in the ownership o
substantial portion of the Company's asséfs:a transfer to an entity that is controlled by thenmpany's shareholdt
immediately after the transfer; or (2) a transfemassets by the Company to: (A) a shareholder @Gbmpany (immediate
before the asset transfer) in exchange for or weigipect to the Company's securiti@;an entity, fifty percent (50%) or more
the total value or voting power of which is owndiftectly or indirectly, by the Company; (C) a Persthat owns, directly «
indirectly, fifty percent (50%) or more of the tbtalue or voting power of all the outstanding $taf the Company; or (D) i
entity, at least fifty percent (50%) of the totallwe or voting power of which is owned, directly iadirectly, by a Persc
described in subsection (C). For purposes of testi® 11(c)(ii), gross fair market value means\thkie of the assets of 1
Company, or the value of the assets being dispoSetttermined without regard to any liabilities@siated with such assets; or

(iii) a change in the composition of the Board adag within a twelve (12) month period, as a reési
which fewer than a majority of the directors areumbent Directors. “Incumbent Directons/ill mean directors who either (.
are directors of the Company as of the EffectivaeDar (B) are elected, or nominated for electitmthe Board with tt
affirmative votes of at least a majority of the untbent Directors at the time of such election animation (but will not includ
an individual whose election or nomination is imgection with an actual or threatened proxy contgsiting to the election
directors to the Company).

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a transaction st constitute a Change of Control unless the &etns
gualifies as a “change in control event” within theaning of Section 409A.

(d) Code.For purposes of this Agreement, “Code” means tkerial Revenue
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Code of 1986, as amended.

(e) Good Reasorf-or purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reasm&@ans Executive's resignation within th
(30) days following the expiration of any Compamyecperiod (discussed below) following the occuceenf one or more of tl
following, without Executive's express written cens

() the assignment to Executive of any duties, théuction of Executive's duties or tlle remove
Executive from his or her position and respongibgi, either of which must result in a material idintion of Executive
authority, duties, or responsibilities with the Gmamy in effect immediately prior to such assignmantless Executive
provided with a comparable position (i.e., a positof equal or greater organizational level, duteghority, compensation &
status);

(i) A material reduction in Executive’'Base Salary, unless the Company also similadyaes the ba
salaries of all other similarly situated employeéthe Company (and, if applicable, its succesgor)these purposes, a reduc
of Executive's Base Salary by 10% or more will besidered material, provided that a reduction e§ ldfhan 10% may still
material based on the facts and circumstancesngkat the reduction);

(i) a material change in the geographic locatioh Executive's primary work facility or locatic
provided, however, that a relocation of less thiaintyt five (35) miles from Executive's then presdotation will not b
considered a material change in geographic location

(iv) the failure of the Company to obtain assumptid this Agreement by any successor, which shg
deemed a material breach by the Company of thiségent.

Executive will not resign for Good Reason withoustf providing the Company with written notice dfet acts or omissio
constituting the grounds for “Good Reason” withinaty (90) days of the initial existence of the wnds for “Good Reasorénc
a reasonable cure period of not less than thi@y ¢ays following the date of such notice.

(f)  Section 409A Limit For purposes of this Agreement, “Section 409Ait’imvill mean two (2) times the
lesser of: (i) Executive's annualized compensdiised upon the annual rate of pay paid to Execdtivieg the Executive's
taxable year preceding the Executive's taxable gihis or her separation from service as deterchiumeder Treasury Regulation
Section 1.409A-1(b)(9)(ii))(A)(I) and any InternBevenue Service guidance issued with respect therefii) the maximum
amount that may be taken into account under afegdaplan pursuant to Section 40 | (a)(17) of theefnal Revenue Code for 1
year in which Executive's separation from serviceuored.

12. Assignment. This Agreement will be binding upamd inure to the benefit of (a) the heirs, exesutnd leg:
representatives of Executive upon Executive's daath(b) any successor of the Company. Any sucbessor of the Compa
will be deemed substituted for the Company undertémms of this Agreement for all purposes. Fos thirpose, “successor
means any person, firm, corporation or other bssirmtity which at any time, whether by purchaserger or otherwise, direc
or indirectly acquires all or substantially all thie assets or business of the Company. None afghts of Executive to recei
any form of compensation payable pursuant to tigigeAment may be assigned or transferred exceptlbgrihe laws of desce
and distribution. Any other attempted assignmeaandfer, conveyance or other disposition of Ex@elgiright to compensati
or other benefits will be null and void.

13. Notice All notices, requests, demands and other commuaicatalled for hereunder
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will be in writing and will be deemed given (i) ¢ime date of delivery if delivered personally, (he(1) day after being sent by
well-established commercial overnight service, or (oijir (4) days after being mailed by registered ertified mail, retur
receipt requested, prepaid and addressed to thiegpar their successors at the following addresseat such other addresse
the parties may later designate in writing.

If to the Company:

Telenav, Inc.

950 De Guigne Drive
Sunnyvale, CA 94085
Attn : General Counsel

If to Executive:
at the last residential address known by the Compan
14. Arbitration.

(a) Arbitration . In consideration of Executive's employment wiklle tCompany, its promise to arbitrate
employmentrelated disputes, and Executive's receipt of thepsmsation, pay raises and other benefits paikeézive by th
Company, at present and in the future, Executiveesgthat any and all controversies, claims, gruies with anyone (includil
the Company and any employee, officer, directogreolder or benefit plan of the Company in theipacity as such
otherwise) arising out of, relating to, or resudtifrom Executive's employment with the Company emmination therec
including any breach of this Agreement, will be jggbto binding arbitration under the ArbitratiomlBs set forth in Californ
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1280 through 129%@uding Section 1281.8 (thé\tt'), and pursuant to California law. 1
Federal Arbitration Act shall also apply with fdtirce and effect, notwithstanding the applicatidrpmcedural rules set fol
under the Act.

(b) Dispute ResolutiorDisputes that Executive agrees to arbitrate, aarktly agrees to waive any right to a
by jury, include any statutory claims under locdfte, or federal law, including, but not limitex €laims under Title VII of tF
Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Dishtiés Act of 1990, the Age Discrimination in Emgloent Act of 1967, tt
Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, the Sarbafedey Act, the Worker Adjustment and Retraining ioation Act, the
California Fair Employment and Housing Act, the Hgmand Medical Leave Act, the California Family gRis Act, th
California Labor Code, claims of harassment, dmsgration, and wrongful termination, and any statyiimr common law claim
Executive further understands that this Agreemerarbitrate also applies to any disputes that tbe@any may have wi
Executive.

(c) ProcedureExecutive agrees that any arbitration will be adstéred by the Judicial Arbitration & Mediati
Services, Inc. (*JAMS”), pursuant to its Employmébitration Rules & Procedures (the “JAMS RulesThe arbitrator she
have the power to decide any motions brought by gy to the arbitration, including motions fomsmary judgment and/
adjudication, motions to dismiss and demurrers,rantons for class certification, prior to any araiion hearing. The arbitra
shall have the power to award any remedies availabtier applicable law, and the arbitrator shaliravattorneys' fees and cc
to the prevailing party, except as prohibited hy.ldhe Company will pay for any administrative @ahing fees charged by
administrator or JAMS, and all arbitrator's fees;apt that Executive shall pay any filing fees agsted with any arbitration tr
Executive initiates, but only
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so much of the filing fee as Executive would hav&éad paid had Executive filed a complaint in @ricof law. Executive agre
that the arbitrator shall administer and condugtabitration in accordance with California Jawgluding the California Code
Civil Procedure and the California Evidence Codwel that the arbitrator shall apply substantive pratedural California law
any dispute or claim, without reference to the suwé conflict of law. To the extent that the JAM8I&s conflict with Californi
law, California law shall take precedence. The sleqi of the arbitrator shall be in writing. Any drhtion under this Agreeme
shall be conducted in Santa Clara County, Californi

(d) Remedy.Except as provided by the Act, arbitration shalltbe sole, exclusive, and final remedy for
dispute between Executive and the Company. Accglygimxcept as provided by the Act and this Agrestneeither Executiv
nor the Company will be permitted to pursue cogtioa regarding claims that are subject to arbaratNotwithstanding, tf
arbitrator will not have the authority to disregarmrefuse to enforce any lawful Company policyd #me arbitrator will not ord:
or require the Company to adopt a policy not otlieewequired by law which the Company has not aathpt

(e) Administrative ReliefExecutive is not prohibited from pursuing an adstitive claim with a local, state,
federal administrative body or government agen@t fb authorized to enforce or administer lawsteelato employmer
including, but not limited to, the Department ofiffamployment and Housing, the Equal Employment @amity Commissiot
the National Labor Relations Board, or the Work€&smpensation Board. However, Executive may nosymircourt actic
regarding any such claim, except as permitted Wy la

() Voluntary Nature of Agreement=xecutive acknowledges and agrees that Executivexecuting thi
Agreement voluntarily and without any duress or uexdnfluence by the Company or anyone else. Exezufurthe
acknowledges and agrees that Executive has carefatl this Agreement and that Executive has aakgdjuestions needed
Executive to understand the terms, consequencediadthg effect of this Agreement and fully undarsis it, including th:
EXECUTIVE IS WAIVING EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO A JURY TRAL. Finally, Executive agrees that Executive has
provided an opportunity to seek the advice of &orag¢y of Executive's choice before signing thigefgnent.

15. Confidential Information Executive agrees to continue to be bound by thlerkv, Inc. Proprietary Informati
Agreement (the “Confidential Information Agreemgrghtered into by and between Executive and the Coyngated April 11
20 14.

16. NonSolicitation. Until the date one (1year after the termination of Executive's employmeith the Company ft
any reason, Executive agrees not, either direatlindirectly, to solicit, induce, attempt to soticrecruit, or encourage a
employee of the Company (or any parent or subsidiathe Company) to leave his or her employmethiegifor Executive or f
any other entity or person. Executive represerds il (i) is familiar with the foregoing covenarmt o solicit, and (ii) is full
aware of his or her obligations hereunder, inclgdiwithout limitation, the reasonableness of thegth of time, scope a
geographic coverage of these covenants.

17. Miscellaneous Provisions.

(a) AmendmentNo provision of this Agreement will be modified, wed or discharged unless the modificat
waiver or discharge is agreed to in writing anchei) by Executive and by an authorized officer & @ompany (other th.
Executive) that is expressly designated as an ameniito this Agreement.
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(b) Waiver. No waiver by either party of any breach of, oicofnpliance with, any condition or provision ofs
Agreement by the other party will be considered aver of any other condition or provision or of teeme condition
provision at another time.

(c) Headings All captions and section headings used in thisesAment are for convenient reference only ar
not form a part of this Agreement.

(d) Entire_AgreementThis Agreement, together with the Confidential hnfiation Agreement represents
entire agreement and understanding between theepaas to the subject matter herein and supersadegrior ol
contemporaneous agreements whether written or Wvah respect to equity awards granted on or after date of th
Agreement, the acceleration of vesting provisiomvigled herein will apply to such equity awardsepicto the extent otherwi
explicitly provided in the applicable award agreemd his Agreement may be modified only by agreenudrthe parties by
written instrument executed by the parties thdeisignated as an amendment to this Agreement.

(e) Governing Law This Agreement will be governed by the laws & 8tate of
California (with the exception of its conflict cdw provisions).

(f) Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any prowasi or provisions of this Agreement will not aft
the validity or enforceability of any other prowsi hereof, which will remain in full force and ette

(g) Withholding. All payments made pursuant to this Agreement bellsubject to all applicable withholdin
including all applicable income and employment tes determined in the Company's reasonable juttgme

(h) Acknowledgment Executive acknowledges that he has had the apptyrtto discuss this matter with e
obtain advice from his private attorney, has hdtictent time to, and has carefully read and fullyderstands all the provisic
of this Agreement, and is knowingly and voluntaglytering into this Agreement.

(i) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executezbimterparts, and each counterpart will have #meesforc
and effect as an original and will constitute deetfve, binding agreement on the part of eacltihefundersigned.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties has execthis Agreement, in the case of the Company bgutg
authorized officer, as of the day and year sehfbaiow.

COMPANY TELENAYV, INC.
By: /s/ Loren Hillberg
Title: General Counsel
Date: 4/11/2014
EXECUTIVE Vincent G. Uttley

By: /s/ Vincent Uttley

Date: 4/11/2014

12
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SUBSIDIARIES OF TELENAYV, INC.

TeleNav Shanghai Inc. (PRC)

TeleNav Xi'an Software Limited (PRC)

TeleNav Hong Kong, Limited (Hong Kong)

TELENAV DO BRASIL SERVICOS DE LOCALIZAGAO LTDA (Brail)

TeleNav UK Limited (U.K.)

Local Merchant Services Inc. (Delaware)
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 Nos. 333-195835;190901, 333-184638, 333-
183787, 333-176773 and 333-166780) pertaining to-Rlan Inducement Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreat, Amended and Restated
2011 Stock Option and Grant Plan, 2009 Equity ltigerPlan, 2002 Executive Stock Option Plan, angi91Stock Option Plan of Telenav, Inc.
of our reports dated August 22, 2014, with respethe consolidated financial statements and sdbexfurelenav, Inc., and the effectivenes
internal control over financial reporting of Telendnc., included in this Annual Report (Form 104 the year ended June 30, 2014.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
August 22, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a)AND 15d-14(a),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Dr. HP Jin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Telenav, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanadglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentglsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inveadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: August 22, 2014 By: /s/ Dr.HP JIN
DR. HP Jin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ahatCExecutive
Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a)AND 15d-14(a),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Strambi, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Telenav, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanadglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentglsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inveadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date:August 22, 2014 By: /sl  MICHAEL STRAMBI
Michael Strambi
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFI CER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANTO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dr. HP Jin, the president and chief executivicef of Telenav, Inc. (the “Company”), certify ftre purposes of 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9¢&dBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the bésty knowledge,

0] the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10eKthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (the “R&pdully complies
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet]; an

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date:August 22, 2014 By: /s/ Dr.HP JIN

Dr. HP Jin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ah@kfOExecutive
Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANTO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Strambi, the chief financial officer ©&lenav, Inc. (the “Company”), certify for the poges of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@ydt of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge,

0] the Annual Report of the Company on Form 1@ikthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (the “R&pdully complies
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet]; an

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: August 22, 2014 By: /sl  MICHAEL STRAMBI
Michael Strambi
Chief Financial Officer




